
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Frank Hotchkiss 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Grant House 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Cathy Murillo 
Randy Rowse 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


9/25/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 

AFTERNOON SESSION 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the special meeting of September 10, 2012, and the regular meetings of 
September 11 and 18, 2012. 
  



9/25/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

2. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Accurate 
Aviation Group, Inc. (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Seven-Year Lease Agreement with Accurate Aviation Group, Inc., Dated as of 
October 31, 2012, at a Monthly Rental of $6,066, for Two Maintenance Hangars 
of 3,000 and 3,522 Square Feet, Respectively, 51,548 Square Feet of Ramp 
Space, and Associated Parking, at 101 Cyril Hartley Place, at the Santa Barbara 
Airport, for Operation of a General Aviation Maintenance Shop. 
  

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Approving Sale Of City Surplus Real 
Property Located At 136 West Haley Street And 306 West Ortega Street 
(330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Sale of the Surplus Real 
Property Located at 136 West Haley Street (APN 037-162-010) to Victor 
Kirschbaum, in the High Bid Amount of $350,000, and 306 West Ortega Street 
(APN 037-073-028) to G. Scott Armstrong & Cathy L. Armstrong, Trustees of the 
Armstrong Family Trust U/A/D 2/12/02, in the High Bid Amount of $250,000. 
  

4. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Adopting The 2012-2013 General Unit 
Memorandum Of Understanding (440.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adopting the 2012-2013 Memorandum 
of Understanding Between the City of Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara City 
Employees' Association (General Unit) and Providing for Compensation Changes 
for Confidential Employees. 
  

5. Subject:  Agreement For Surface Water And Groundwater Monitoring 
(540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
joint funding agreement with the United States Geological Survey for water 
resources investigations related to surface water and groundwater 
measurements for the period of November 1, 2012 through October 31, 2013, 
with a City cost share not to exceed $111,150. 
  



9/25/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

6. Subject:  Approval Of Parcel Map And Execution Of Agreements For 2501 - 
2511 Medcliff Road (640.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to 
execute and record Parcel Map Number 20,798 and Standard Agreements 
relating to the approved subdivision at 2501-2511 Medcliff Road. 
  

7. Subject:  Appropriation Of Federal Aviation Administration Airport 
Improvement Program Grant Funds For Santa Barbara Airport (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the increased Federal Aviation 
Administration grant offer and increase appropriations and estimated revenues 
by $3,360,273 in the Airport's Grants Fund for two projects, the Airline Terminal 
Improvement Project (Phase V) and the Taxiway C, H, J Rehabilitation Project 
(Phase I), both of which will be primarily funded from Federal Aviation 
Administration Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grant No. 03-06-0235-045-
2012 totaling $3,046,424, with the City's 9.3% match portion of $313,849 to be 
funded from Airport reserves above policy. 
  

8. Subject:  Contract For Launch Ramp Design - Santa Barbara Harbor 
(570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Waterfront Director to execute a 
Professional Services Contract with Moffatt & Nichol, Inc., approved as to form 
by the City Attorney, in the amount of $51,500 for design services for the Santa 
Barbara Harbor Launch Ramp Project; and approve expenditures of up to $5,150 
for extra design services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of 
work. 
  

9. Subject:  August 2012 Investment Report  (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the August 2012 Investment Report. 
  

NOTICES 

10. The City Clerk has on Thursday, September 20, 2012, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 



9/25/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject: TsunamiReady Community Designation (520.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept recognition by the National Weather 
Service designating the City of Santa Barbara as a TsunamiReady Community. 
  

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

12. Subject:  Request From Mayor Schneider And Councilmember Francisco 
Regarding Safe Passage (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Mayor Schneider and 
Councilmember Francisco regarding safety issues for pedestrians, bicyclists and 
vehicle drivers in the corridor from Laguna Street, along with East Los Olivos 
Street through the intersections with Alameda Padre Serra and Mountain Drive, 
across Mission Creek Bridge, onto Mission Canyon Road, through the 
intersection with Puesta del Sol Road to the intersection with Las Encinas Road. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

13. Subject:  Public Hearing For The City Of Santa Barbara's "2012 Analysis Of 
Impediments To Fair Housing Choice" (660.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold a public hearing to consider the "2012 Analysis of Impediments to 

Fair Housing Choice (AI)" and provide direction to staff regarding any 
changes to the AI; and 

B. Authorize staff to submit the final AI to the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) in accordance with the requirements of the 
federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and the Home 
Investments Partnership (HOME) programs. 

 
 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
RECESS 
EVENING SESSION  



9/25/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

EVENING SESSION 
 
 
RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

14. Subject:  Request From Councilmembers Hotchkiss And Rowse Regarding 
Recent Architectural Board Of Review Conduct (640.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider a request from Councilmembers 
Hotchkiss and Rowse to review recent Architectural Board of Review actions 
concerning Chick-fil-A restaurant and decide appropriate action. 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 



9/10/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
September 10, 2012 
901 OLIVE STREET 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House (2:00 p.m.), 
Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 

The City Clerk has on Thursday, September 6, 2012, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, 
and on the Internet. 
 
SITE VISIT 

Subject:  901 Olive Street 

Recommendation:  That Council make a site visit to the property located at 901 Olive 
Street, which is the subject of an appeal hearing scheduled for September 11, 2012, at 
2:00 p.m. 

  
Documents: 

Staff Hearing Officer Resolution No. 016-12. 
 

(Cont’d) 
  



9/10/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

Subject:  901 Olive Street (Cont’d) 
 

Speakers: 
Staff:  Planning Technician Anthony Boughman. 
 

Discussion: 
Mr. Boughman briefly described the project and reviewed its plans.  He also led 
the Council on a walk around the site. 
 

Councilmember Hotchkiss left the meeting at 2:10 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 2:20 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHEDH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 11, 2012 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance and 
Ordinance Committees, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, Randy 
Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  Grant House. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through September 30, 2012. 
 
Documents: 

September 11, 2012, report from the Assistant City Administrator/ 
Administrative Services Director. 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  City Administrator James Armstrong. 
 

(Cont’d) 
  



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

1. (Cont’d) 
 

By consensus, the Council approved the recommendation, and the following 
employees were recognized: 
 

5-Year Pin 
Erik Uchida, Administrative Services 

Natasya Katsikaris, Administrative Services 
Sherrie McClellan, Administrative Services 

Gina Battaglia, Police 
James Lombardo, Police 

Adam Hendel, Public Works 
Sarita King, Public Works 

Daniel Takacs, Public Works 
Chris Schmidtchen, Public Works 

James Rumbley, Parks and Recreation 
Luis Quesada, Parks and Recreation 

Charles Williams, Parks and Recreation 
10-Year Pin 

Randell Graham, Public Works 
Robert Cerda, Parks and Recreation 

15-Year Pin 
Lindsey Baker, Finance 

Bruce Kiefer, Community Development 
Ronald Liechti, Fire 

Joseph Avila, Library 
Susan Jang-Bardick, Parks and Recreation 

25-Year Pin 
Yolanda Gonzalez, Public Works 

Noellan Bickham, Library 
 

2. Subject:  Letter Of Recognition To Santa Barbara Foresters For National 
Baseball Congress World Series Championship (120.08) 
 
Action:  Letter of Recognition presented to Foresters Head Coach Bill Pintard. 
 

Councilmember House arrived at the meeting at 2:09 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Scott Wenz, Cars Are Basic; Robert Burke; K8 Longstory as AIE! The 
Person; Kenneth Loch, Pete Dal Bello, Chiari Association. 
 



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
The titles of ordinances and resolutions related to Consent Calendar items were read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Hotchkiss/White to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote. 

3. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of August 14, 2012, and the regular meetings of August 21 
and 28, 2012, and September 4, 2012 (cancelled). 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 
 

4. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements For The One Month 
Ended July 31, 2012 (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial 
Statements for the One Month Ended July 31, 2012. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (September 11, 2012, report from the 
Finance Director). 
 

5. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For Amendments To Municipal Code 
Chapter 9.116, Civil Defense And Disaster (520.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Chapter 9.116 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code Relating to Emergency 
Services. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (September 11, 2012, report from the 
Fire Chief; proposed ordinance). 
 

6. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Approving Sale Of City Surplus Real 
Property Located At 309 West Ortega Street (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Sale of the 
Surplus Real Property Located at 309 West Ortega Street (APN 037-113-
007) to Raquel Medina in the High Bid Amount of $400,300; and  

 
(Cont’d)



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

6. (Cont’d) 
 
B. Authorize the City Administrator to Execute the Land Purchase 

Agreement, Escrow Instructions and Title Transfer Documents, as 
approved by the City Attorney, to effectuate the sale of the real property 
located at 309 West Ortega Street. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (September 11, 2012, report from the 
Public Works Director; proposed ordinance). 

 
7. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Clean 

Seas, L.L.C. (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Five-Year Lease Agreement with One Five-Year Option with Clean Seas, L.L.C., 
at a Monthly Rent of $2,200 for Approximately 1,800 Square Feet of Water Area 
Adjacent to Marina 1-F Finger in the Santa Barbara Harbor, Effective October 18, 
2012. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (September 11, 2012, report from the 
Waterfront Business Manager; proposed ordinance). 
 

8. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For Restated Lease With Signature 
Flight Support Corporation (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving 
and Authorizing the Airport Director to Execute a Restated Lease Agreement No. 
12,037 Dated August 1, 1983, As Amended, Between Signature Flight Support 
Corporation, a California Corporation, and the City of Santa Barbara 
Encompassing Approximately 938,321 Square Feet Located at 515 Robert 
Marxmiller Place at the Santa Barbara Airport for a Monthly Rental of $31,125 
Exclusive of Utilities. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (September 11, 2012, report from the 
Airport Director; proposed ordinance). 

 
9. Subject:  Adoption  Of Ordinance To Approve An On Bill Financing 

Agreement For The Los Banos Boiler Replacement  Project (570.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the Public 
Works Director to Execute an On Bill Financing Loan Agreement in the Amount 
of $53,032.83 with Southern California Gas Company for the Acceptance of Loan 
Funds to Assist in the Replacement of Pool Heaters at the Los Banos Del Mar 
Pool. 

(Cont’d) 



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

9. (Cont’d) 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5591; Agreement 
No. 24,236. 
 

10. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Approving The Sale Of City Surplus Real 
Property Located At 20 South Milpas Street (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Sale of the Surplus Real 
Property Located at 20 South Milpas Street (APN 017-165-007) to 18-20 Milpas 
Investors, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, in the high bid amount of 
$570,000. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5592; Agreement 
No. 24,237. 
 

11. Subject:  Lease Agreement For Primo Boxing Club, Inc. (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to execute a one-year lease 

agreement with two additional one-year options for the Haley Street Youth 
Sports Center with Primo Boxing Club, Inc.; and 

B. Authorize a waiver of unpaid rents and penalties totaling $23,250 for 
Primo Boxing, Inc., associated with City Lease Agreement No. 23,094. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement No. 24,238 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Parks and Recreation Director). 
 

12. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Summer Solstice 
Celebration, Inc. (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Finance Director to execute a 
Community Promotion contract with Summer Solstice Celebration, Inc., in an 
amount of $37,851 to support year-round salary and production expenses. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 24,239 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Finance Director). 
  

13. Subject:  Contract For Construction For McKinley School Pedestrian 
Improvements Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Aguilera Brothers Construction, Inc., in their low bid 

amount of $38,005 for construction of the McKinley School Pedestrian 
Improvements Project, Bid No. 3663; and 

 
(Cont’d) 



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

13. (Cont’d) 
 
B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 

expenditures up to $5,700 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 24,240 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Public Works Director). 

 
14. Subject:  Contract For Construction For Milpas And Cabrillo Pedestrian 

Safety Improvements Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Lee Wilson Electric Company, Inc., in their low bid 

amount of $58,335 for construction of the Milpas and Cabrillo Pedestrian 
Safety Improvements Project, Bid No. 3672; and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 
expenditures up to $8,750 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 24,241 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Public Works Director). 

 
15. Subject:  Increase In Design And Appraisal Services For The Cabrillo 

Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize an increase in the extra services amount with Bengal 

Engineering, Inc., for final design for the Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge 
Replacement Project, Contract No. 22,346, in the amount of $216,867.50, 
for a total project expenditure authority of $1,908,118.50; and 

B. Authorize an increase in the extra services amount with Reeder, Gilman & 
Associates for real estate appraisal services for the Cabrillo Boulevard 
Bridge Replacement Project, Contract No. 24,023, in the amount of 
$10,000.00, for a total project expenditure authority of $49,000.00. 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer Pat Kelly. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (September 11, 2012, report from the 
Public Works Director). 

 
  



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

16. Subject:  Cost Sharing Agreement With The City Of Goleta For Operation 
And Maintenance Of Shared Traffic Signals (560.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
Cost Sharing Agreement, approved as to form by the City Attorney, with the City 
of Goleta for the operation and maintenance of six shared traffic signals 
surrounding the Santa Barbara Airport property. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 24,242 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Public Works Director). 

 
17. Subject:  Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Update (540.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute, 
subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney, a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Cooperating Partners providing for the continued 
administration and development of an update to the Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan for Santa Barbara County, with the City's share of costs not to 
exceed $20,000. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 24,243 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Public Works Director). 
 

18. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2013 Agreement For A Countywide Library System 
(570.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to 
execute an agreement between the County of Santa Barbara and the Cities of 
Santa Barbara, Santa Maria and Lompoc for the operation of a Countywide 
Library System for Fiscal Year 2013. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 24,244 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Library Director). 
  

19. Subject:  Contract With Ampco Parking System To Manage And Operate 
Airport Public Parking Lots (550.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a three-year Management Agreement, 
with two one-year options, with Ampco System Parking (aka ABM Parking 
Services), a California Corporation, to operate the public parking lots at the Santa 
Barbara Airport, provide shuttle service to Long Term Lot 2 for passengers and 
employees, and curbside attendant services, effective upon completion of the 
Airline Terminal Improvement Project. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 24,245 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Airport Director). 
 



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

20. Subject: Goleta Slough Ecosystem Management Plan Update (560.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept and authorize the Airport Director to execute, on behalf of the City, 

a grant offer of $50,000 from State Coastal Conservancy for an update to 
the Goleta Slough Ecosystem Management Plan (Plan) including a sea 
level rise study; 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the Execution of Grant Agreement No. 11-
07712-009 with the State Coastal Conservancy and Approving its Terms 
and Conditions; 

C. Accept a Goleta Valley Land Trust grant offer of $20,000 to contribute to 
the preparation of an update to the Goleta Slough Ecosystem 
Management Plan; 

D. Accept $15,000 from the Goleta West Sanitary District in contribution to 
the Goleta Slough Ecosystem Management Plan; 

E. Transfer $10,014 from the Airport Operating Fund from unappropriated 
reserves into the Airport Capital Fund to cover the Airport's portion of the 
cost to complete the Plan; 

F. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the Airport Capital 
Fund by $95,014, of which $50,000 will be funded from the State Coastal 
Conservancy Grant, $15,000 from the Goleta West Sanitary District, 
$18,620 from the Goleta Valley Land Trust, and $11,394 from the Airport 
Operating Fund; and 

G. Approve and authorize the Airport Director to execute a Contract with ESA 
PWA for preparation of an update to the Goleta Slough Ecosystem 
Management Plan, in an amount not to exceed $95,014. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Resolution No. 12-062; Agreement 
Nos. 24,246 and 24,247 (September 11, 2012, report from the Airport Director; 
proposed resolution). 

 
21. Subject:  State Office Of Traffic Safety Grant For Sobriety Checkpoint 

Program (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept $103,200 from the State of California Office of Traffic Safety and 

authorize the Chief of Police to execute the Grant Agreement; and 
B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues for the grant allocation of 

$103,200 to the Miscellaneous Grants Fund for Fiscal Year 2012/2013 for 
the Sobriety Checkpoint Program. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement No. 24,248 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Chief of Police). 

 
  



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

22. Subject:  State Office Of Traffic Safety Grant For Selective Traffic 
Enforcement (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept $86,000 from the State of California Office of Traffic Safety and 

authorize the Chief of Police to execute the Grant Agreement; and 
B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues for the grant allocation of 

$86,000 to the Miscellaneous Grants Fund for 2012-2013 for the Selective 
Traffic Enforcement Program. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement No. 24,249 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Chief of Police). 

 
23. Subject:  Purchase Order For Digital Payment Technologies Parking 

Equipment (550.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council find it in the City's best interest to waive the 
formal bid procedure as authorized by Municipal Code Section 4.52.070 (L), and 
authorize the General Services Manager to issue a purchase order to Digital 
Payment Technologies Corporation for three self-pay parking stations for 
Waterfront Department parking lots, in an amount not to exceed $40,000. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation (September 11, 2012, report from the 
Waterfront Director). 
 

24. Subject:  Emergency Purchase Order For Ice House Compressor 
Replacement (330.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve an emergency purchase order pursuant 
to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 4.52.080 (E) in the amount of $34,230 
to TRJ Refrigeration, Inc., for the replacement and installation of a compressor 
for the Ice House. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (September 11, 2012, report from the 
Waterfront Director). 
 

25. Subject:  Federal Criminal History Information For Emergency Medical 
Technician Certification (520.04) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council, adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara for the City of Santa Barbara Fire 
Department to Have Access to Both State and Federal Criminal History 
Information for the Purposes of Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) Licensing 
and/or Certification. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 12-063 (September 11, 
2012, report from the Chief of Police). 



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 

NOTICES 

26. The City Clerk has on Thursday, September 6, 2012, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

27. Received a letter of resignation from Architectural Board of Review Member 
Keith Rivera; the vacancy will be part of the next recruitment for City Advisory 
Groups. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

28. Subject:  City Arts Advisory Committee And Community Events And 
Festivals Committee Funding Recommendations And Contract With The 
Santa Barbara County Arts Commission For Fiscal Year 2013 (610.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Review and approve the City of Santa Barbara Arts Advisory Committee 

and Community Events and Festivals Committee funding 
recommendations for Fiscal Year 2013; and  

B. Authorize the Assistant City Administrator/Community Development 
Director to execute an agreement, subject to approval by the City 
Attorney, with the Santa Barbara County Arts Commission in the amount 
of $427,260 as approved in the Fiscal Year 2013 budget. 

 
Documents: 

September 11, 2012, report from the Assistant City Administrator/ 
Community Development Director. 
 

Speakers: 
- Staff:  Community Development Business Manager Sue Gray. 
- Santa Barbara County Arts Commission:  Executive Director Ginny Brush. 

 
Motion: 

Councilmembers House/Rowse to approve the recommendations; 
Agreement No. 24,250. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote. 
 

RECESS 
 
2:43 p.m. – 2:54 p.m. 
  



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 11 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

29. Subject:  Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 901 Olive 
Street (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Grant Castleberg of the 
application of DesignARC, and uphold the Architectural Board of Review's 
Project Design Approval for the proposed mixed use project consisting of 19 new 
apartments, a new parking garage, and alterations to the existing office building. 
 
Documents: 

- September 11, 2012, report from the City Planner. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- September 10, 2012, letter from Beth Collins-Burgard, Attorney 

representing the Applicant. 
- September 4, 2012, e-mails from Pamela Grant, Caroline White, Janis 

Kling. 
- September 10, 2012, letters from Citizens Planning Association of Santa 

Barbara County, Keith Rivera. 
- September 11, 2012, letters from Robin Donaldson, Mark Mansfield, 

Monique Mansfield. 
 
 Public Comment Opened: 
  2:54 p.m. 
 
 Speakers: 

- Staff:  Planning Technician Anthony Boughman, City Planner Bettie 
Weiss, City Attorney Stephen Wiley. 

- Architectural Board of Review:  Vice Chair Paul Zink. 
- Appellant:  Grant Castleberg. 
- Applicant:  Architect Mark Kirkhart, Landscape Architect Philip Suding, 

Property Owner Peter Lewis, Attorney Beth Collins-Burgard. 
- Members of the Public:  Ernie Watson; Mary Louise Days; Pam Brandon, 

Citizens Planning Association; Mickey Flacks; Sheila Lodge; Monique 
Mansfield; Leon Olson; William Morrow; Don Sharpe. 

 
 Public Comment Closed: 
  4:53 p.m. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers Hotchkiss/Murillo to approve the recommendation and 
request that the Architectural Board of Review consider a requirement that 
the portion of the building consisting of residential units be moved to make 
its front yard setback more compatible with that required in the R-3 
residential zone. 

Vote: 
Majority voice vote (Noes:  Councilmember Francisco). 



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 12 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 - Councilmember Hotchkiss reported on a recent meeting convened to discuss the 

problems being encountered in the enforcement of laws related to consumption 
of alcohol in public; he described a map being installed inside the Airport 
Terminal showing the location of all of the City’s sister cities; and he spoke about 
a recent visit by the International Association of Former Secret Service Agents. 

 - Councilmember Murillo provided more information about the August 29 meeting 
regarding enforcement of laws regulating public alcohol consumption; she 
mentioned her attendance at a meeting of the Housing Authority Commission, 
which included a discussion of the consolidation of that group; she mentioned 
that the Youth Council will cohost a forum for School Board candidates; and she 
stated that the Metropolitan Transit District has extended the deadline for 
applications for the current vacancy on its Board of Directors. 

 - Mayor Schneider elaborated on the visit by the Association of Former Secret 
Service Agents and commented on the U.S.S. Halsey’s visit to Santa Barbara.  
She also reported on her attendance at the annual League of California Cities 
conference, and she commended the Sister Cities Board for its Concert for 
Peace commemorating the 11th anniversary of September 11, 2001. 

 - Councilmember White reported that the Water Commission met to discuss the 
recommissioning of the City’s hydroelectric plant as well as upgrades being 
made to the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant; he also reported on the 
recent meeting of the Council’s Sustainability Committee. 

 
RECESS 
 
The Mayor recessed the meeting at 4:45 p.m. in order for the Council to reconvene in 
closed session for Agenda Item Nos. 30 and 31, and she stated there would be no 
reportable action taken during the closed sessions. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

30. Subject:  Conference with Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Drew Josfan vs. 
Indochine, et al., USDC Case No. CV 09-07904 AHM (PLAx). 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
 
Documents: 

September 11, 2012, report from the City Attorney. 
 

(Cont’d) 
  



9/11/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 13 

30. (Cont’d) 
 

Time: 
5:46 p.m. – 5:52 p.m. 
 

No report made. 
 

31. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Police 
Management Association, and regarding discussions with certain unrepresented 
managers about salaries and fringe benefits.  
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 

 
Documents: 

September 11, 2012, report from the Assistant City Administrator. 
 

Time: 
5:55 p.m. – 5:59 p.m. 
 

No report made. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 5:59 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 18, 2012 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance and 
Ordinance Committees, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
City Clerk Services Manager Gwen Peirce. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring September 21, 2012 As Alzheimer's Action Day 
(120.04) 

Action: Proclamation presented to representatives of the Alzheimer’s 
Association. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Stella Larson; Kenneth Loch; Sherrie Fisher, Santa Barbara Metropolitan 
Transit District; Phil Walker; Mike Jordan; Juanita Chatham and Shonnie DeArmond, 
Santa Barbara Peace Initiative; Steve Price; K8 Longstory. 
 
 
 
 
 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2 – 13) 
 
The titles of the ordinances related to Consent Calendar items were read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Murillo/Hotchkiss to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote. 

2. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Clean Seas, 
L.L.C. (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Five-Year Lease 
Agreement with One Five-Year Option with Clean Seas, L.L.C. at a Monthly Rent 
of $2,200, for Approximately 1,800 Square Feet of Water Area Adjacent to 
Marina 1-F Finger in the Santa Barbara Harbor, Effective October 18, 2012. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5593; Lease Agreement 
No. 24,252. 

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Amendments To Municipal Code 9.116 
(520.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 9.116 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code Relating to Emergency Services. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5594. 

4. Subject: Adoption Of Ordinance For Signature Flight Support Corporation 
Restated Lease (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the Airport 
Director to Execute a Restated Lease Agreement No. 12,037 Dated August 1, 
1983, As Amended, Between Signature Flight Support Corporation, a California 
Corporation, and the City of Santa Barbara Encompassing Approximately 
938,321 Square Feet Located at 515 Robert Marxmiller Place at the Santa 
Barbara Airport. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5595. 
 
 
 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

5. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Approving Sale Of City Surplus Real Property 
Located At 309 West Ortega Street (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Sale of the Surplus Real 
Property Located at 309 West Ortega Street (APN 037-113-007) to Raquel 
Medina, an Unmarried Woman, in the High Bid Amount of $400,300. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5596; Agreement No. 
24,253. 

6. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Approving Sale Of City Surplus Real 
Property Located At 136 West Haley Street and 306 West Ortega Street (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Sale of the 
Surplus Real Property Located at 136 West Haley Street (APN 037-162-
010) to Victor Kirschbaum, in the high bid amount of $350,000, and 306 
West Ortega Street (APN 037-073-028) to G. Scott Armstrong & Cathy L. 
Armstrong, Trustees of the Armstrong Family Trust U/A/D 2/12/02, in the 
high bid amount of $250,000; and 

B. Authorize the City Administrator to execute the Land Purchase 
Agreements and Escrow Instructions and Title Transfer Documents, as 
approved by the City Attorney, to effectuate the sale of the real property 
located at 136 West Haley Street and 306 West Ortega Street. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (September 18, 2012 report from the 
Public Works Director; proposed ordinance). 

7. Subject:  Contract For Construction For The La Colina Road Sidewalk Infill 
Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract to Mendez Concrete, Inc., waiving minor irregularities, in 

their low bid amount of $239,530.50 for construction of the La Colina Road 
Sidewalk Infill Project, Bid No. 3640;  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 
expenditures up to $25,000 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment;  

C. Accept Measure A Regional Safe Routes to School Grant funding in the 
total amount of $111,004 for construction of the La Colina Road Sidewalk 
Infill Project; and 

(Cont’d) 
 
 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

7. (Cont’d) 
 

D. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
Fiscal Year 2013 Streets Grants Capital Fund by $111,004 for the La 
Colina Road Sidewalk Infill Project. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 24,254 (September 18, 
2012 report from the Public Works Director). 

8. Subject:  Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For Cater Water 
Treatment Plant Advanced Treatment Project (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize an increase in the Public Works 
Director’s change order authority to approve expenditures for extra work for the 
Cater Water Treatment Plant Advanced Treatment Project, Contract No. 23,803 
in the amount of $886,016 for a total project change order authority of 
$2,284,016, bringing the total contract amount to $16,264,016. 
  

 Action:  Approved the recommendation (September 18, 2012 report from the 
Public Works Director). 

9.  Subject:  Contract For Capital Campaign Counsel For Children’s Library And 
Endowment Fundraising Campaign (570.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Library Director to execute a Professional Services Contract 

in a form of contract approved by the City Attorney, with Whaley LeVay in 
the amount of $96,000 for Library Capital Campaign Counsel for a 
fundraising campaign of $5,000,000 for a new Children’s Library and an 
endowment for future library services; 

B.  Authorize the transfer of $96,000 from the Library’s Maximus Trust 
account to the Library Department’s General Fund; and 

C.  Increase estimated revenues and appropriations in the Fiscal Year 2013 
Library Department, General Fund, by $96,000. 

 
Speaker: 
 Staff:  Library Director Irene Macias. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Professional Services Contract No. 
24,255 (September 18, 2012 report from the Library Director). 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

10. Subject:  Purchase Of New Internet Website (170.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Administrative Services Director to negotiate and execute a 

professional services agreement, in a form of agreement acceptable to the 
City Attorney, with PixelPushers, Inc., doing business as Civica Software, for 
the acquisition and implementation of a new City Internet website in an 
amount not to exceed $130,000; 

B. Authorize the Administrative Services Director to approve additional 
services that may be identified during the implementation phase, in an 
amount not to exceed $13,000;  

C. Authorize the Administrative Services Director to negotiate and execute a 
technical support and maintenance agreement, in a form acceptable to the 
City Attorney, for up to four years at an annual cost not to exceed $5,880; 
and 

D. Appropriate $43,000 in the Information Systems Capital Fund from 
reserves to cover the portion of the project not currently covered from 
existing appropriations. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Professional Services Agreement No. 
24,256 (September 18, 2012 report from the Assistant City Administrator/ 
Administrative Services Director). 

NOTICES 

11. The City Clerk has on Thursday, September 13, 2012, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

12. Received letters of resignation from Santa Barbara Youth Council members Will 
Busch, Grant Sexton and Cody Sugarman; the vacancies will be part of the next 
recruitment for City Advisory Groups. 

13. Recruitment for City Advisory Groups: 

A. The City Clerk’s Office will accept applications through Friday, October 19, 
2012, at 5:00 p.m. to fill scheduled vacancies on various City Advisory 
Groups and the unscheduled vacancies resulting from resignations 
received in the City Clerk’s Office through Wednesday, October 3, 2012; 

B. The City Council will conduct interviews of applicants for vacancies on 
various City Advisory Groups on Tuesday, October 30, 2012, at 4:00 p.m. 
(Estimated Time), Tuesday, November 13, 2012, at 6:00 p.m., and 
Tuesday, November 20, 2012, at 4:00 p.m. (Estimated Time); and 

C. The City Council will make appointments to fill vacancies on various City 
Advisory Groups on Tuesday, December 11, 2012. 
 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

14. Subject:  Introduction of Ordinance Adopting The 2012-2013 General Unit 
Memorandum of Understanding (440.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Ratify the Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the Santa 

Barbara City Employees’ Association, Local 620, Service Employees’ 
International Union, for the period of July 1, 2012 through September 30, 
2013 and provide for certain compensation and benefit adjustments for 
Confidential employees, by introduction and subsequent adoption of, by 
reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Adopting the 2012-2013 Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the City of Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara City 
Employees’ Association (General Unit) and Providing for Compensation 
Changes for Confidential Employees; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City Of 
Santa Barbara Amending Resolution No. 12-042, the Position and Salary 
Control Resolution for Fiscal Year 2013, Affecting the Public Works 
Department, Effective September 18, 2012. 

  
Documents: 
      -   September 18, 2012 report from the Assistant City Administrator/ 

Administrative Services Director. 
      -   Proposed Ordinance. 
      -   Proposed Resolution. 

 
 The titles of the ordinance and resolution were read. 
 

Speaker: 
Staff:  Employee Relations Manager Kristine Schmidt. 

 
Motion: 

Councilmembers House/Rowse to approve the recommendations; 
Resolution No. 12-064. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

15. Subject:  Santa Barbara Climate Action Plan (650.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adopting the Santa Barbara Climate 
Action Plan and Making Environmental Findings Pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 

  
 Documents: 

-   September 18, 2012 report from the Assistant City Administrator/ 
Community Development Director. 

-   Proposed Resolution. 
- September 18, 2012 PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by 

Staff. 
- September 18, 2012 document presented by Jim Caldwell, Santa Barbara 

Association of Realtors.  
 
The title of the resolution was read.  
 
 Public Comment Opened: 
  3:29 p.m. 
 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director Paul 
Casey, Project Planner/Environmental Analyst Barbara Shelton, Principal 
Planner John Ledbetter, Water Resources Manager Rebecca Bjork, 
Facilities Manager Jim Dewey. 

      - Members of the Public:  Susan Shank, Santa Barbara League of Women 
Voters; Steve Little; Sherrie Fisher, Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit 
District; Robert Bernstein, Sierra Club; Michael Chiacos, Community 
Environmental Council; Phil Walker; Hillary Hauser, Heal the Ocean; Jim 
Caldwell, Santa Barbara Association of Realtors. 

 
 Public Comment Closed: 
  3:48 p.m. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers White/Francisco to approve the recommendations; 
Resolution No. 12-065. 

Vote: 
Majority roll call vote (Noes:  Councilmember House). 

 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

Information: 
- Councilmember Murillo reported on recent Neighborhood Advisory Council and 

Youth Council meetings. 
-  Councilmember Rowse reported on a recent Downtown Parking Committee 

meeting. 
- Mayor Schneider expressed her appreciation to City staff who participated in the 

United Way Day of Caring event. 
 

RECESS  
 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 4:58 p.m. in order for the Council to 
reconvene in closed session for Agenda Item Nos. 16 and 17, and said that no 
reportable action is anticipated.  
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

16. Subject:  Conference with Legal Counsel – Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Santa Barbara 
Channelkeeper v. City of Santa Barbara, USDC Case No. CV-1103624 JHN 
(AGRx). 

Scheduling:   Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
Report: None anticipated 

 
 Document:   

September 18, 2012 report from the City Attorney. 
 
Time:   

5:03 p.m. – 5:17 p.m. 
 
No report made.  

17. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Police 
Management Association and the new Fire Management Association, and 
regarding discussions with certain unrepresented managers about salaries and 
fringe benefits. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
(Cont’d) 

 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

17. (Cont’d) 
 
Document: 

September 18, 2012 report from the Assistant City Administrator/ 
Administrative Services Director. 

 
Time: 

5:20 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 
 
No report made.  

 
RECESS  
 
6:00 p.m. – 6:03 p.m. 
Mayor Schneider presiding. 
Councilmembers present: Francisco, Hotchkiss, House, Murillo, Rowse, White, Mayor 
Schneider.  
Councilmembers absent:  None.  
Staff present: City Administrator Armstrong, City Clerk Services Manager Peirce. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

18. Subject:  General Plan Implementation - Public Works Priorities (650.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council provide direction on priorities for Public Works 
Department resources regarding implementation of the General Plan and other 
interests in Neighborhood Transportation Management Plans to address 
pedestrian and traffic safety. 
  

 Documents: 
       -   September 18, 2012 report from the Public Works Director. 

      -   September 18, 2012 PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by 
Staff. 

-   September 18, 2012 document and video presented by Caitlin Carlson, 
Coalition for Sustainable Transportation (COAST) Eastside Walks. 

 
 
 

(Cont’d) 
 
 



9/18/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 

18. (Cont’d) 
 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Public Works Director Christine Andersen, Transportation Manager 
Browning Allen, Principal Transportation Planner Rob Dayton.  

- Neighborhood Advisory Council:  Chair Theresa Pena. 
- Members of the Public:  Caitlin Carlson, Ana Rico, Lupe Gonzalez, Eva 

Inbar, Cynthia White, Ann Harkey, Sebastian Aldana, Jr., John Kelley, 
David VanHoy, Dennis Thompson, Jessica Urrea. 

 
Motion: 

Mayor Schneider/Councilmember Francisco to direct staff to conduct 
community outreach and return to Council with both short-term and long-
term implementation projects for the Eastside neighborhood, coinciding 
with the budget process, as well as a policy discussion for the allocation of 
Community Development Block Grant capital funds for Fiscal Year 2014.  

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 7:53 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA  
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  GWEN PEIRCE, CMC 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 



Agenda Item No.  2 
File Code No.  330.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business & Property Division, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Accurate 

Aviation Group, Inc. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Seven-Year Lease Agreement with 
Accurate Aviation Group, Inc., Dated as of October 31, 2012, at a Monthly Rental of 
$6,066, for Two Maintenance Hangars of 3,000 and 3,522 Square Feet, Respectively, 
51,548 Square Feet of Ramp Space, and Associated Parking, at 101 Cyril Hartley 
Place, at the Santa Barbara Airport, for Operation of a General Aviation Maintenance 
Shop. 
  
 DISCUSSION: 
 
Accurate Aviation, Inc. has been an Airport tenant since August 1, 2006. Accurate is the 
designated aircraft maintenance operator for Atlantic Aviation with a repair station in 
Hangar 5, at 204 Wm. Moffett Place. They also lease storage space in Building 122 at 302 
Wm. Moffett Place.   
 
They now propose to lease two hangars, ramp space and vehicle parking at 101 Cyril 
Hartley Place for operation of a general aviation maintenance shop, in addition to their 
other facilities.  The subject premises is located south of Hollister Avenue in an Airport 
Facilities (AF) zone. 
 
The basic terms of the proposed lease are as follows: 
 
 Term:  Seven years 
 Rent:  $6,066 per month plus 7 additional parking spaces at $14/month  

Rental Adjustment:  Annual Cost of Living increase based upon the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Accurate Aviation Group, Inc. 
September 25, 2012 
Page 2 

 

The proposed Lease Agreement has been negotiated based upon the criteria set forth 
in Resolution 93-127, and has been reviewed and determined to be exempt from 
environmental review.  Airport Commission recommended approval at their June 20, 
2012 meeting. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Rebecca Fribley, Sr. Property Management Specialist 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Karen Ramsdell, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ORDINANCE NO.  ________ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING A SEVEN-YEAR LEASE 
AGREEMENT WITH ACCURATE AVIATION GROUP, INC., 
DATED AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2012, AT A MONTHLY 
RENTAL OF $6,066, FOR TWO MAINTENANCE 
HANGARS OF 3,000 AND 3,522 SQUARE FEET, 
RESPECTIVELY, 51,548 SQUARE FEET OF RAMP 
SPACE, AND ASSOCIATED PARKING, AT 101 CYRIL 
HARTLEY PLACE, AT THE SANTA BARBARA AIRPORT, 
FOR OPERATION OF A GENERAL AVIATION 
MAINTENANCE SHOP. 
 

 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.   In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the 
City of Santa Barbara, that certain seven-year Lease Agreement between the City of 
Santa Barbara and Accurate Aviation Group, Inc., dated as of October 31, 2012, which 
provides for the lease of 51,548 square feet of land, including ramp space, vehicle 
parking and two hangars for the operation of a General Aviation Maintenance shop at 
the Santa Barbara Municipal Airport, effective upon the adoption of the enabling 
ordinance, is hereby approved. 



ORDINANCE NO.______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA APPROVING THE SALE OF 
THE SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
136 WEST HALEY STREET (APN 037-162-010) TO 
VICTOR KIRSCHBAUM, IN THE HIGH BID AMOUNT 
OF $350,000, AND 306 WEST ORTEGA STREET 
(APN 037-073-028) TO G. SCOTT ARMSTRONG & 
CATHY L. ARMSTRONG, TRUSTEES OF THE 
ARMSTRONG FAMILY TRUST U/A/D 2/12/02, IN 
THE HIGH BID AMOUNT OF $250,000 

 
WHEREAS, at its meeting of October 25, 2011, the City Council authorized the 
Public Works Director to sell the surplus real property located at 136 West Haley 
Street (APN 037-162-010) at public auction; 
 
WHEREAS, at its meeting, April 10, 2012, the City Council authorized the Public 
Works Director to sell the surplus real property located at 306 West Ortega Street 
(APN 037-073-028) at public auction;  
 
WHEREAS, on August 22, 2012, pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
Chapter 4.28 and as duly noticed, the City of Santa Barbara  conducted a public 
auction for the sale of the property located at 136 West Haley Street (APN 037-
162-010); 
 
WHEREAS, on August 28, 2012, pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
Chapter 4.28 and as duly noticed, the City of Santa Barbara  conducted a public 
auction for the sale of the property located at 306 West Ortega Street (APN 037-
073-028); 
 
WHEREAS, Victor Kirschbaum, a single man, was the winning highest bidder at 
$350,000 for the property at 136 West Haley Street, and G. Scott Armstrong & 
Cathy L. Armstrong, Trustees of Armstrong Family Trust U/A/D 2/12/02, were the 
winning highest bidder at $250,000 for the property at 306 West Ortega Street; 
 
WHEREAS, Victor Kirschbaum has executed and delivered a Land Purchase 
Agreement and Escrow Instructions to the City for the purchase of the property at 
136 West Haley Street in the amount of $350,000;  
 
WHEREAS,  G. Scott Armstrong & Cathy L. Armstrong, Trustees of Armstrong 
Family Trust U/A/D 2/12/02, have executed and delivered a Land Purchase 
Agreement and escrow Instructions to the City for the purchase of the property at 
306 West Ortega Street in the amount of $250,000; and 
 



WHEREAS, City Charter Section 520 requires that the sale of real property 
owned by the City be approved by the adoption of an ordinance.   
             
NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.   That the sale of the surplus real property located at 136 West 
Haley Street (APN 037-162-010) to Victor Kirschbaum, in the high bid amount of 
$350,000 is approved; 
 
SECTION 2. That the sale of surplus real property located at 306 West Ortega 
Street (APN 037-073-028) to G. Scott Armstrong & Cathy L. Armstrong, Trustees 
of Armstrong Family Trust U/A/D 2/12/02, in the high bid amount of $250,000 is 
approved; and 
 
SECTION 3.    That upon the successful completion of the respective escrows, 
and upon the effective date of this Ordinance, First American Title Co. Inc. is 
authorized to record the respective Grant Deeds transferring the property located 
at 136 West Haley Street to Victor Kirschbaum, and transferring the property 
located at 306 West Ortega Street to Armstrong Family Trust U/A/D 2/12/02, in 
the Official Records, in the office of the County Recorder, Santa Barbara County. 
 



ORDINANCE NO.  _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ADOPTING THE 2012-2013 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND THE SANTA BARBARA 
CITY EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION (GENERAL UNIT) AND 
PROVIDING FOR COMPENSATION CHANGES FOR 
CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Santa Barbara 
and the Santa Barbara City Employees' Association, Local 620, Service Employees' 
International Union, effective as of July 1, 2012 and attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference as Exhibit "A" (hereinafter the “M.O.U.”) is hereby adopted. 
 
SECTION 2.  The 2012-2013 Salary Plan Applicable to Unrepresented Non-supervisory 
Confidential Employees, effective July 1, 2012 and attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference as Exhibit "B", (hereinafter the “Confidential Salary Plan”) is hereby 
approved.. 
 
SECTION 3.  During the term of the M.O.U. and salary plan, the City Administrator is 
hereby authorized to implement the terms contained therein without further action by the 
City Council, unless such further action is explicitly required by state or federal law.  This 
authorization shall include, but not be limited to, the authority to implement employee 
salary increases and changes to the salary schedule(s) that were adopted with the annual 
budget. 
 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN

Exhibit A

THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
AND THE

SANTA BMBARA CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 620
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION

THIS AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO AS OF

_________

BETWEEN THE CITY OF SANTA
BARBA. HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE ‘CITY’, AND THE SANTA BARBARA CITY
EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION. LOCAL 620, SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION,
HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS “THE UNION”.

Pursuant to Section 3.12 of the Municipal Code of the City & Santa Barbara and Section 3500 et. seq. of
the Government Code, the duly authorized representatives of the City and the Union! having met and
conferred in good faith concerning the issue of wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment, as
herein set forth declare their agreement to the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding.

FOR THE CITY:

Kristine Schmidt
Employee Relations Manager

Michelle DeCant
Public Works Business Manager

FOR THE UNION:

Jeff Miller
General Unit Chairperson

Thomas Dietz
Sr. Waterfront Maintenance Worker

Karl ‘rreiberg
Waterfront Facilities Manager

Christie Lanning
Human Resources Analyst

Dave Harris
Automotive/Equipment Tech

Brad Klein
Maintenance Wor*er II

Stanley Macias
Painter

Aundray Richey
Sr. Streets Maintenance Worker

Lesley Torgeson
NetworklApplications Analyst

Cynthia Goena
S.E.I.U., Local 620



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Alphabetical by Adicle Title

ARTICLE TITLE PAGE

BENEFITS - PERMANENT PART-TIME EMPLOYEES

2. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

3. BILINGUAL SKILLS

4. BULLETIN BOARDS 2

5. CAFETERIA PLAN 2

5. CHILD CARE 2

7. CITY RIGHTS AND EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 2

B. DISABILITY RETIREMENT

9. DISCIPLINARY ACTION

10. DIVE SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL 3
11. DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP HEALTH BENEFITS

12. DRESS CODES 4
13. DRUG AND ALCOHOLTESTING POLICIES 4
14. ENGINEER PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION PAY 4

IS. EDUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 4

10. FLEXIBLE STAFFING 4

17. GRIEVANCES/DISPUTES S

lB. HEALTH AND SAFETY 7

19. HEALTH INSURANCES (MEDICAL. OENTAL VISION)

20. HOLIDAYS 9
21. IMPLEMENTATION OF MOU 9
22. JOBANNOUNCEMENT, TRANSFERS AND RULE OF 10 10

23. JURYIWITNESS DUTY 10
24. LAYOFF POLICY 10
25. LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND BENEFITS DURING SUCH LEAVES II

26. LIFE INSURANCE 12

27. LONG-TERM DISABILITY 12

28. MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS 12

29, MECHANICS’ TOOLS 12

30. MUNICIPAL CODE CHANGES 13

31. NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT 13
32. ONE-TIME PAYMENT 13

33. OVERTIME 13

34. PAYROLL 14

35. PERSONAL LEAVE IS

30. PERSONAL PROPERTY DAMAGE REIMBURSEMENT IS

37. PROBATIONARY PERIOD 16

38. PURPOSE 16
30. RECOGNITION IS
40. REPRESENTATION - UNION OFFICERS AND REPRESENTATIVES 17



41. RETIREE MEDICAL INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION 17
42. RETIREMENT 18
43. RETIREMENT PE-OPENEP 19
44. RETROACTIViTY 19
45. SAFETY EQUIPMENT IS
46. SALARIES S COMPENSArrON ANALYSIS/SALARY SURVEY 20
47. SERVICE CREDIr FOR SICK LEAVE UPON RETIREMENT 21
43. SEVERABILITY 21
49. SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL 21
5G. SICK LEAVE 22
SI. STANDBY PAY 22
52. STArE DISABILITY INS’JP.ANCE SDII AND STATE PAID FAMILY LEAVE

INSURANCE (PFLI 22

53. TERM OF AGREEMENr AND RENEWAL 23
54. TRAINING 23
55. TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT 24
56. IJNA’JTHORIZED LEAVE 25
57 UNIFORM MAINTENANCE ALLOWANCE 25
SO UNION BUSINESS ATTENDANCE 25
59 IJNION NOTICE- EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION & INTERDEPARTMENTAL TEAMS 25
60. UNION SECUPITY (AGENCY SHOP & MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP 25
61. UNION STEWAP.DS 28
61. USE OF COr.3PIJTER RESO’JRCE 28
63. VACATION POLICY 28
. VACATION SICK LEAVE ADVANCED CREDIT UPON HIRE 29

65. VLIVEP 9
66. WORK SCHEDULE 29

67. WORKERS COrIpENSArION 30
/CJN3 CUT CF ASS ‘ItA1D’i SI

AFFENS X , -
S-:De--./ Exr es

APPENX- CIc. Owe ccs
APPETO. C - C7:?cr.’ ace

?PPENO ( C- CI 0 Sam, Sa,aa Dc ar AECoI Ths -; c Ge&a
A’PE’CI)s E- P ö V dCy

AEND X - A1ee,e- Rs 2a,s Cea’es
AEND )ç 3- Eta, F1.a-



1. BENEFITS - PERMANENT PART-TIME EMPLOYEES

a. Employees filling positions authorized by the City Council in the City’s official list of authorized
positions at 20 hours or more per week on a less than full time basis shall receive benefits as foffos:

Cafeteria plan contribution, medical contribution, dentaF confribution. vision contribution,
and holiday equal to the percent & time regularly scheduled versus a regular work week rounded
up to the nearest ten percent (10%).
ii. Vacation, and sick leave equal to the percent of time worked versus a
regular work week rounded up to the nearest ten percent (10%).

b. Notwithstanding the above, the City may create one or more hybrid “part-time/seasonal” Recreation
Program Leader positions with Cafeteria plan conthbution, medical confribution. dental contribution, vision
contribution, and holiday benefits pro-rated at the regular part-time (PPT) level. These positions may be
required to flex-up to full-time during the summer season without a corresponding increase in benefits.
(Example: Employee works 25 hours per week year-round, qualifying for 70% benefits, and can be required
to work 40 hours for the summer season without a benefit increase from 70%).

c. Employees already filling positions authorized by City Council in the official 2004-2005 Position and
Salary Conol Resolution at 2Q hours or more per week on a less-than-full-time basis as of september a,
2004 will continue to receive full-time health benefits (cafeteria plan contribution, medical contribution, dental
contribution, vision contribution).

2. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

a. The bereavement leave policy shall be up to five (5) days leave with pay and shall include the
following immediate family members: mother father, brother, sister. spouse, child, grandparents by blood
or marriage, grandchildren by blood or marriage. mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law.
daughter-in-law, son-in-law. person standing in loco parentis (in place of the parents). and step family
members. In addition to the immediate family members listed herein, an emproyee shalt be eligible for up to
five (5) days bereavement leave with pay for his/her domestic partner and the domestic partners immediate
family, as defined above, In order to receive this benefit. domestic partners must be registered with the City
Clerk’s office or the Secretary of State,

The intent of bereavement leave is to provide employees with adequate time to be with their immediate
family during a period of anguish. whether it be at the time of death, preparation of funeral arrangements
and/or to attend a funeral.

b. The parties agree that co-worker funeral attendance will be acceptable to the City upon Department
Head approval consistent with maintenance of operations.

c. Though bereavement leave pay is not applicable, the City shall encourage departments to make
reasonable efforts to allow employees to use accrued vacation, compensatory time- or personal leave to
attend the funeral of an aunt. uncle. or cousin,

3. BILINGUAL SKILLS

a, The City and the Union agree to encourage employees to voluntarily develop bilingual skills in
instances where the public contact nature of their jobs would make such skills valuable.

Any employee whose duty assignments require frequent and regular use of bilingual language skills in
Spanish and in English with members of the public shall be designated by the Department Head in writing
and said designation shatl be approved by the Human Resources Manager. who shall test and certify the
employees br language proficiency.



As used in this section- the phrase recular and frequenr means at least several times in each woricing
week. Designation of the bilingual language skill is restricted to the actual needs of the position. An
employeers ability to r,a.1. write or speak Spanish occasionally or. incidental use of language skills in
Spanish, or the use of hitingual kilts other than for the purpose of meeting the requirements of the job shall
not warrant a bilingual designation.

b. The City ahair provide art uadated list ci designated employees at the Unions written request no
more than once every six (Or months. In addition. the City shall provide a list of designated employees to
the Union within Q days or ratiticgtrurr of this MOU.

c. All employees designated for use or bilingual skills by their Department Head shall receive S64.QQ
per pay period.

4. BULLETIN BOARDS

The City agrees to lurnish space for ur,ior,-ixirchased bulletin boards of a reasonable size for posting of
Union material The specihc locations of the. bLitletin boards shall be approved by the City and shall include
but not be limited to the following work stations:

Bulletin Board Locations
City Hall Police Depa,tnrent
Maw Library and Branches Harbor Maineriar,ce Shop
Street Division Parks flepamerit
Golf Course Maintenance Water Resources Division-Yard
Pu hhc Vi orks -E n’Ji nec ring I Cs Ga rage
Fire Dept. StatEon l Wastewater rreatment Plant
Airport Maintenance Shop Recreation Depanment Administration Building
Airport Mminietration eliildiri.j Community Deelopnient

Other workstations may be added upon approval & the City b mutual aqeenrerlt.

5. CAFETERIA PLAN

a A fle.cible bee’its oI.,, kiown as a 125 CaFeteria Plait and the ,ome-tak advantaQe provisions

7a:e Is J*,e5 —.. ra. Crra :s,orc.:gca arc scperEa 5 _5CC

c-t—r.Loe ar e 595-s gasccrs —E g U Sec. ‘aSici 2 ‘C Iea tee
Ccce s-ad be srs ,se.r ro C e ca Ea so e— p.cyee s.a Se sic zfe :o a osare a cissre<..r a,, a 21

?2. 3S as

b. I —)CDCa zel-:a. SD :5 I Sflte a e,ceed Ire saea fr35 xax :5

aa:-eere—ce c 9ese esae-$e :SSaU er r5 Jo IC -s rct-rs , te Jezca hsra’ca
De—re -s.e-ce aO 509 rsrarce seC:iO (A t •an sa atD:e 2’ rn ASj Sac e,ress

n- a,—e—:s ca—-by be aseO IC yr. er eePee: 1 lie ‘eetI oSt.

6. CHILD CARE

Dy x asv-e a e-:aw sa, rerLr t sla ‘y e aflre ce2a: cac -reecs — aod else ,ri
Sec o 129 of i-c I-er-a Re:ejeCcs

7. CITY RIGHTS AND EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

The sates 37cc I-ar re Cr, as y esLs:e a: :a a,ae aid ec Vt petmate & Sr. ces ac

otI ft:se aei’w— -a ax,- sev’ses S ass Fe Cv aS st,tca deegaet. 02v4 c. 2 T 39

c.e cr:s -in- a9ee—e— Sr ;,s sI 90 bR -0 t n.:a: :0 1€ sce ftt 0 cee-e —e

a- sat s-vi st-re re Cry es S eves rt :1t€ 0 svces :0 be orcttc. Ce:e ‘e —s

—toss —es-s ac -‘-te- .2 0&s&le by It ocea:os ac :o be 5GCret t_C 9 5545



authority to contract or subcontract for municipal services, and to exercise complete control and discretion
over he technotogy of performing the City’s woric. The City retains complete authority over the policies and
direction and administration of all City Departments including but not limited to standards and methods of
selection for employment; promotion and performance evaluation: disciplinary action; relief of employees
from duty because of lack of work or other legitimate reasons; maintenence of the efficiency of government
operations: and determination of the content of job classifications consistent with applicable laws and with
due regard for provisions of this agreement.

Employees represented by the Union shall have the right to form, join, and participate in the activities of the
Union for the purpose of representation on all matters of employee relations. The City shall not interfere
with, intimidate, restrain, coerce, or discriminate against emproyees because of their exercise of these
rights.

0. DISABILITY RETIREMENT

a, An employee found either physically or mentally incompetent to perform hisiher regular duties shall,
if possible, be provided with he opportunity for transter, promotion or demotion to a position for which
he/she possesses the physical or mental competence. or other action pursuant to Federal or State law
andlor City Charter.

An employee found not to be disabled within 90 days shall be reinstated with back pay and benefits
to the date such pay and benefits ceased.

c. In no case shall an industrially injured employee be entitled to use sick leave benefits to postpone
the effective date of retirement.

d. An employee eligible to retire for non-industrial disability shall be entied to use sick leave benefits
to extend the date the employee is first eligible to receive retirement benets for up to a maximum of ninety
(90) days.

0. DISCIPLINY ACTION

The City flay provide the option of forfeiture of vacation time in lieu of taking other disciplinary action
pursuant to Charter Section 1007 and enabling ordinances.

10. DIVE SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL

a. Waterfront maintenance employees who are authorized and agree to assignments) by the
department to conduct underwater dive operations in the performance of maintenance-related duties- will
be eligible for dive shift differential for each shift that the employee performs dive operations.

b. Differential pay will be at an hourly rate equivalent to the graveyard shift differential. All time
setting up dive equipment, performing safety checks, and donning and doffing dive gear (wetsuit, BCD.
etc. as authorized by management shall be considered dive operations on City paid time.

c. Divers must comply with all dive certification and safety rules promulgated by the City. An
employee scheduled to perform dive operations may choose not to dive at any time, by notifying the
employee’s supervisor, if the employee has a concern that to do so would likely jeopardize the safety of
themselves. a co-worker, or member of the public due to weather conditions or any other reason.

11. DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP HEALTH BENEFITS

The City shall allow same sex and opposite sex domestic partners dependent coverage under the medical!
dental, and vision ptans. In order to receive this benefit, domestic partners must be registered with the City
Clerk’s office or the Secretary of State. The affected employee(s) shall be responsible for all tax
consequences of this benefit.

3



12. DRESS CODES

It is agreed that employees recognize and will comply with standards of dress consistent with the positive
representation of (he City government through its employees and consistent with uniform requirements and
safety policies established by the City. Failure to do so will result in an employee being directed to contorm
to the appropriate dress standard. No dress codes other than (he above standard are to be established in
the various departments.

13. DRUG AND AILOHOL TESTING POLICIES

Employees with commercial drivers licenses in safety sensit&e positions are subject to the City of Santa
Barbara Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy Pursuant to Department of Transportation Regulations.

Employees not subject to the City Of Santa Barbara Drug And Alcohol Testing Policy Pursuant Tc
Department Of Transportauon Regulations are subject to pre-employment drug testing and post-accident
drug and alcohol testing pursuant to the City of Santa Barbara Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy for
General Unit Employees, attached hereto as Appendix 0.

14. ENGINEER PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION PAY

a- When the Department Head assigns an employee in the classification of Project Engineer icr
Project Engineer II in the Public Works Engineering Division to maintain the ability to assume responsible
charge for sealing City design projects by using his/her professional registration, that employee shall
receive an additional 5.0% of his/her base salary. The employee must maintain a current California
registration to remain eligible for such pay.

b. With the written approval of the City Administrator, based on the needs of the City, the
Department Head may also assign such responsibility, with corresponding registration pay, to either

i. A Project Engineer I or Project Engineer ii with current California registration as a
professional engineer who is assigned to a Division other than the Engineering Division,
or

ii. An employee in a classification other than Project Engineer I or Project Engineer II with
current California registration as a professionat engineer.

c. City agrees to provide the union a list of emp[oyees receiving such pay upon the u nions’ request.

15, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

a. The City and the Union agree that the provisions of this agreement shall be applied equally to all
employees covered herein without lavor or discrimination because of race, creed. color. sexlgender. age,
national origin, political or re’igicus affiliations, Union membership. sexual orientation. marital status.
disability. or pregnancy,

b. The City and the Union agree to commit themselves to the goal of equal employment opportunity in
all City services. Further, the Union agrees to encourage their members to assist in the implementation of
the equal employment opportunity program.

16. FLEXIBLE STAFFING

The City may choose to flexibly staff classifications within any class series containing an entsy and journey
level position. Flexible staffing gives the City the ability to hire employees at the entry level or the journey
level depending upon applicant qualifications and City staffing needs.

4



An official list of the flexibly staffed classilications sbafl be maintained by Human Resources. Classifications
designated as flexibly staffed would not require an examination nor the establishment of an eligible list for an
incumbent to promote from the entry [evel to the fourney level classification. The City retains the exclusive
right to determine if and when an employee may advance from the entry to the journey level.

Flexible staffing does not preclude the City from identifying certain positions that would be permanently
assigned to the entry level for as long as their duties and responsibilities remain within the entry-level

17. GRIEVANCESIDISPUTES

a. Grievances shall be defined as an alleged violation of this agreement or dispute regarding
interpretations, application, or enforcement of this agreement or the City Charter, City ordinances,
resolutions, and written policies related to personnel policies and working conditions. Grievances shall not
include disagreements, disputes, or activities rearding or pertaining to examinations for empioment or
promotion, disciplinary action, performance evaluations! probationary terminations and items subject to
meet and confer.

No act or activity which may be grievabie may be considered for resolution unless a grievance is tiled in
accordance with the procedure contained herein within twenty (20 working days of the date the grievabie
activity occurred or the date the employee could reasonably have knoM1 such activity occurred.

b. The Union agrees that whenever investigation or processing of a grievance is to be transacted
during working hours! only the amount of time necessary to bring about a prompt disposition of the matter
wil] be utilized. At he Cits discretion, time spent by City employees on the investigation and processing of
grievances will be recorded on a form provided by management.

Stewards will be permitted reasonable time off with pay for the investigation and processing of grievances
after first obtaining permission frcni his/her Department Head. Such permission will be granted promptly
unless such absence would cause an undue interruption of work.

Upon entering a work location, the Steward shall inform the appropriate Department Head and supervisor of
the nature of his/her business. An employee pursuing a grievance shall be granted permission to leave the
job unless such absence would cause an undue interruption of work, if the employee can not be made
available, the Steward will be immediatety informed when the employee will be made available.

c. The parties agree that all grievances will be processed in accordance with the following procedure.

Steo One
Any employee who has a grievance shall first try to get it settled through discussion with his/her
immediate supervisor without undue delay. Every effort shall be made to find an acceptable solution at
the lowest possible level of supervision.

Steo Two
if after such discussion the employee does not believe the grievance has been satisfactorily resolved, be
or she may tile a formal appeal in writing to his/her Department Head within ten (10) working days after
receiving the informal decision of his/her immediate supervisor.

The Department Head receiving the formal appeal shall render his/her written decision and comment to
the employee within ten (10) working days after receiving the appeal.

Steo Three
if. within ten (10) working days after receipt of the written decision of the Department Head the employee
is still dissatisfied, he or she may request the services of a mediator from the State Mediation and
Conciliation Service.

S



Step Four
If, within ten (10) working days aYter the mediation process has been completed, the emp[oyee is still
dissatisfied he or she may rile a written appeal of the decision of the Department Head to the City
Administrator. The City Administrator shall review information provided by the employee, the decision of
the Department Head, and sucgestions or information provided by the Mediator. The City Adminisfrator
shall render his/her decision within enty-r’ve (2S) working days after the appeal is filed. Except as
provided under Steo Five. beloc. the City Adii,inistrators decision shall be considered final.

Step Five

Request br ArbitrMlon
If the grievant a not satisfied with the decision at Step Four, he/she may, within fifteen (15) worlcing days
after the decision,, mailed by the City Administrator, and with the concurrence of the Union, submit a
request in ‘aai(ing to ti,e City to proceed to arbitration The Union shall have the right to invoke the
arbitration procedcjre cr1 beh..RlF of a class of employees. Arbitrarion shall be conducted in accordance
with the rijles and rjrrjcerjijres deleleated in this Article

Selection of Arbitrator
The parties shall make a coid fith effoa to select a mutually acceptable arbirsator from a designated list
o’ available arbitrators If hev unable to agree on an arbitrator within [en (10) days of the submission
ol the grievance to arhitratiuri. tile parties shall request a panel of e.perienced arbiators from the
California State Mediation and Conciliario’, Service, Eacit party shall alternately strike a name until only
one name remains The partr’.thlo strikes tirst shall be tleterrctined by lot. By mutual agreement, the
arbitration may be held under the E:pedited Rules of file Arileric1tt Arbitrati’on Association.

Unless the parties agree otheratse. a hearing shall be cciltrTlerlcetl within Sixty (dO days from selection
arM, arbitrator.

Arbitrators AuthorIty
Only those issues which directly relate to alleged violations of thus Mentorar,dum of Understanding or the
City Charter. City ordinances, resokitions and vgitten policies ‘elated to personnel policies and working
condttirins shall he subler.t to arhiat’on, In addition. m.toer for which a separate and coniprehensive
administrative process ava’labl that provides a remedy no less complete than that provided in
arbitration are not within the scope of his prcoedijre, Eamples of such comprehensive processes are:
discria. ce,roIa, ccItrt,1 Lv EEOC, OF°H sa’e’1 ccrclaws tree Cai ar QSA
ecfles cc—relsaro- —‘a::es. ac C’. Serte a*es e azitra:c’ 1 ‘ac c e’oacd:o
at o:rart is — C - — C”f l-e er-s 04 i A eal’at I-a S C- eref , &crarcea, 0 &

Sc ces rjes, ec..aJ:r.s c snjcec.,e.s ci ne C., Tie a,: -s:I hc.e.e. a/ r re Cases
ce:e-r -— ne qtes.Io-s vcce’tr cteo CO CC.5 Se a.The-ns are e.tseca zaaec Or

SubcnissionA9,ee,nent’Due.l arm Regarding Athtrab4lty
I I-ic —a--e a-c açee x, a ssc aIetVtf: 1 C at/Site’ a SetW C S5.5

fl fr-c c- u c ate ac ic iaep al eacP sJe, ‘a y stes: Cl a.Se as to te
p wr earSe s, oesn sL be t cc so’ s C e a’tiratr, ZtO CO iea-rz te

ire s ci ‘-c ie”aicQ

Hearlop Pro cadur,
E.,.cp: a5 -,l:eG - ‘is °.re nc flab,’ ea sfl.. e ccrec r acrCxe at, :1-e

Lano 4sal ci F.i 2 t Accan Aiaic, Assecia &

D.c ion
a iew 9 a-c a- cpocrrv; 0 p(cse Sr DCS ay&ns as na1 tte aDccxtae e

rr*-a:cr..’’ak p a .s_-—-. Die e”C.i.o Sse -w des ,dirr my Ze: Cays ta ne
coc.sr n- - The RwDlahc eCsicr s,a be r: xj ac set ‘or t’Se ‘r&Cs of

reasor -9 or le sejes s.rl:tec, ‘-e cecslcr sa be i- a,-d pieng or re



parties.

Costs
All costs for the services of the arbitrator. including, but not limited to. per dierii expenses, tiavel and
subsistence shall be shared equally by the parties. Any cost incurred to ohbiirt the Lise at a he.aring room
shall be shared by the parties. All other costs shall be borne by the partj incuffirlg t[ierrr.

d. The riffle limitations for fiting and responding to grievances may he waived or estarkied by mutual
acreernent of the parties. If either party to the grievance so requests. intorrltal hearing shall be
conducted at the Depehinent Head or City Administrator appeal levels. Employees ‘ray be represerite.d by
counsel or other person at any stage in the grievance process

Gnevances ,hhich are general in character and which involve interpretation Or application of this
MOU or City policies or which involve matters requiring resolution outside the autflorit at the eniployce’s
Decee—e. [sac saI ze ec drecv Vt.— —c Asss:a—: O., c—’w 5,5:0’ .ct sSa tr.’e a •p.u,e

wt— Er ‘‘‘— d:

A e,>r.te —e’ ace ne -Es,z--5ert C Ass.s:a-l C : 4t— s:—c’ Tie e yoes acota sa 0

FOC Cd aecytata A:5 t-e o-c.ac..-es DeC 5 s:ec ice atote

* 2 sr.:es G cGp a-:s —etz -n ore— c—ce: e C4 Q % __5

St a ot orvDesseD i accDc0e vr tie 0 c-y %cOXSC , ye C :. .40 r lav Tie C Ss I rcrst.
:e Lo ro Co a000ic c,aersl ‘: sci coio.

Thscjcee it c o:s ea: g r.er’cnac-e ara sa a ct C scssec C ?eavcs

nace -Se acysa er0’vee dea: Cc n:lte i4r6 rS,Drse SC’_st Se

corflpiaini virn me !noN!raa! at me next nigner ievei of supervision v/nose flecisrorl Sriaii be Thai. An
employee may be represented by counsel or other individual durinG these discijssioi is.

18. HEALTH MID SFEY

a ‘-.e cit1 ad -ic Jr c- 3ree :0 30cc a DV s c.’:—eOacr — ar arrc
acrcve ,.e Drs otrl-e ere-a C .Daa-e Saety 4ea :1’ AcI 9?0 310

t. sat ri -as -a cc rassec r re 54e o Ca t to — rov-r: :1-a: p Cl- — e :, eDo) IaS :1-a: : S

re &r C’ ‘9 cm to raj— 5r (eo-aoe eeoc cace arc •‘IaI• a safe 3iCe
erA,re: ieJor i core-ate ‘y erta-ar -‘ rj;ee t; ekvr lCt wx. r a sa’e

‘e & D 54 eDe-eeS — re casa of ‘c--.u- t-e -cite, :0 Se act to .rsa e acceS
CDO irs a : 0 *e: am 5.0’ -553€ nmc 0 yrc :o :c re r--

ssae sn-s Sr co-cto--s Ca C: tie S5 s&rcti reatced by te ncSe s.flr, SC,. a’
69) cveE -:- r -: :o s2r: 1-c nm e-lc- ¶6 leva-d :o1-s -& O,nate:
rleac cc -‘5:56- 4e5a43c C .v mate, o4 ae:’, tat s fl reSo:’c. eos.it:a:.oR -.

take piace between management and Union representatpvss. Crimpliance with basic sfety reuir,mnls
will be pan of each emnpbte’s pedorniance evaluation criteria.

The Cu’1 agrees to conduct a Safety Program on City time for the purpose of educating employees
concerning the provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Act as well as the Cily’s safely fiolicies.
The Union aglees to support without qualification the Cits Sety Prograi,, arid SMII encourage it members
to attend safely courses if required by the City and made available on City liii1e. T he City aQrees that any
salety courses the employees are required to take will be provided on City tii ne with pay and trial trst aid
trainng shari be provided to City designated employees in an on-duty slalus

Both the City and the Union recognize the need and will strive to reduoe the number of industrial
injuries among the employees.

The parties agree that the City shall perform on-site safety inspeclion in major woric sites at least
once a year and to hold regular safety meetings with departmental safety coordinators It is fudher agreed

7



that the City shall continue to maintain vehicles and equipment in a safe operaung condition and (hat no
employee will be penalized for refusing to use vehicles or equipment proven to be unsafe pursuant to state
law.

e- In departments where regular safety meetings are conducted, if minutes of those meetings are
taken, copies of those minutes shall be posted on departmental bulletin boards. Departmental stewards will
be perniiffed to place items on (he safety meeting agenda and to attend these meetings to explain those
items.

The City shall comply sith all Slate and federal requirements that pertain to the operation of
computer equipment. In addition, as part of its commitment to making a reasonable effort to provide and
maintain a safe place of employment the City shall review the Health and Safety implications of operating
computer equipment.

g. Departments shall maintain binders of current Matehal Safety Data Sheets on substances with
which unit employees work or come into contact. These binders shall be made available for inspection at all
reasonable times.

19. HEALTH INSURflICES MEDICAL DENTAL VISIONI

a. Medica’ Insurance- The City agrees to provide an annual open enrollment to employees for
medical insurance. The parties agree that the City will pay up to a maximum per employee per month as
foil ova:

Eective Date Maximum Per Month Per Emcioee
July I. 2012 $990.01

It is agreed that should the amount of subject premium be less than the medical insurance limits described
above, the difference between the employee-only premium and said dollar amount shall be applied to
employee dependent medical coverage- if any.

The City retains full and complete control over the selection, approval and administration of the City’s group
insurance program. However, group insurance benefits in effect at the commencement of this agreement
shall be maintained to the extent it is within the control of the City.

The City agrees to provide all premium cost projections including the annua’ actuarial reports or rate
increase notifications to the Union as soon as reasonably practical following receipt of said projections.

b. Dental Insurance— The parties agree that the City shall pay up to a maximum per month per
employee towards the dental insurance premium as toirows.

Effeobve Date Maximum Per Month Per EmDioyee
July I 2012 $82.60

The City retains complete and full control over the administration of this dental program subject to
maintenance of benefits equivalent to those provided for the term of this agreement, to the extent it is within
the control of the City.

The City wilt continue to provide a Dental FIMO opton (currently Golden West).

d. Vision Insurance— The City agrees to provide an annual open enrollment to employees for vision
insurance. The City shall pay up to a maximum per month per employee towards the vision insurance
premium as follows:

Effective Date Maximum Per Month Per Employee
July 1.2012 S10,21

B



Employees who drop vision insurance shall not be able to re-enroll within two years of dropping coverage.

20. HOLIDAYS

a. The City and the Union agree that the following days shall be observed as legal holidays by all
employees in the Unit:

January let (New Year’s Day)

3rd Monday in January fMartin Luther King Jr.’s Birthday)

3rd Monday in February (Washington’s Birthday)

March 3I (Cesar Chavez Day)

Last Monday in May (Memorial Day)

July 4th (Independence Day)

1st Monday in September (Labor Day)

4th Thursday in November (Thanksgiving)

The Friday immediately following Thanksgiving Day.

December 25th (Christmas Day)

b. When a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday the preceding Friday or following Monday
respectively shall be observed as a legal holiday.

c. Whenever a holiday occurs on an employee’s regularly scheduled day off, the employee is entitled
to an additional day off. Such day off shall be taken within thirty (SO) calendar days or shall be
compensated at straight pay after the 3O’ day.

d. When an employee is required to work on a day hat is being observed as a legal holiday, the
employee shall receive tine and one half for the hours worked on that day. The employee will also be
entitled to an additional day oft. Such day oft shall be taken within thirty (30) calendar days or shall be
compensated at straight pay after the 3O’ day

e. Nothing in this agreement shall preclude the City from declaring a holiday when a legal holiday has
been declared by the President of the United States or the Governor of the State of California.

The City will solicit volunteers within a work unit to work on Thanksgiving and Christmas. If an
insufficient number of volunteers are available, then the supervisor shall make every reasonable effort to
rotate assignments on Thanksgiving and Christmas. City shall maintain minimal staffing on workday
afternoon prior to New Year and Christmas holidays so that as many employees as possible may enjoy
personal leave, vacation, or CTO at those limes.

g. The City may implement a holiday closure for some or all operations during the period around the
Christmas and New Year’s holidays with employees using paid leave, unpaid time, or working. consistent
with the plan included as Appendix C,

21. IMPLEMENTATION OF MOU

City shall implement the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding by adopting appropriate
resolutions, ordinances, and administrative poUcies.

9



22. JOB ANNOUNCEMENT TRANSFERS AND RULE OF 10

a. The City agrees to supply job announcements for posting on employee bulletin boards in all
departments but City assumes no responsibility for notices once delivered. City shall also provide Union an
interoffice mail sFot in City Hall and shalt place twenty-five (2S) copies of all job announcements in said slot
when distributing job announcements to City departments.

b. The City agrees to continue its policy of maintaining consistent oral examination boards to the
maximum extent possible. ]t is agreed that employees may contact the Human Resources Office to request
inter-departmental or inter-divisional transfers, and are to contact Department or Division Heads for intra
departmental or intra-divisional transfers. Intra-depadmental or divisional transfer opportunities will be made
known to employees in those organizations prior to ansfer action.

c. City shall provide a minimum application filing period of five () days for all open vacant positions
and ten (10) days for all promotional vacant positions in the classified service within the general employees
bargaining unit tar which an eligibility list must be established.

d. The names of nine (9) more eligible (including tie scores) than the number of vacancies shall be
certified to the appointing authority in alphabetical order.

23. JURY(WITNESS DUTY

In the event that an employee of the City is required by a court of competed jurisdiction to perform jury duty.
and that requirement causes the employee to be away from his/her regularly assigned work schedule, said
jury duty shall be considered leave with pay without interruplion of service on the condition that the
employee pay to the City Treasurer all compensation he/she receives for the jury duty.

Pursuant to Government Code §1230.1 whenever an employee is served with a subpoena wiuich compels
his/her presence as a witness, unless he/she is a party or an expert witness, such employee shall be
granted a leave of absence with pay in the amount of the difference bewieen the employee’s regular
earnings and any amount he/she receives for such appearance.

24. LAYOFF POLICY

a. Basis of Layoff: Whenever a position is abolished pursuant to section 1008 of the City Charter an
employee will be laid off as set forth below,

b. Notification to the Union: Whenever the City Administrator submits a budget to the City Council
requiring layoff of employees in the General unit, the City Administrator shall provide the Union with a list of
the classifications(s), department(s). and division(s) from which the layoff will be made, and a seniority list of
those affected.

c. Notification to Employee: Employees to be laid off shall be given at least thirty (30) calendar days
prior notice.

d. Order of Layoff: Employees will be laid off by classification, department and division in the following
order:

1. Probationary employees;
2. Regular employees who within the twenty-six pay periods immediately prior to the layoff

received a cumulative performance evaluation score of less than 3.0. under the former evaluation form, or
an overall score of “needs improvement” under the new 2009 evaluation form.

3. Regular employees by inverse order of seniority. Seniority is determined by continuous
service in the classification.

4. If employees have the same seniority within the classification, selection shall be made at
random.

10



All branches and eensions of the Library are considered In the same division as the Central Library.

C. Bumping (Displacement) Rights; Regular employees who are laid off have the right to return to the
last position they previously held under the lollowing conditions:

They meet the positions’ minimum qualifications
2. They are physically able to perform the duties ot the position
3. The position has continued to exist

If an employee bumps down into the last position held, the employee wilt bump the employee with the least
seniority in the classication.

Transfer or Voluntary Demotion: If an employee to be laid off meets the minimum qualifications for
a vacant position, before an open competitive recruitment can be commenced, the employee will be given
an opportunity to fill the vacant position through transferor voluntary demotion.

an employee does not meet the minimum qualifications for the vacant position the City will consider
appointment to the vacant position as a trainee level appointment. Trainee-level employees appointed
under this section will be paid at 100% of Step I rather than S0%.

Final appointment through transferor demotion is at the sole discretion of the Department head.

9. separation Enhancement Plen; The City may offer a separation enhancement to avoid layoffs.

25. LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND BENEFITS DURING SUCH LEAVES

a. It is agreed that general employees as defined in this agreement shall have the right to request an
extended leave of absence without pay for a period of up to one year for personal reasons or for additional
schooling. If the leave is approved, the employee will have right of return but such leave shall be
considered a break in service with no accrual of benefits. Leave approval will be at the discretion cf the City
Administrator.

b. Employees may be entitled to up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave, with benefit continuation and
reinstatement rights, under the City’s FMLAICFRA Family Care and Medical Leave Policy for the birth of a
child or to care for a newborn- for the placement of a child with an employee in connection with adoption or
foster care, to care for a child, parent , spouse. domestic pertner or child of a domestic partner who has a
serious health condition, or for the employee!s own serious health condition. For combined pregnancy and
chiFd bonding leave! the amount of leave available under this policy may be longer.

o. Extended medical leaves of absenoe may be granted by the City Administrator for a period of up to
a total of one year (including any period of FMLCFR4 Family Care and Medical Leave) on reluest of the
employee due to the employee’s illness. The City shall continue to pay its contribution to insurance for the
longer of the first 90 days of such medical leaves of absences, or any period of cave continuation provided
under the FMLAICFRA Family Care and Medical Leave Policy.

d. The following criteria will be used in determining the granting of leaves of absence:

1. the employee’s seniority in City service.
2. the employee’s job performance record.
3. the employee’s disciplinary action record.
4. the needs of the City service.

e. No sick leave, vacation, or holidays shall accrue to any employee during any full biweekly pay
period in which the employee is on unauthorized or authorized leave without pay. Except as provided tinder
subsection “C above, an employee on leave without pay shall also be responsible for full payment
(employer and employee portion) of insurance premiums.

II



No sick leave, vacation. or tiuliday shall be paid to any employee during any period of unauthorized
leave or suspension.

“Continuous servire means e.’,iployrlient with the City without break or interruption; in computing
continuous service for the purposes of this chapter. neither military leaves nor leaves of absence on account
of illness, whether with or witho’.it pay. shalt be construed as a break in employment or service. Other
absences aggregating In CXCC5S of ninety O} wOrking days in any period of twerve (12) months, including
layoffs on account of lack or work lack ci funds. or abolishment of positions, shall be constmed as breaking
‘•continuous servir,e. A laynif resulting in a bumping dght to another position shall not constitute a break in
sew ice.

h. Citj acknotledges that the use of legally protected leaves of absence, including but not limited to
protected family medical leave. shall riot forrii tile basis ci disciplinary action. Therefore, the City
acknosedges that a levi sick lea’e balance alone does riot necessarily indicate an attendance problem,
and sick leave usage must be evaluated inldiwidLially In assessing performance.

26. LIFE NSURANCE

The City will provide a tern life inmsunce policy venng the employee in the aniount of $50,000 with equal
accidental death and dismemberment provision.

27. LONG-TERM OISASILITY

The City will provide a long-term disability insurance plan by enrolling Unit members in the Citfl current
long-term disahility plan.

20. MAINTENANCE QF RENEFITS

The Cit’, and the Union agree chat oil conipensatioii including direct wages, as provided by ordinance,
resolution, and City Charter. which art in ecsrence at the conllmenlcernenit of this agreement, shall not be
diminished lessened, or reduced (or the du(tiOn ol this a.eenient

Wage adjustments as provided for from time to rime by ordinance. resolutjon. or by City Charter. as may be

amended, shall also continue rcr the duration ci this a.ireement

— C :y s-c :.e urc, eve, c_st t eCyas re ze’car o ass g a’. es :: arc ‘ir—et
C—; jees r a,:c—,-ds - ‘ma; :IKS ze cc S cec:fcam:cr s a “c Sec. e S: ar’2a

cw C. Ccd,.

29. MECR4NICS TOOLS

Tic Ct * ;‘ce a r”a too a as-ce of$7eC’:oeg_s ‘L -.—& r :..secta of “&‘ce Seivcea
Asscla”I A.:n: ‘0 Ei. *ot Tecwcr _ead Ei., :re: Tea a s— -lea’. Ec*--e-4
Tecv’oa x’s r- ctsws - tre ‘u P’ a-c : Ge’ Co.se

Dare_: s,a cc “ate Ja cv lear ‘,eae Ct-s -a ww eoavea cars i csse or-ek o
Cestxl C.- a’ e—te too x.x tila 0 Los -e Sec D ‘LV 1’e ob ar z : ‘,r; ec cc
r’ e c.r C’ Ut tr’r’ o,ee.

a-i ero,ee ‘ rec sre ,j ce ve’ tit% af”ue to1 e,arce anroct as p0. ccc

.‘.0.I_.

A: :)e ex Jaw-er: ca:e :‘e “oyeei’. ers.e a --ya,t- a ta’ce a.arc ‘Ira a’2r’ S

based C) a ctce—:açe C’ e ve tyt’ b’ be’ eu4oec tG— te cate to co aEcwrze cavnr
cate e :ct a:ed sersrLi v ct ;I e :0 —c L DaceS a—t r: :0 ce:e— -el-c a ‘o.-ce.
&)sec erI yeas I-c iA D a--tx: ta. ce cr 04 :‘ C e’Ja- ca’ret dates



Example: Employee birei 06/01/05- regular payment date 01/01/06.

• Paid at hire - Full payment amount

• Paid at next regular payment date - 58.3% ( based on 7 nlOnths)

• Paid subsequent years - Full payment amount

Calculation of prorated payment allowance:

Number of months in position X Current allowance = Prorated $
12 months

30. MUNICIPAL CODE CHANGES

During the term of the Agreement the City and the Union shall meet and confer with regard to any further
City proposed changes to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Title 3 which are within the scope of
representation. The negotiations will be held jointly with the Treatment and Patrol bargaining units. The
representatives for the Union shall be limited to SE. LU staff and one bargaining unit member from the
General bargaining unit and one member for the Treatment and Patrol bargaining units, The negotiations
will be interest based.

31. NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT

The City and the Union agree that during the term of this agreement the City will not lock-out employees;
nor will the Union sanction, support, condone, approve. or engage in any strike, sick-in, slow-down, or work
stoppage which is detrimental to providing services to the citizens of Santa Barbara.

32. ONE-TIME PAYMENT

The City will provide a one-time tump sum payment of three hundred eighty three dollars and forty-four
cents (S383.44) for each employee in the bargaining unit effective the first full pay period following
ratification of this Agreement. The parlies agree that this payment will not be considered or reported as
special oon,pensation for purposes of retirement contributions.

33. OVERTIME

a. The City and the Union agree that overtime work will be assigned to the employees on a rotation
basis whenever possible.

b. Overtime compensation shall accrue in fifteen minute minimum blocks of time for work performed
fifteen minutes or more beyond a regularly scheduled work day or work week. This shall include overtime
work done from home.

If an employee is called physically back to the workplace on an overtime basis! such employee shall
be compensated for no less than two (2) hours overtime. If an employee is called back to the workplace on
an emergency basis, if conditions permit! City shall provide said employee with nourishment and a rest
period of appropriate duration. When an employee is called back to the workplace on an emergency after
the compretion of the employee’s regular shift, he/she will be provided paid leave time (without deductions
from leave banks) to allow five fS) hours off-duty without loss of pay before reporting for their next regularly
scheduled shift.

d. Overtime worked shall be compensated as follows:

- Cash Payment - Time and one-half the regular rate of pay.
2. CTO Credit - Time and one-half the overtime hours worked for non-exem Pt employees;

straight tine for overtime hours Worked for exempt employees.

13



The parties agree that employees have the right to request cash payment or compensatory tine off
(CTO) but that approval o one or the other benefit remains the right of the City consistent with the neefs of
the City.

Except for overtime worked by exempt employees who are compensated with CTO credit, work
performed for the purpose of computing overtime shall include all paid leave tine actually taken as tine off.
It wHI not include holiday or other paid leave lime oashed our but not taken.

g. Regular part-time employees shall not receive overtime at the overtime rate for tine worked until
their total number of hours worked exceeds forty (40) hours in a week. Under the forty (40) hour limit,
regular, part-time employees are credited at straight time pay or compensatory time for hours worked
beyond their normal schedule.

h. The following provisions apply to the accrual and use of CTO:

1. Minimum Allowed Aorual: An employee who requests CID will not be denied the accrual
of CTO in lieu of a cash overtime pament if his or her CIC balance will remain below 50
hours.

2. Compensatory lime Bank: Overtime not cashed out shall be maintained in a CTO ‘Bank.
An employee may accrue up to a maximum of 100 CTO hours in his/her bank. The
emp’cyee may maintain this bank unless the employee terminates or agrees to cash out a
portion or all the hours in the bank.

3. City Directed CrC Cash Out: The City retains the right to cash out CTO hours- other than
the 100 hour bank described above, at the overtime rate.

4. City Directed Use of CrC as Time Off: The City has the right to reluire employees to lake
compensatory time off but shall provide a minimum of twenty-one (21 calendar days
advance notice in such cases. Management shall not compel an employee to take CTO
hours as time off if the employee’s CO bank is less than 50 hours.

Overtime work accrued during a declared disaster as determined by the President of the United
states. the Governor of the State, the Mayor of the City, City Council, or the City Administrator shall be
compensated at the rate of time and one-half providing that the City is reimbursed at the rate of time and
one-half wages in federal or State Disaster Relief Funds.

34. PAYROLL

a. Employees who receive pa5Toll overpayrnents shall reimburse City for such overpayments. City
shall establish a reasonable schedule of payments based upon amount of such overpayment and date
overpayment was made.

b. City agrees to explain all payroll stub inforniation to employee upon request of said employee.

c. City agrees to provide the Union with up to three (3) deduction codes.

d. The parties agree that the City will continue deducting monies from payroll and remit same to Union
as authorized by employee payroll deduction authorizations in accordance with present policy. However.
when an employee stttches from the General bargaining unit to a unit not represented by S .E.I.U. Local
820. S.E.l. U. dues will no longer be deducted, unless and until the union submits another signed
authorization form. Any changes in dues deductions shall be subject to indemnification of the City by the
Union.

e. The City shall provide to the Union. on a bi-weekly basis, a new hire and termination list of
bargaining unit employees with their name, job classthcation tide and department. The cost of programming
said report shall be paid for by the Union.

14



All emptoyees shall participate in the City’s payroll direct deposit program.

1. Each existing employee who was not previously enrolled in direct deposit will submit an
authorization form to the Payroll Office within sixty days of ratification of this Agreement. All
newly hired employees will be subject to this provision upon hire.

2. Each employee shall execute a payroll authorization form and submit a voided check or
savings deposit slip to the Payroll Office, It shall be the employee’s choice as to which
bank he or she designates as the institution receiving payroll funds.

3. When the authorization form is properly executed and filed with the Payroll Office- the
City will begin automatically depositing the net amount ot pay on or before each
designated biweekly payday in the employees designated bank account.

4. Exceptions: An exception to this policy may be granted by the Finance Director to an
employee upon a showing of good cause for such exception (e.g., that he/she is unable
to establish and/or maintain a personal banking/financial account for direct deposit, or
that other personal circumstances necessitate a temporary or permanent exception).
The Finance Director may require the employee to renew this exception periodically.
Exceptions will not be unreasonably denied.

5. Employees participating in direct deposit will he provided with a payroll detail report each
pay period. Alternatively, employees may voluntarily opt cut of a paper detail and access
this information electronically via the CitVs computer system.

35. PERSONAL LEAVE

a. Employees shall be entitled to four (4) days personal leave each fiscal year per the following
schedule:

Employees on the payroll July I: 4 days
Employees hired between July 2 and

October I (inclusive): 3 days
Employees hired between October 2 and

January I (inclusive): 2 days
Employees hired between January 2 and

April I (inclusive) I day

b. Personal leave days must be taken by the end of each fiscal year or lost. Personal leave shall be
scheduled on the same basis as vacation. In no case shall employees be entitled to cash payment for
personal leave days not taken.

36. PERSONAL PROPERTY DAMAGE REIMBURSEMENT

Any employee who experiences a loss or damage to personal property may submit a claim to his/her
immediate supervisor for consideration of reimbursement. The claim shall be submitted within fifteen (16)
days after the loss or damage is sustained. The claim shall contain the following information: type of item,
date of purchase, replacement cost condition. description of damage, circumstances- etc. If the personal
property is stolen, a report shall be filed with the Police Department.

The following conditions must apply for the claim to be considered:

a. The loss must be in the line of duty.
b. There must not be contributory negligence or carelessness on the part of the employee.
c. There must not be other means of recovery such as, but not limited to, court action or

insurance.

15



d. The personal properly for which the claim is made must be owned by the employee
involved- Exceptions to the above may be referred to the Department Director for approval.

e. S200 limit per item claimed unFess personal property item has written pre—approval by the
Department Head.

The supervisor shall conduct an inquiry into the validity of the claim and torward it to the Division Manager
with his/her recommendation, The Division Manager shall review the claim and forward his/her
recommendation to the Department Director- The Department Director wit! approve or deny the claim.
Claims meeting the above criteria shall not be unreasonably denied.

Reimbursement will be calculated from the following schedule;

Ape of Item % Reimbursed

010 6 months 100%
61012 months 80%
1210 lamcnths 50%
IS to 24 months 25%
24 months & over 0%

If the claim is approved, payment will be forwarded to the initiating employee.

37. PROBATIONARY PERIOD

The probationary period required by Charter Section 1004 may be extended beyond one (1) year by signed
mutual agreement of City and employee.

All original and promotional appointments to the classified service shall be tentative and subject to a
probationary period of one I) year of actual service- It the service of the probationary employee has been
satisfactory to the appointing power, then the appointing power shall file with the Human Resources
Manager a statement in writing to such effect. During the probationary period, an employee may be
rejected at any lime by the appointing power without cause and without right of appeal. Notification of
rejection in writing shall be served on the probationer and a copy filed with the Human Resources Manager.

38. PURPOSE -

It is the purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding to promote and provide for harmonious relations.
cooperation, and understanding between management and the employees covered by his memorandum:
to provide an orderly and equitable means of resolving any misunderstanding or differences which may
arise under this Memorandum of Understanding: and to set forth the full and entire understanding of the
parties reached as a result of good faith meeting and conferring regarding the wages- hours, and other
terms and conditions of employment covered by the memorandum

30. RECOGNITION

a- Pursuant to the provisions of section 3-12 of the Municipal Code of the City and applicable State
law, the Union is recognized as the majority representative of the City employees in the general employees
unit and as the exclusive bargaining agent for the employees in said Unit,

b, The terms general employee(s or employee(sy as used herein shall refer only to full-time or
unclassified part-lime employees serving in non-confidential classifioauons who occupy positions authorized
and designated as !!GENEL• by the City Council in the Cilys official Citys official olassification and salary
schedu]es

Classifications may be added to or deleted from general employees bargaining unit in acccrdanoe with the
provisions of this agreement and the Citys Employer/Employee Relations Ordinance,

10



a. Employees designated management. confidential, and supervisorial shall be designated as such in
the in (he Citys official classification and salary schedules and shall be excluded from general employees
bargaining unit regardless of classification. City may designate additional management, confidential, or
supervisorial employees after first notiMng and consulting with Union.

40. REPRESENTATION - ONION OFFICERS AND REPRESENTATIVES

a. The City and the Union agree that Union officers and representatives will be allowed to meet with
City management on City time for the purpose of meeting and conferring in good faith and without loss of
pay or any benefits.

b. The Union agrees to provide the City with a list of Union officers and employee representatives, with
their job classifications, ‘vbo are authorized to meet and confer in good faith. Union sharI keep the list up to
date.

c. The City agrees that authorized Union staff representatives shall be gJen access to work locations
during working hours to observe working conditions. Such visits are to be made with the prior knowledge of
the Department Head and a management representative may accompany the Union staff member on the
visit. A staff representative is defined as a paid full-time or part-time employee of the Union.

d. The Union shall provide the City with a list of staff representatives and shall update said list as
a p prop r,ate.

41. RETIREE MEDICAL INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION

a. This provision is applicable to employees who retire from City service on or after October I. 1994,
and

1. Have 15 or more years of classified or unclassified service: or

2. Retire from City with an industrial disability.

b. For employees who retire on or after October 1 2008, the City shall contribute 88.75 per month, per
year of service up to a maximum of 35 years (i.e.. $306.25/month) towards the purchase of medical
insurance for the retiree and his/her spouse or domestic partner registered with the City Clerk or the
Secretary of State. if applicable. For employees who retire on or after the date this agreement is adopted by
City Council, the City shall increase the contribution as follows:

Retiring On or After Dollar/Month/Yr of Service Maximum 135 Years)
October11, 2003 $9.19 $321.65
October 10, 2009 $9.65 $33T.75

c. The retiree is not liniited to purchase of a City sponsored plan, provided however! that if the retiree
purchases another insurance plan. the retiree must supply the City Mth adequate proof of insurance
coverage prior to any contribution from the City. Proof of such coverage shall be provided to the City on a
periodic basis, as reasonably determined by the City.

d. The City shall continue to make its contribution until the retiree reaches age 65 or dies, whichever
occurs first, provided however, that if the retiree dies before reaching the age of 65 and there is a surviving
spouse or registered domestic partner. the City’s contribution shall cease when the retiree would have
reached age 66. Thereafter. the spouse may remain on the insurance plan, at his/her own cost, subject to
the conditions set forth by the insurance company.

e. In the event Health Care legislation is passed which affects the nature of the benefit described
above, the parties will reopen negotiations and modify this benefit, if necessary, so as to maintain their

17



original intent (e.g. eligibility, scope cost)

If any Court decision with binding effect on the City ot Santa Barbara rules that a retiree medical
provision like the provision contained herein violates the State or Federal law against age discrimination, the
parties agree that within 30 days they will reopen negotiations on said provision to convert to a retiree
medical policy with equivalent cost that does not violate age discrimination law The parties agree that
whatever policy is agreed upon win not reduce or increase the Cits contribution toward retiree medical
insurance.

42. RETIREMENT

a. The City will provide the two percent (2.7%) at age My-five (55) benefit formula under the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), pursuant to Government Code 21364.5.

b. The City will contribute toward the PENS normal employee’s contribution as detailed in section ‘a’,
below, and these contributions shall ha credited to the member’s account. The City shall report the value of
any Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC) to PENS as compensation earnabie through enabling
City resolution, pursuant to Government Ccde Section 20836(c)(4).

c. Employees will continue to pay the full cost of the benefit enhancement to 2.7% at 55, including the
effects of market volatility. according to the following formula;

1. While the PERS miscellaneous plan employer rate is exactly equal to 20.164%! the
employee shall pay 7.162% of the 8% required employee contribution. This t4ll be
deducted on a pre-tax basis and credited to the employee!s PENS member account. The
City will pay the difference of .838%, which shall be reported to PENS as compensation
earnable. and credited to the employee’s member account.

2. If PERS sets the employer rate at less than 20.164%, the employee shall receive cre1it for
30.559% of he amount by which the employer rate is less than 20.164%. The City will
apply the credit by paying an additional portion of the required 8°/a employee contribution,
up until the point where the City again pays a full 7% of the 8/ required employee
contribution. This additional City-paid employee contribution (EPMC) shall be reported to
PENS as compensation earnabla. and credited to the employee’s member account.
[For example: If the employer rate is only 18.164% of PENS-able compensation, the City
w81 pay an additional 0.61% (2.0% times 30,559%) of the 8% employee contribution, for a
total of 1.448%]:

3. If PERS sets the employer rate at more than 20.164%, the employee shall pay 30.559% of
the amount by which the employer rate exceeds 20.164%. The employee shall pay for this
cost in the following manner:

First, through an increase in the employee-paid portion of the 8%
required employee contribution up to a maximum increase of 0.838%. This
additional employee paid amount will be deducted on a pre’tax basis and credited
to the employee’s member account.
[For example: If the employer rate is 22.164% of PERS-able compensation, the
employee will pay and additional 0.61% (2.0% times 30.659%) of the SW0 employee
confribution, for a total of 7.772%]:

ii. Second, through payroll deduction. To the extent allowable by
PENS, and in compliance with any restrictions imposed by PERS. the City will
amend its contract to allow the employee to assume this additional cost in such a
way that it will be credited to the employee’s PENS member account and payable
on a pre-tax basis. [Unless the parties through meeting and consulting (not
meeting and conferring) agree that affected employees can pay through another
mechanism, including, but not limited to paid vacation or paid holiday. If the parties
enter into the meet and consult process! a State mediator will act as the facilitator.]
[For example: If the employer rate is 25,1 64°/o of PENS-able compensation, the
emp’oyee will pay an additional 1,528% (5.0% times 30.559%) of PERS-able
compensation as follows: an additional 0,838% (8%-7. 162%) to cover the full 8%

18



employee contribution- and a payroll deduction equal to 0-69% (I .528%-0.838%)
of PERS-able compensation.]

d. The following contract provisions shall apply:
1. The City will provide One-Year Final Compensation under PERS. pursuant to Government
Code 20042.
2. The PERS contract shall provide for Military Service Credit as Public Service under Secuon
21024 and for Public Service Credit for Excluded or Limited Prior Service under Section 21031.
3. The PERS contract shall provide for Public Service Credit for Peace Corps or Americorps:
Volunteers in Service to America (VISTA) pursuant to Government Code Section 21023.5.
4. The City will provide the Fourth 4L Level of 1969 Survivor Benefits, pursuant to
Government Code Section 21674.

e- The City is authorized to amend its contract with PERS immediately, in order to be able to
implement the incentives listed below:

Upon the declaration of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara that the State of California’s budgetary or
fiscal impacts on the City’s budget have caused grave fiscal conditions to exist that require prompt and
immediate ettention the City may offer the fol[owing early retirement incentives to applicable employees:

Iwo years additional service credit in accordance with Government Code Section 20903:
and/or

2. City parent of Military Service Credit as Public Service in accordance with Government
Code Section 21024.

43. RETIREMENT RE-OPENER

Upon 30 days written notice from the City to the Union, but not sooner than January 2. 2013, the parties
will formally reopen meet and confer negotiations regarding applying a second tier of retirement plan to
newly hired employees, and regarding the compensation and non-pension benefrts provided to those
newly hired employees that are subject to such alternate retirement benefits.

Unless the parties agree different[y, the effective date that a second tier redrement plan is applicable to
newly hired Miscellaneous employees shall not be sooner then the effective date that e second tier
retirement plan is applicable to newly hired Police Safety and Fire Safety employees- However, the terms
ot the second tier retirement plan that is applicable to newly hired Police Safety and Fire Safety
employees need not be the same as the second tier retirement plan applicable to Miscellaneous
employee.

44. RETROACTIVifY

An employee will be eligible for the increases to salaries and benefits provided under the Agreement on
the dates specified for each increase if the employee is an active City employee and bargaining unit
member on the date that the City Council ratifies this Agreement.

45. SAFETY EQUIPMENT

a. The City and the Union agree that the City will either provide alt safety equipment required by the
City or will reimburse the employee for purchasing the equipment whenever such equipment has been
required by the City as necessary for the job. Such equipment shall include, but not be limited to. safety
shoes, safety g’asses. helmets, gloves, boots, life jackets, and all related safety items. Both parties agree
that the City shall retain the right to determine the minimum specifications of the safety equipment.
procurement procedures, and limitations and exclusions.

b. Notwithstanding the above, the parties agree that employees designated by the City as required to

IS



wear steel-toed safety shoes in tile performance of their duties shall be eligible to receive an annual
allowance in October for the provision of said shoes upon the presentation of valid claims in keeping with
City established procedures in afrtc!!.irits not to exceed the following:

Period Amount
October 1 2011 -September Q 012 $230
October 1 201 2-September 30. 501 S230

If the employee desires, he/she rriay corTtLiite two years allowance for the purchase of shoes- The
allowance is for the purchase o Shoes only

The Union and City agree that railure of an employee to wear proper and operational sefety shoes may be
grounds for disciplinary action.

City shall provide prescription safety glasses to those employees who wear prescription glasses
and perform duties that require the use of safety glasses. Sticti employees shall provide the City with the
lens specifications prescribed by the employees doctor. The City will provide the initial pair of safety
glasses based upon this prescripticit and shall replce same only upon a subsequent substantial change of
prescription or evidence acceptable to the City that said prescription sare.ty glasses are rendered unusable
by acGidenlel derage s!Jfferel while performing assigned duties.

4€. SALARIES & COMPENSAIION ANALYSISISALARY SURVEY

a Gase salary ranges aill remadn unchanged during the temi of this agreerl,ent However, the parties
ackntirMedge that market ompetitiv.ness is important to reonjitment arid retention of a quality workforce.
The City and the Union agree to meet on a monthly basis beginning in October 2012 to update the 2008
total compensation surqev durIng the tern’ of the agreement for reference during ne,otiations for a
successor agreement The Cmtv and the Union agree to make every effort to have the results tnalized prior
to June t 1013 This may be waived by agreentent betttet he parties.

Achievinq the seond salary step Or B step. arid SLihsep!.iet Steps shall require in addition to
satisfacto performance, a period ot one year of actual serQice. Regular part-time employees are etigible
mr step raises under he same ternts artd conditions as apply to regular, ut-tinte erFmployees except that Lhe
period of emoloyment required to atove a step is the number of hours worked eqi.i.’vale,rt to cite lIt year of
k:!k:e emtv.Ter. si Soai l2s

Er oes st 5C e a: e.3 s: a 1. e SI SCIV I S sa ? .ctee cce Yr yo- z
-oeeer i-a: -c C:; a. : te s-r aay ass w e,cess of re saj a:vs,Tht c-ta
esrrs:e’::a s’tcac- y, t. C’, Ce’c L :re cffc.a sa ay s.recaes Fe Cyst a ,e e.\
ea :o frJ”Ce a -q -m. 1 ‘e ae- !ecaa:.r 1 5a3:, :-a&e oaaakans c’ a se-es
at c:as S •‘ Ca: O5 -.v:-- -e:— zefl- e rs as -.e— rec Ire S.rq Us Cdv s— O, Ce t

nra ct c saeE 350e5 5.Z c C:-, Sa Lpda:e sec s:

1 k-,e,sr, Daes or re..-j r e- frrT,eea s-ta be is: o4 ‘-c ‘C e-c-o-a was

-i-ec -, cc L-ze I-s te-:F [a tol a-. +t ‘I-t cys:Ie : aw I’ cc rose reC te
er: — le e—C C: s yotas ‘s-kr,- roc S3-i ctrc8,.-IvI-e am ca4s> 03:5.

e Dereoz--sii Sia—, Dr.. TI-t C, o’ets :2 co’-&c a :c:a co’npelsa:o— sr.ey -

c acv-e:o- ii:— i—es :1 . -is ic --I 0” C ,ee_e a—s ae ete- effcj crave :)e -es_s
rze o- Ic :l-. e .c-e:o.- 0 :e a’zee-- c-u ft ee-e-ce crrt wco:cs ic a &cressc
a - Ce — Cii.

a,



47. SERVICE CREDIT FOR SICK LEAVE UPON RETIREMENT

At the time of retirement, the City shall purchase an annuity for the retiring employee that pays a monthEy
benefit similar to the PERS amendment that provides service credit for sink leave under Government Code
20862.8.

The following conditions apply to this benefit:

1. In order to gualify for service credit for sick leave upon retirement, the retiring employee
must have at least 500 sick leave hours:

2. The conversion rate of 0.004 years l’l day) of service credit for each day of sick leave is
utilized:

3. The retiring employee may take (he cash purchase value of the annuity in lieu of the
monthly annuity; and

4. If the City amends its PERS Miscellaneous contract to include service credit for sick leave
upon retirement, employees will be included in that PERS contract amendment and the
annuity program will be discontinued.

48. SEVERABILITY

Should any provision in this agreement be held inoperative, void or invalid by a court of com patent
jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this agreement shall nol be affected thereby. and the parties
agree to meet and consult over the invalidated provision,

49. SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL

a. The City and the Union agree that regular, full-time employees On a shift of eight (8) or more hours
shall receive:

1. Swing shift differential pay when 50% or more of the hours of the assigned shift hours.
including lunch and excluding overtime, fall between 5:00 p.m. and midnight; or

2. Graveyard shift differential pay when 50% or more of the hours of the assigned shift hours,
including lunch and excluding overtime, fall between midnight and 8:00 a .m.

b. Overtime as Continuation of Assigned Shift. Shift differential for overtime which is a continuation
(without break) of the assigned shift is paid based upon the eligibility of the assigned shift. See Examples 1,
2. 3 and 4 in Appendix A entitled Shift Differential Examples.

0. Back-to-Back Shifts. Shift differential for overtime which are two (2) entirely distinct assigned shifts
are paid based upon the separate eligibility of each shift. See Examples 5 and 6 in Appendix A entitled Shift
Differential Examples.

d. Call Backs.

Shift differential is not paid for call back overtime of less than eight (8) hours. See Example
7 in Appendix A entitled Shift Differential Examples.

2. Shift differential is paid for call back overtime of eight (8) hours or more when 50% or more
of the hours fall between 5:00 p.m. and midnight or midnight and 8:00 a.rn. See Example
in Appendix A entitled Shift Differential Examples.

21



e. Shift differential amounts shall be as follows:

Effective Date Swing Shift Graveyard Shift
October11. 2003 $1.25 $2.75
October 10. 2009 $1.35 $2.90

no. SICK LEAVE

a. The City and the Union agree that he City’s sick leave policy shad be that employees shall accrue
sick leave at the rate of 3.7 hours for each full pay period of service with a maximum aOcunMjlation of two
thousand and eighty (2.080) hours. Said sick leave accrual shall begin effective the first day of employment.

b. The programs referred to as “Non Replenishable” and ‘•City Administrator’s sick leave authorized
by Municipal Code Sections 3.08.150 (b) and 3.08.210 are eliminated.

c. An employee may use sick leave for a medical appointment when it is not possible to arrange such
appointment on non-work time subject to the following two conditions: I) Reasonable advance notice
which in no event shall be less than 24 hours: 2) Subject to supervisory approval based on operational
needs.

d. An employee may use upto six days (48 hours) of available accrued sick leave per calendar year to
attend to all illness of a child, parent, registered domestic partner, or spouse of the employee as provided
under State law. Part-time employees may use the equivalent of six (6) months of sick leave accrual at their
prorated accrual rate for such purposes. Ail rules for use of sick leave will apply, including those regarding
physician statement rerluirernenis and use of sick leave for medical appointments.

51. STANDBY PAY

The City and the Union agree that effective during this agreement, when an employee is officially
designated by management to remain available to return physically to the workplace, at any time during
specific hours outside of normal working hours, the employee shall receive two hours of straight-time pay for
each eight hours or fraction thereof on standby. For periods of standby that are 24 consecutive hours or
more, the employees shall receive 114 hour of straight time pay for each hour on standby. lo the extent
feasible, the parties agree that standby shall be assigned on an equitable basis to all eligible emp[oyees.

The City and the Union agree that all employees will be on automatic standby duty during a state of
emergency or civil defense disaster as declared by the President of the United States, the Governor of the
State, the Mayor of the City! the City Council, or the City Administrator, Such automatic emergency standby
shall be witt,out compensation unless the City is reimbursed by the State or tederal government for such an
expenditure,

52. STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE (5Db AND STATE PAID FAMILY LEAVE INSURANCE PFLj

a. All employees must participate in the State Disability Insurance (SDI) and State Paid Family Leave
PFL) programs. The employee shall pay all costs associated with these programs.

b. Employees may apply for SDI or PFL benefits with the State of California Economic Development
Department (EDD). To be eligible for benefits. the employee must meet all applicable State requirements,
Depending on eligibility, an employee may receive:

1. Up to 52 weeks of wage replacement benefits for the employee’s own disability, and/or
2, Up to 6 weeks of wage replacement ben&ts for providing required care for the serious

health condition of a child, parent, spouse or domestic partner or for bonding with a new
child.

22



c. Emp]oyees who receive SDI or PFL benefits must integrate available SDI and PFL benefits tith
available paid sick leave, personal leave and compensatory time- Documentation of the SDI?PFL benefits
received must be provided to the Payroll Office for this purpose.

d. Employees on a medical or family medicel reeve of absence who are eligible to use their leave
accruals during the leave of absence must exhaust available leave balances before using unpaid [eave
Employees must use available sickjfamily sick eave balances, and then compensatory time off and
personal leave balances, before using vacation balances.

e, Employees who coordinate SDI!PFL paid leave benefits with City payroll benets will receive City
retirement contributions, time off accruals, and other non-insurance benefits based on the City-paid portion
of wage replacement only, For non-insurance benefits purposes. the SDI/PFL portion of wage replacement
will be treated as unpaid leave,

Employees coordinating SDI/PFL benefits with City paToll benefits shall be eligible for continuation
of CLrj-paid insurance contributions under Article 25 (0) of this Agreement (Leave Of Absence) only up to
the dale they would have received such benefits had they not coordinated SDI/PFL benefits.

53. TERM OF AGREEMENT AND RENEWAL

The City and the Union agree that the term of this agreement shall be fifteen (.15) months cOmmencing July
2012 and ending at midnight on September 30. 2013. It is further agreed hat the term of this agreement

may be extended by mutual agreement

The City and the Union also agree that meeting and conferring over the renewal or continuation of this
agreement shall be initiated at the request of either party after June I. 2013 but not later than July 15. 2013
and that every effort will be made to reach an agreement prior to the expiration of this agreement on
September 30, 2013, A request to meet and confer shall be filed in writing and meeting and conferring shall
commence within ten (10) days of receipt of said request.

54 TRAINING

a- The parties recognize that training programs and the advancement of employees to positions of
higher skills are maflers of great importance and interest to the City, the Union, and the employees covered
by this agreement- However, the City shall retain the right to determine what training is required for the
employee to improve his/her performance on the job and to make such training a condition of emploii,ent.
Such training may include requests by Department Heads for additional training of current employees.
subject to the approval of the City Administrator. The parties agree that employees will be trained in the use
of fire suppression equipment and that afire evacuation plan will be developed by each department for each
major City facility and posted.

b- Direct costs for all training or instruction required by the City shall be paid for by the City- Wage
compensation for employees shall be determined as follows:

Non-ExemDt Employees

The Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) provides thet time spent by non-exempt employees in training is
compensable unless all of he following conditions are met:

1- Attendance is outside of the employee’s regular working hours;

2- Attendance is in fact voluntary;

3, The course, lecture, or meeting is not directly related to the employee’s job; and

4. The employee does not perform any productive work during such attendance,

23



Attendance is not voluntary if it is required by the City- It is not voluntary in fact if the employee is given
to understand or led to believe that his/her present working conditions or the continuance of his/her
employment would be adversely affected by nonattendance.

The training is directly related to the empIoyees job if it is designed to make the employee handle his/her
job more effectively as distinguished from training him/her for another job, or to a new or additional skilL

If the training is considered compensable and (ravel time is associated with the employee!s attendance,
the following must be considered:

Travel During Regular Working Hours. If the travel time related to attending required training
occurs during normal working hours! then the time is considered to be compensable.

Special One-Day, Out-of-Town Travel. Travel time associated with special one-day, out-of-town
training is reqijired to be paid for irrespective of the mode of transportation utilized or whether the
employee drives or is a passenger- Time that can be excluded from payment is normal home-to-work
travel time and time spent eating while traveling.

Overnight TraveL if an employee travels overnight on business (for more than one day). the
employee must be paid for time spent in traveling (except for meat periods) during his/her normal
working hours on non-working days, such as Saturday. as well as on his/her regular working days.
Travel time as a passenger on an airplane! train, boat, bus, or auton,obiie outside of regular working
hours is not considered work time, provided however, that any work which an employee is required to
perform while txaveiing shall be considered as hours worked

an employee is offered public transportation but requests permission to drive his/her car instead, the
City shall count as hours worked, the time spent driving the car or the time the employee would have had
to count as hours worked during working hours if the employee had used the public transportation.
\%lliohever is less.

ExenlDt Employees

in the case of an exempt employee, the MOU language (other than the FLSA requirenrents applicable to
non-exempt employees) determines whether training or related travel tine is compensable- Exsmpt
employees will only be paid for time spent in required training and travel during normal work hours.
Travel outside of regular work hours is exciudee.

c- Employees will be eligible to participate in the City-wide Educational Reimbursement Program. The
union waives any requirement for the City to meet and confer on enhancements to this policy to increase the
maximum reimbursement (SI 000) or expand reimbursement eligibility. However, the City will notify the
union of any such change

The program is currently unfunded, however upon the request of the Union, the City and the Union will meet
informally (not meet arid confer) prior to the Cits Piscal Year 2013 mid-year budget review to discuss
options for funding the EdLication Reimbursement Program.

55. TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MIAGEMENT

Bargaining unit members shall be eligible to participate in and shall receive any benefits provided by any
established Citwide Alternative Transportation Program.

Effective January I! 2013 Waterfront Department employees will be eligible to purchase an unlimited
annual waterfront parking pass at the same rate as harbor slip holders or a limited annual pass at twenty
dollars (S20) less than the rate for the unlimited pass (prorated for partial years). In no case shall an
employee use such limited pass to park in Waterfront lots outside of the empioyees working hours. The

24



Waterfront Director may also limit which parking lots and/or spaces employees may use with the limited
pass- Waterfront employees who carpool {dened. as 2 or more employees commuting to work together in a
single vehicle) will be eligible for free carpool vehicle parking in designated spaces during working hours
under terms similar to those offered to other City employees,

56. UNAUTHORIZED LEAVE

An employeWs absence shall be unauthorized if such employee does not report absence to supervisor
designated by Department Head within one-half (1/2) hour before or one-half (112) hour after his/her regular
starting time, except in cases of emergency in which case the employee shall provide notification as soon as
possible.

57. UNIFORM MAINTENANCE ALLOWANCE

The City and the Union agree that employees required by the City to wear field uniforms shall have the full
cost of the uniform maintenance service paid for by the City. The City retains full and complete conliol over
the administration of the unilorni maintenance program. However, City shall provide field personnel with a
minimum of seven (7) and a maximum of eleven (Ii) unform changes based on the eniployeWs request
and the cperational needs of the department.

5& UNION BUSINESS ATTENDANCE

It is agreed that not more than four (4) Union designated officers or stawards will be permitted up to thirty
two (32) hours of leave per person each scal year with pay for Union related business defined as follows:
conferences, meetings, training and other union activities outside the workplace- Release time will be
subject to approval of the Department Head and prior notification to the Human Resources Manager,

If fewer than 4 designated officers or stewards used release time in the prior fiscal year, the number of
officers or stewards that did not use any release time in the prior fiscal year may be added to the number
of designated officers or stewards eligible for up to 32 hours of release time in the following fiscal year, up
to a maximum of 4 additional eligible officers or stewards in any fiscal year

Stewards will log all union business attendance hours on their timesheets using the assigned pay code or
project code for this purpose.

59. UNION NOTICE- EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION & INTERDEPARTMENTAL TEAMS

a- The City will provide the union a list of attendees in the bargaining unit at a group New Employee
Orientation meeting not ess than two weeks prior to the orientation along with the date, location, and time
for the union’s presentation- The City will provide a Union representative an opportunity during the
orientation to provide information to bargaining unit members regarding the benefits and obligations of
union membership. Such presentation shall not exceed 15 minutes in duration- Management may
witness the unions presentation

b- The City will provide the union with advanced written notice of Interdepartmental Team
Opportunities offered through its Succession Program that are offered to bargaining unit members, along
with the anticipated scope of work- The union will notify the City if the union believes that the anticipated
scope of work may involve issues within the scope of collective bargaining and lodge a written demand to
bargain on such issues- Bargaining unit member participation on an Interdepartmental Team will not
constitute collective bargaining nor satisfy any duty for the City to colleolively bargain with the union,

60. UNION SECURITY IAGENCY SHOP & MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP

a- Election — This Agency Shop provision went into effect following certification of the election results
by the State Mediation and Conciliation Service on October 3, I B95.

2S



b. Definition - Agency Shop as used in this Article means an organizational security agreement as
defined in Government Code Section 3302.5 and applicable law.

Agency Fee - Each employee in the Unit shall be required to choose to: a) become a member in
good standing of the Union: or b) satisfy the agency fee financial obligations set forth below, unless he/she
qualifies for the religious exemption set forth be[ow. New employees must make the required choice within
30 days of employment in the Unit.

Unless the employee has a) voluntarily submitted to the City an effective dues deduction request: b) notified
the Union of his/her intent to pay an agency fee (full fee or reduced because objections filed), as evidenced
by vaitten notice of same from the Union to the City: or, 0) quaritied for exemption upon religious grounds as
provided below, the City, upon notice from the Union of the employee’s failure to make a timely choice, shall
process a mandatory agency fee payroll deduction in the appropriate amount end forward that amount to
the Union,

The amount of the fee to be charged shalt be determined by the Union sutect to applicable law: end shall
therefore be an amount not to exceed the normal periodic membership dues and general assessments
applicable to Union members.

As to non-members objecttng to the Union spending their agency fee on matters unrelated to collective
bargaining and contract administration, the amount of the agency shop fee shall not reflect expenditures
which the courts have determined to be non-chargeable, including potitical contributions to candidates and
parties. members-only benefits, charitable contributions and ideological expenditures and, to the extent
prohibited by raw- shall not reflect expenditures for certain aspects of lobbying, ballot measures,
pribtications, organizing and litigation.

d. Conformance With Law - The Union represents that the collection, administration and use of
agency fee funds shall be in conformance with the law. In addition- the Union shall comply with applicable
law regarding disclosure of its expenses, notice to employees of their right to object, provision for agency
shop fee payers to challenge the Union’s determinations of amounts chargeable to objecting non-members,
and appropriate escrow provisions to hold contested amounts while the challenges are underway.

The Union shall make available- at its expense, an expeditious administrative appeals procedure to Unit
employees who object to the payment of any portion of the representation service fee. Such procedure
shall provide for a prompt decision to be made by an impartial decision-maker joiny selected by the Union
and the objecting employee(s). A copy of such procedure shall be made available upon request by the
Union to non-Union employees and the City.

The foregoing description of permissible agency shop fee charges and related procedures is included here
for informational purposes and is not intended to change applicable law. The City will promptly remit to the
Union all monies deducted, accompanied by a list of employees for whom such deductions have been
made.

C. Emnoloyee Notification - Each non-member who is required to pay an agency fee shall annually
receive vaitten notification from the Union of the amount of the deduction and the procedure which he/she
must follow to receive a rebate for non-representation activities during the year and the precedure for
appealing all or any part of the agency fee. The City shall be sent a copy of this yearly notice.

Upon request by the Union, the City shall provide the appropriate employee mailing list.

The City will make a reasonable effort to distribute to each new employee in the Unit, a letter supplied by the
Union which describes the Agency fee obligation.

26



Religious Exemption

1. Any employee who is a member of a religious body whose traditional tenets or
teachings include objections to joining or supporting employee organizations shall not be
required to meet the above agency fee obligations, but shall pay by means of mandatory
payroll deduction an amount equal to the agency shop fee (proportionate share of the
Union!s cost of legally authorized representational services), to a non-religious, non-labor
charitable organization exempt from taxation under Section 501 (C) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code, as designated by the employee from a list provided by the City Finanoe
Department.

2- To qualify for he religious exemption the employee must provide to the Union, with
a copy to the City, a witten statement of objection. along th verifiable evidenoe of
membership as described above. The City will implement the change in status within thirty
(30) days unless notified by the Union that the religious exemption is not valith

g. Provision of Fnformation - The Union shall furnish any information needed by the City to fulfill the
provisions of his Article.

h. Dues/Fee Deductions - Any of the above described payment obligations shall be processed by the
City in the usual and customary manner and time frames

Leave Without Pay - Employees on an unpaid leave of absence for an entire pay period or more
shall have agency shop fees suspended - Fee deductions shall have the same priority as dues deductions
in the current hierarchy for partialty compensated pay periods

]- Rescission of Agency Shop - The Agency Shop provision may be rescinded pursuant to the
procedures contained in Government Code Section 35Q2.5(d)

k- Unions Rioht to [molementation Election — The Union shall have the right pursuant to state law to
implementation elections during the term of this agreement if the agency shop provision is rescinded
under the terms of Section J above. if the Union requests an implementation election. lie election will be
conducted by the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service.

indemnification/Hold Harmless Clause - The Union agrees to fully indemnify, defend and hold
harmless the City and its officers, em proyees and agents against any and all claims, proceedings,
settlements and/or liability regarding the legality of this kticie or any action taken or not taken by or on
behalf of the City under this Section,

m. Maintenance of Membership — All regular unit employees who are members of the union in good
standing shall maintain their membership in the Union in good standing, subject however, to the right to
resign from membership by submitting a written request to the union during the month of August annually,

Resignation requests submitted to the City shall be referred to the union- When resignation requests are
received outside the window period the Union will promptly provide such members a letter explaining the
maintenance of membership provision, along with a copy of this seotion of the MOU.

Union members who drop their union membership but are subject to Agency Shop fee provisions shall
still be required to oomply with their financial obligations under the Agency Shop provisions. Fee payers
may change their status from full fee payer to !;core fee payer by submitting a written request to the union
during the month of August annually.

27



51. UNION STEWARDS

The City agrees that the Union may designate Stewards to represent employees in the processing of
grievances. The Union shall furnish the City with a list identifying by name and work location all regLilar and
alternate Stewards. Said list shall be kept current by the Union at all times.

62. USE OF COMPUTER RESOURCES

Employees’ rights and obligations regarding use of the City’s computers and computing resources are
governed generally by the CitVs computer use policies. The Union and the City agree that occasional and
incidental employee use of City coin puting resources for union business is allowable within the same
parameters applied to other acceptable non-commercial personal use under those policies.

The parties agree that such use shall not interfere with the performance of work duties or the effective
delivery of services, and shall not result in any significant cost to the City or compromise the security of
City systems. The parties further agree that City computer resources, including the e-mail system, will not
be used by the union or City employees to support or oppose a political campaign or ballot measure.

The union acknowledges that employees have no expectation of privacy in the use of City computer
resources, including but not limited to e-mail and text messaging, even if they are locked or password-
protected.

63. VACATION POLICY

a. All employees shall begin accruing vacation effective the first day of employment. It is agreed that
vacation tine earned may be taken as accrued subject to approvel by the City and in accordance with the
following schedure:

Length of Continuous Service Vacation Entitlement

- 2 years 10 days per year (80 hours)
3- years 13 days per year (104 hours)
8-10 years 18 days peryear (144 hours)
II - 17 years 23 days per year (184 hours)
IS - 23 years 2S days per year (200 hours)
24 & over years 28 days per year 1224 hours)

b. Vacation periods shall be scheduled by management to provide adequate staffing. Employees may
request the use of vacation at any time. Such scheduling nay be avairable throughout the calendar year
subject to departmental operational necessity and the needs of the City, and such scheduling shall take into
account employee seniority and choice. Requests for vacation time off shall not be denied for arbitrary cc
capricious reasons.

c. No employee may accrue a vacation balance in excess of thirty-two days (256 hours) unless
approved by the City Administrator based upon extenuating circumstances. A request for a waiver of the
n,aximum vacation balance n,ust be made to the City Administrator in writing, with a copy to the employee’s
Department Head.

c. If an employee takes a minimum of eighty (80) hours of vacation during a vacation year, that
employee is eligible to receive cash in lieu of up to one hundred (100) hours of vacation time. Vacation may
be “cashed in” in ID hour increments only. and the amount to be cashed in will not exceed the employeWs
vacation balance at the end of the vacation year. Employees eligible for vacation “cash in” shall state their
intentions to cash in vacation within the time frame and procedures established by the City.

28



d. Vacation year is detined to be (he period beginning with the day after the 23rd payroll date of one
calendar year, and ending on the 23rd payroll date of the foltawing calendar year. The chart below lists the
vacation year, the time sheet used to request the cashed in vacation, and the date the cashed in vacation
will be paid:

Calendar Vacation Request OF1 time sheet Paid Date
Year Year for Pay Period ending
2012 1111912011- 1111012012 11/3012012 1211412012

Employees eligible for vacation cash in shall request vacation cash in on the time sheet dates listed above.

64. VACATION & SICK LEAVE ADVANCED CREDIT UPON HIRE

•a. An employee who is appointed from outside City of Santa Barbara governilient service within one
(1) year ot leaving employment with either the City of Santa Barbara or another city, county, state agency,
federal agency or special district and who, in the opinion of the Human Resources Manager, possesses
government experience directly related lathe position to which hear she has been appointed, may be
offered credit for years of prior service with the City of Santa Barbara and/or his or her immediate
previous government employer in the following ways:

Vacation Accrual: At the discretion of the Human Resources Manager- the emptoyee
may be offered credit for up to the total number of prior full years of service at the City of Santa
Barbara andior his or her immediate previous government employer toward the initial vacation
accrual rate. The employee will not be eligible to progress toe higher accrual rate until employee
has the normal required m irFirnum amount of City of Santa Barbara service for that accrual rate,

ii. Sick bank: At the discretion of the Hunian Resources Manager, the employee may be
credited with up to 96 hours of sick leave. Therealter. employee will accrue sick leave at the
normal rate.

b, A former City of Santa Barbara employee reemployed within one year under Santa Barbara
Municipal Code Section 3.16,320 will automatically qualify for the full vacation accrual credit under U).
above, for his or her prior City of Santa Barbara service, However- under no circumstance will prior
accrued vacation balances cashed out to the employee upon termination be reinstated.

65. WAIVER

The City and the Union agree that! for the term of this agreement. each party waives the right and each
agrees that the other party shall not be obligated to meet and confer with respect to any subject or ratter
pertaining to or covered by this agreement. except as to meeting and conferring over the renewal or
continuation of this agreement or as otherwise provided herein.

It is further agreed that nothing in this agreement shall in any way diminist, the rights of the employees, the
City. or the Union as established by the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act of the State of Calitarnia and all
amendments thereto, or Santa Barbara Municipal Code. Chapter 3,12, except as herein provided.

66. WORK SCHEDULE

a. The regularly scheduled seven (7) day work week shall average forty (40) hours.

b. There shall be at least Mo consecutive days of rest observed after each work week subject to City
needs for standby. call back, overtime, and rotation of regularly scheduled shift changes, In the event that a
work week without two (2) consecutive daye off is necessary or desirable, affecte1 employees shall be given
reasonable opportunity to establish work schedules which meet the operational requirements of the City and
personal preference. In such cases, the two (2) consecutive days off may be waived by the employee,

29



c. Prior to any change in shift schedule, affected employees shall be given reasonable opportunity to
provide input concerning shift schedules which meet the operational requirements of the City and personal
preference- The Department Head shall establish a regular schedule for each employee with a start and
quit tine- Such schedule shall not be changed without forty-eight (48) hours advance notice except in
emergencies.

d. City shall provide employees with reasonable clean-up time and employees shall be ready to
begin work at start time.

e- City agrees that work outside the regularly scheduled work day or work week shall be compensated
in accordance with the overtime policy contained herein,

Employees may develop alternative work schedules andlor telecommuting arrangements which
meet their personal needs and the operational requirements of the City under the Citys Flex Work Policy.
Such alternate schedules must be approved by the Department Head- The continuation of such schedules
shall be subject to Department Head review with reasonable input from affected employees.

g. In no case shall an employees work schedule be altered in connection with any particular work shift
to avoid the payment of overtime earned

h. When an Airport Matntenance employee has worked a regularly scheduled night shift, the employee
will be provided with paid leave time (without deductions from leave banks) to allow five hours of off-duty
time without a loss of pay before reporting for the next regularly scheduled daytime shift. With the
permission of the supervisoL the employee may choose to work the beginning of the employee!s next
regularly scheduled daytime shift, and take the equivalent paid rest period at the end of the regularly
scheduled shift instead

Exaniole:
If employee on a 9180 shift works I 0;0O p-rn - - 7 a,m. and is next regularly scheduled to begin a 9-
hour shift at 7:00 am., the employee may:

• Take a 5 hour rest period from 7 a.m - to 12 pin., receiving straight tine pay for the period from
7:00 a.m- to 12:00 p-rn- (5 hours), and then work From I 2;00 through the rest of the regularly
scheduled shift (4 more work hours).

• With supervisor’s permission, work for 4 hours beoinning at 7:00 an (when the next scheduled
shift begins), and leaveS hours eady instead

Employees on a 9/80 schedule will be covered under the temls of the 9IS0 Work Schedule Policy
contained in Appendix E of this Agreement

67. WORKERS COMPENSATION

a- The parties agree that Municipal Code Section 3.08.220 shall be amended to provide that general
employees who sustain illness or injury arising out of and in the course of their City amploynient shall
receive benefits equal to those mandated by the State of California plus the difference between State
nrnndated benefits and the equivalent of eighty-five percent (85%) of the individuafs gross (excluding O.T.)
salary, if any, paid by the City for a maximum of ninety (90) working days

0, Onoe an individual is no longer eligible for continuation of 85% of his/her gross pay as described in
(a) above and is still unable to return to work, the City shall continue to pay its contribution to insurance for
the first ninety (90) calendar days,

This section shall not be construed to grant employees the use of sick leave benefits in lieu of or to
supplement workers compensation benefits provided herein or by State law, except as follows,

An employee who returns from an accepted work-related injury or illness to regular duty or
modified duty may attend follow-up medical appointments during work hours when it is not

so



possible to arrange such appointments on non-work time. Reasonable advance notice must be
given to the supervisor, which in no event shall be less than 24 hours. Release time is subject to
supervisory approval based on operational needs.

Under these conditions, to account for the lost work time to attend physician, physioal therapy,
chiropractic, counseling and other physical and mental care appointments, the employee may:

1. Use accrued paid leave time (sick leave, vacation time, compensatory time, or personal
leave): or

2. Use 1ndustrial reave without pay tf employee has no accrued paid leave time, or
S. If the employee has not reached a permanent and stationary status, the employee may

elect to use “industrial leave without pay” if employee does not choose to use accrued
paid leave (sick leave, vacation time, compensatory time, or personal leave). However.
employees who have reached permanent and stationary status must exhaust available
leave balances before being placed on leave without pay.

An employee who has not reached a permanent end stationary status and uses industrial
leave without pay may be entitled to “wage loss” under workers’ compensation system
depending on eligibility.

The City may make changes to its Personnel Policies including, but not limited to, the Santa
Barbara Municipal Code to reflect the substance of this Agreement.

08. WORKING OUT OF CLASSIFICATION

Working Temporarily Out of Classification

The City and the Union agree that it is the intent of departmental management to avoid working an
employee out of classification.

It is further agreed that working an employee out of classification will occur only to meet the work
requirements within the City and that such out of classification work will terminate after ffteen (15)
consecutive work days or thirty (30) work days in any one ca’ender year; or if extended beyond fifteen (15)
consecutive or thirty (30) work days. the employee shall be compensated at the rate of the higher
classificauon while (he out of classificauon work continues sutect to the right of employee to waive this
provision based upon personal career development.

For purposes of this article, an out of classit,cation assignment is defined as assignment by the Department
Head or designee of the performance of a substantial preponderance of duties of an authorized, funded.
permanent. ftjll-time position in one or more higher class4ication(s) by an employee in a position in another
classification. ‘Significant duties’ shall be as defined on the appropriate class specification.

When an employee works out of classifioation continuously for fifteen (15) working days or more, the City
shall place a letter in the employee’s personnel file acknowledging the out of classification work.

It is the intent of this article to compensate empioyees for assigned out of class work extended beyond
fifteen (IS) consecutive or thimly (3D) work days in any one calendar year.

Position Reclassification Reauests

31



II an emp’oyee believes he/she is working cut of classification on a re.Jular an -COing basis, the emproyee
nlay:

a Request a reaFassitication from his/Tier manager it’ writing. rile manager shall respond in writing

within ten (1 Q) working days of receipt of the request. The manager may recommend that a
classiticaticn review be conducted by submitting a written reqijesi approved b the Department
Head. to Human Resources.

h. If the employee is not satisfied with the managers resoonse. he/she ma subntit a written
‘eclassification request to his/her Department Head or designee within ten (In) working days ci
recei’Iing his?her manager!s written resoanse. V/ithin venit {2O working days ci receipt ci the
employees wrinen request. the Depadnient Head or deinnee shall met ith the emplce and
i.sue a wr(tten response to the employee and he Human Resources Offi.

2 )ecanre- ead s srre sz 60, 55:5 l— a :s ‘ca:.cr T,”t’ ‘- cc xlec hr a’
RasoAcas st c--c.-- Sc •; ssScai eveR a 5r 6,5!. 5 [5 net: :t 0 re e,,i, Djt S.C

Ire Decarr-e’t •ac -vt’ fre-5ve:45:c’ -C ca>’s of ‘qoer: ‘Ine ‘etes TI’e ea cr0
60_es. 0’ ‘cetes a zasscaID,,e”e’ s—a be a( - ;epl’e —eats sue :scse,o
‘e.&’e fle dec s& r ta aJ’aycrazocs.

32



APPENDIX A

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL EXAMPLES

zrnpjel. An employee is assigned to work a ten (10) hour shift from 3:30 p.m. to 1:30 a.m. Because
50% or more of the assigned shift hours fall between 5:00 p.m. and m idniglit. the employee is entitled to
Swing Shift Differential pay. If thai employee is asked to work overtime fron, 1:30 am. to 3:30 a.rn., he
employee will be entitled to Swing Shift Differential pay at the overtime rate for the additional two hours
(1:30 a .m. to 3:30 a.m.) worked.

Exam Die 2. An employee is assigned to work an eight (8) hour shift from 7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and is
then directed to work an additional five (5) hours to cover for a sick employee from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p-m.
The employee is not entitled to shift differential pay because the assigned shift hours (7:30 a.m. to 4:00
p.m.) do not qualify for shift differential and the overtime worked is less than eight hours.

Examole 3. An em poyee is assigned to work 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. However, on this particular day, the
employee is assigned to work from 3:00 a .m. to 8:00 a. m. in addition to the assigned regular shift hours in
order to cover for en absent employee. The employee is not entitled to shift differential pay because the
assigned shift hours do not quatify for shift differential.

Example 4. An employee Is assigned to work 7;30 a.rn. to 4:00 p.m. and then is directed to work
additional time for an emergenoy situation. The emp’oyee then works until 1:00 a.nn. The enlp[oyee is
entitred to Swing Shift Differential pay at the overtime rate for the period of 4:00 p.m. 10 1:00 a.m. The
employee has in effect worked two shifts.

ELurnpi. An employee is assigned to work the swing shift between 4:00 p.m. and midnight and then is
assigned to work the graveyard shift from midnight to 5:00 a.m. In this case he employee is assigned to
work two distinct shifts. Therefore- the employee is entitled to Swing Shift Differential pay for the lime
between 4:00 p.m. to midnight and Graveyard Shift Differential pay at the overtime rate for the hours from
midnight to 8:00 a.m.

Exam ole 8. An employee is assigned to work the graveyard shift between mid night and 8:00 a. m. and
then is assigned the day shift from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. As in ExampleS, the employee is assigned two
distinct shifts: therefore, the employee is entitled to Graveyard Shift Differential for the time period of
midnight to 8:00 a.m.. but no shift differential for the time period of 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

Exam ie 7. An employee is assigned to work from 4:00 p.m. to midnight. That employee leaves work at
midnight. goes home, and then is called back to work between 2:00 a.m. and 7:00 am. That eni pioyee is
entitled to Swing Shift Differential pay for the regular assigned shift from 4:00 p.m. to m idniight. The
employee is not entitled to shift differential pay for the overtime hours (2:00 am, to 7:00 a .nt) beoause it
is considered a call back of less than eight hours.

Examole 8. An employee is assigned to work 7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p. ni. and then is called back to work at
7:00 p.m. and works until 3:00 am, due to an emergency situation. The employee is entitled to Swing
Shift Differential at the overtime rate for the call hack of eight hours or more (7:00 p.m. Ic 3:00 a.m.)

Appendix A- Shift Differential Examples



APPENDIX B

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

CHILD CARE PERSONNEL POLICIES

February 20! 1990

Note: A leave or reduced schedule approved under one of these policies runs concurrently with any
applicable leave entitlements underthe FMLNCFRA Family and Medical Ieave Policy.

Contents

1. Maternity Leave Policy
2. Parental Leave Policy
3. FlexIble Leave Policy
4. AlternatIve Work Schedules
5. JobSharing
6 Part-timo Work
r At-home Work

Appendix B- Child Care Personnel PolIcies



1. MATERNITY LEAVE (medical leave)

The City of Santa Barbara is committed to providing time off from work. so far as possible, to employees
during pregnancy and following childbirth.

Maternity leave requests. including both medical and non-medical components (see section on Parental
leave for information regarding non-medical leave)! must be submitted to the City Administrator via the
Departn,erit Head at least 30 days in advance. The requirement for 30 days advance notice may be waived
when warranted by unexpected medical circumstances. Pursuant to state law, maternity leaves for medical
reasons %tll be granted for up to four (4) months and may be extended up to a maxirnun of one (1) year
subject to the operational needs of the department as determined by the Department Head. All medical
loaves must be verlOed by a doctor’s certificate of disability.

When an employee is physically disable4 from work due to prefinanoy or following childbirth, the employee
will obtain a doctor’s certificate of disability indicating the dates Mien the employee will be physically unable
to work. When physically disabled, the employee may use sick leave or other paid leave. An employee
disabled due to pregnancy or childbirth may request an unpaid leave of absence for medical reasons once
her sick leave and other paid leave balances total Less than forty (40) hours. A dootors note listing the dates
of the disability must be submitted with the medical leave request. Any leave of absence greater than 7 days
must be approved in advance by the City Administrator.

The City will coordinate an employee’s use of State Disability Insurance (SDI) with City paid leave which
allows employees on maternity leave and covered by SD[ to extend the use of their paid leave time.

When an employee is on medical leave of absence due to pregnancy, the City will continue to pay the
employer portion of the insurance for the first ninety (90) days of the medica’ leave of absence. Thereafter.
an employee will have to pay both the employer and the employee portions of her insurance.

2. PARENTAL LEAVE (all employees, non-medical leave)

The City recognizes that after the birth or adoption of a child, it is important for a parent to be with his or her
child. As a result, the City encourages Department Heads to accommodate requests for parental leaves to
care for a newborn or newly adopted child,

Parenlal leaves shall be with pay if the employee has leave balances of vacation, personal leave, or
compensatory time. An employee may request a parental leave of absence without pay when the
employees paid leave balances total less than forty (40) hours (see section on Maternity Leave for
information regarding medical leave related to pregnancy and childbirth).

Parental leave requests must be submitted to the City Administrator via the Department Head at least 30
days in advance. When requested, parental leaves will be approved for a length of time sufficient to provide
the employee a minimum of one (I) month absence from work. Any medical leave related to pregnancy and
child birth (maternity leave) will not be counted in the minimum one (I) month. The scheduling of parental
leave is subiect to the approval of both the City Administrator and Department Head based on the operational
needs of the department. Extension of the parental leave of absence may be granted, subjeci to the
approval of the City Administrator! via the Department Head. The total duration of the combined medical and
parental leaves of absence cannot exceed one year.

Employees are encouraged to discuss their time off needs with their supervisors as early as possible.
Employees are also encouraged to save their vacation, personal leave, and compensatory time for use

Appendix B- Child Care Personnel Policies



during a parental leave- Temporary waivers of the minimum annual vacation use and maximum vacation
accrual will be considered to assist prospective parents in building their leave banks

While on parental leave of ebsence without pay, an employee will have to pay both the employer and
employee portions of his or her insurance-

3. rLExIBLE LEAVE POLICY (All Employees)

Employees may use accrued personal leave, vacation, comp time, to respond to emergency needs for
spouse or dependent*, such as illness, child care or elder care. The employee shall notify hs!her supervisor
immediately of the nature of the emergency. Approval for leaves under this policy shall not be unreasonably
withhetd. Advance approval for spouse or dependent illness s not required

* For purposes of this policy, a dependent is one who is a dependent pursuant to IRS regulations.

4. ALTERNATIVE WORK SCHEDULES (All employees)

The City believes that alternative work schedules are viable options to meet personal needs in areas such as
chitd care and transportation where such schedules continue to meet the operational needs of the
department,

Individual employees may request alternative work schedules which meet their personal needs and the
operational requirements of the department- Alternative schedules may be different dairy work hours or a
different wort< week Approval for reasonable atternative work sohedures is subject to the operational needs
of the department as determined by the Department Head. The continuation of such schedules shall be
subject to Department Head review with reasonable input from affected employees

5. J05 SHARING (All Employees)

The City recognizes that job-sharing may facilitate the balancing of emproyees! personal needs with their job
responsibilities. As a result, the City encourages Department Heads to attempt to accommodate requests for
job-sharing subject to the operational needs of the department as detemiined by the Department Head

An employee may request that hisiher full-time position be redefined as a job-sharing position to be filled by
two permanent part-time employees. Requests for job sharing posittons shall be submitted to the
Department Head and require final approvaL by the City Administrator and City Council.

Job sharing positions may be discontinued at the discretion of the Department Head! 4th 30 days notice to
affected employees,

6. PART-TIME WORK (All employees)

An employee may request to work on a pert-time basis- A request to work part-time for a limited duration is
subject to the operational needs of the department as determined by the Department Head- The Department
Head may grant part-time assignments & limited duration- Extensions of part-time assignments will be
considered upon employee request.

All part-time assignments may be periodically reconsidered by the Department Head- If the Department
Head determines additional hours are required in the position, the employee wl be given thirty days notice of

Appendix B- Child Care Personnel Policies



the requirement to work increased hours.

Part-time assignments must be a minimum of 20 hours per week. Part-time regular employees receive
insurance benefits and paid leave benefits prorated based on the number of hours worked.

To change an employee from full-time to part-Lime status requires a Personnel Action Form PAF) and
notification to the Personnel Office.

7. AT-HOME WORK (All employees)

With prior approval of tie Department Head and review by Risk r1anagement, an employee may request to
work at home on a limited-term basis. A’F requests will be subject to the operational needs of the department
as determined by the Department Head. Increased City liability including safety and vjorkers compensation
issues wl be closely reviewed prior to granting at-home work requests.

Requests for work sohedutes which incrude working at home for part of the regular work week may be
submitted to the Department Head. Authorization for such schedures for either a predetermined or indetinite
length of time will be made based on the foltowing criteria:

a) the operational needs of the department work site must be met adequatel

b) the job duties must be such that work can be accomplished at home;

C) proper equipment and supphes necessary to the job assignment can be provided at reasonable cost;

d) sufficient measures of productivity can be detemiined;

a) efficient and effective methods can be established for supervisory review of work assignments;

the amployea can be contacted at home during predetermined work hours.

Plans for meeting each of these criteria should be suomitted in writing to the Department Head for evaluation.
Once approved, at-home work schedules are subject to periodic review and may be discontinL’ed at the
discretion of the Department Head, with fourteen (14) days notice to the amployee.

Appendix B- Child Care Personnel Policies



APPENDIX C

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

CATASTROPHIC LEAVE POLICY

PURPOSE: To establish a program whereby City employees can donate vacation andlor
compensatory lime to:

A- The sick leave banks of permanent fufl-time and permanent part-time employees who are
incapacitated due to a catastrophic off-duty illness or injury; or

B. The vacation leave banks of permanent full-time and permanent part-lime employees who
are caring for a spouse or child who has a catastrophic Ulness or injury,

DEFINITION: A catastrophic illness or injury is a severe illness or injury which is unusual.
unexpected. or immediate in nature; and which is expected to preclude an employee from returning
to work for an extended period of time, during which the employee will exhaust all of his/her
applicable accumulated leave balances.

III. POLICY: City employees may donate vacation and/or compensatory time to a permanent full-time
or permanent part-time employee if;

A An employee experiences a catastrophic illness or injury or must care for a spouse or child
who has a catastrophic illness or injury which requires the employee Ic be absent from
work for an extended period of time;

The employee has nearly exhausted all applicable leave balances (sick. vacation, personal
leave, and compensatory time in the case of the employews off-duty catastrophic illness or
injury; vacation, personal leave and compensatory time due to caring for a spouse or child
who has experienced a catastrophic illness or injury); and

C, The employee or if incapacitated, the legally recognized representative, has agreed to
accept the donation if approved by the Deparlment Head and the City Administrator.

U, The Department Head will take action to help ensure that each employee!s decision to
donate or not donate to a Personal Catastrophic Leave Account is kept confidential and
that the donor and recipient emp[oyees are not pressured to participate.

State and Federal income tax on the value of vacation and/or compensatory time donated
shall be deducted from the recipient employees pay at the time the hours are used

IV. PROCEDURES:

A. A request is made by the recipient employee or if incapacitated, the legally recognized
representative, to the Department Head for the establishment of a Personal Catastrophic
Leave Account. This request may be made prior to the employee exhausting all of his/her
applicable paid leave balances so that time donated nay be utilized immediately upon
exhaustion of the emplcye&s leave balances, but not before,

Upon approval of the Department Head and the City Administrator, and upon agreement of
the recipient employee, a Personal Catastrophic Leave Account will be established. The
emp’oyee or if incapacitated, the legally recognized representative, will sign the ReQuest to

Appendix C- Catastrophic Leave Policy



Receive Donetion(si form allowing publication and distribution of information regarding
his/her situation.

C. The employee or if incapacitated. the legally recognized representative, will be required to
provide verrtcation of the catastrophic illness or injury from an attending physician before
and while using time donated under this program. All information provided by the attending
physician will remain confidential.

The request tar donations shall occur in three month intervals and may be extended up to
maximum of beelve (I 2) continuous months for any one catastrophic illness/injury, based
upon approval of the Department Head and City Administrator.

E. Donated vacation and/or compensatory time shall be converted and cxedited to the
recipients applicable leave bank in equivalent hours baseil upon the rebipients base hourly
rate. (e.g., employee A makes $20/hour and donates 1 hour of vacation time to employee
B who earns $10/hour. Bs applicable leave bank is increased by 2 hours for each hour
donated by A.)

P. Employees will use the “Donation ot Vacation and/or Compensatory Time’S form to submit
donations of vacation and/or compensatory time directly to Human Resources. All
donations will be reviewal for compliance with this policy. After review, the form will be
forwarded to Payroll for action and adjustment to the donor’s and recipient’s paid leave
balances.

G. All donations of vacation and/or compensatory time shall be in increments of 4 hours or
more (e.g. 4, 8, 12 hours) and shall be made in three month increments. An employee may
not donate vacation or compensatory time which would reduce his or her total accrued
combined balance of vacation, compensatory time, personal leave and sick leave to less
than 120 hours after the donation.

H. The donation of vacation and/or compensatory time is irreversible. Should the recipient
employee not use all the donated time for the catastrophic illness or injury, any balance will
revert to a City-wide “Catastrophic Leave Bank’ for future use by employees with need for
that donated time pursuant to the provisions of this Catastrophic Leave Policy.

The donation of vacation and/or compensatory time must be made to a specific approved
catastrophic leave recipient with the following exception: an employee who is within 50
hours of the maximum vacation accnjal may request to donate up to a maximum of 50
hours directly to the City-wide Catastophic Leave Bank” to avoid cessation of accruals.
Such donation directly to the City-wide Catastrcphic Leave Bank” may not be made more
than one time in any 12 month period.

A report on the usage of Personal Catastrophic Leave Accounts and status of the City-wide
“Catastrophic Leave Bank’ will be available to recognized labor organizations and others
with a need to know. The report will include the identity of the recipient(s). hours donated.
hours used and the remaining balance(s).

Appendix C- Catastrophic Leave Policy



APPENDIX 0

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY

FOR
GENERAL UNIT EMPLOYEES

Aaei, 3 ;- 9 as,: Azrci e C.



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY

FOR GENERAL UNIT EMPLOYEES

This policy sets forth the rights and obligations of the covered employees- You should farndjarize yourself
with the provisions of this policy BECAUSE COMPLIANCE WITH THIS POLICY ISA CONDITION OF
YOUR EMPLOYMENt

If you are an employee covered by this policy, you should be aware that you are still required to comply with
the provisions of the Citys Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace Policy (ATTACHMENT A that was adopted by
the City Council on August 21 1090- The obligations and requirements set forth below are in addition to
existing obligations and requirements set forth in the Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace Policy.

A. EMPLOYEE QUESTIONS

Employees shall refer any questions regarding rights and obligations under this policy to Human Resources
or to the union

B, COVERED EMPLOYEES

Employees in the lob classifications represented by SEIU, Local 620 in the General Employees Bargaining
Unit that are not covered under the CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY
PURSUANT TO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REGULATIONS

C. PROHIBITIONS

The following conduct is prohibited and may result in discipline, up to and including termination:

- The use, possession, manufacture, dispensation or disfribution of drugs and alcohol is
prohibited:

a- in the workplace;

while on City time;

c. in City vehicles or facilities except as defined in City’s facilities use policies;

d. prior to coming to work, so that the employee’s performance is impaired.

2- Reporting for duty or remaining on duty while having an alcohol blood concentration level of
0.08 or greater.

Being on duty or operating a vehicle on duly while possessing alcohol.

& Using alcohol while on duly

Reporting for duty or remaining on duty when the employee used any controlled
substances, except if the use is pursuant to the instructions of a physician who has advised
the employee that the substance does not adversely affect the employee’s ability to perform
their job.

6. Reporting for duty or remaining on duty if the employee tests positive for controlled
substances.

7. Refusing to submit to any alcohol or controlled substanoes test required by this Policy. A
covered employee who refuses to submit to a required drug/alcohol test will be treated in
the same manner as an employee who tested 0.08 or greater on an alcohol test or tested

Appendix 0- Drug And Alcohol Testing Policy- General Unit



positively on a CM’ltrolr€d substances test.

A refinal to urriit to -an alcohol or controlled substances test required by this Policy
inclurJes hut is riot lirriited to:

a A r’eftisal o provide a urine sample for a drug test;

Ant inlaijility to provide a urine sample without a valid medical explanation:

A refusal a coniplete and sign the breath alcohol testing form, or
othtft4se ro cooperate ith the testing process in a way that prevents the
corripleticri of the test:

Ai ir,abiEity to provide b(eath or to provide an adequate amount of breath
witfrIoLJt a aiid rileclical explailahori.

e. rarripenng vitFi or atterliptirig to adulterate the urine specimen or collection
procedure;

Not repordno ía the collection site in ne time allotted by the supervisor or
rnanaqer who directs the erimployse to be tested (the time allotted shall be
reason.sble. In most cases the City viI provide transportation to and from
th collection site.t.

g. La.nnq the scene oF an accident without a valid reason as to why
authorization From a sLipeftmscr or nla’lager who shall determine whether
to send the empIoee For a post-accident controlled substances and/or
Alconc test was not ohtsuied.

U. CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH DRUG AND ALCOHOL rESrING WILL SE IMPOSED ON
COVERED EMPLOYEES.

Pro-Employment Te,ting

i ri,ar; For Cy eoi,:ert a.? he ‘ecsred t s,sfr’t
ç :es:wc —- S ars ia açDhrel as a Err-r.tt C arc -c t0

S or !ne- r iC SC Ce

\c: :—e’e c :r-.r3y,e’, accst es

2. Post-Accident 1esnq

Do54a:.ccr. v. rc aces. est.v ze :04 t_eo -x ar-cc,ees z a

Accro o,:-atitr: aecI-. a cc ac—- serec — mo [cs k an-c a
&—: Ce—: a-to rr es! — a 0€ e&z ae h
>Jc: A o rA: sa cc co’-cr.ed w— ear: -‘ass o Drç Die

a oc c el:

s- c.oer oçc_3 t.t cs -es.: a -e - .-. - a ,eize ocea:ac z a

ZD.eeo e7,rte

- al rarSJa .5 -ees t r.tS: eD’s t recfl:e e a:e 1 O

:2. we a e e-cn:n c a . Scee ae(z eca p&eS50U4 ra:
—t aa is - rvo ret-vt aCc (len slot S se a Dl,s.ia”o —.—-ysi S O

D- Dç AS Aavc esr; ry- Gerea Li:



3. Return To Duty (Follow-up Testing:

A covered employee who has violated any of he prohibifions of this policy (See Section C)
may be required to submit to a return to duly test before heJshe may be returned to his/her
position- The test result must indicate an alcohol concentration of less than 0.08 or a
verified negative result on a controlled substances test,

E. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES

An employee must notify his/her department head of all alcoho or criminal drug statute convictions
no later than 5 days after such conviction-

An employees must notify his/her supervisor, before beflinning work, wten drugs (prescription or
non-prescription) may interfere with the safe and effective performance of duties or operation of City
equipment (See Attachment A, Article Ill, Section ).

Any employee who thinks he/she may have an alcohol or drug use problem is urged to voluntarily
seek free confidential assistance from the Cits Employee Assistance Program (EAP) counselor. It
is the responsibility of each employee to seek assistance before alcohol or drug problems Lead to
job related performance problems.

F. MANAGERS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RESPONSIBILIrIES

Managers and supervisors are responsible for enforcement of this policy and will inform the
Department Head and the Human Resources Manager of any violations.

2. Employees who may have a suspected alcohol or drug use problem shou’d be encouraged
to voluntarily seek confidential assistance from the Citys Employee Assistance Program
(EAP) -

3, When an employee is nvoIved in an accidenL managers and supervisors shall prevent the
employee from engeging in further work, remove the employee from the workplace, and
then send the employee for a drug and/or alcohol tests within the timelines outlined in
Section D. 2 above,

4. When it is suspected that an employee may have illegal drugs or is under the influence of
illegal drugs managers and supervisors notify the appropriate law enforcement
agency.

0. PROCEDURES TO BE USED FOR DETECTION OF DRUGS AND ALCOHOL

1. Alcohol Testing:

Alcohol testing will be conducted by using an evidential breath device (EBT) approved by
the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration- (Non-EBT devices may be used for
initial screening tests.)

A screening test will be conducted f’rsL if the result is an alcohol concentration level of less
than 0-02, the test is considered a negative test, if the alcohol concentration level is 0.02 or
more, a second confirmation test will be conducted- A positive test for alcohol means a
confirmed alcohol concentretion of 0.08 or more

The procedures Ihat will be utilized by the co’iection and testing of the specimen shari be
the same as those required under the City Of Santa Barbara Drug And Alcohol Testing
Policy Pursuant To Department Of Transportation Regulations @9 CER 40),

2. Drug Testing:

Appendix D- Drug And Alcohol Testing Policy- General Unit



Drug testing will be conducted pursuant to the same requirements as those required by the
City Cf Santa Barbara Drug And Alcohol Testing Policy Pursuani To Department Of
Transportation eLilatiors (4 CFR Part 40).

a. The urirL. SrieCiriieti witi be split into bno (2) bottles labeled as: primary! and •!split!
epecIme,i, Bath bottles will be sent to the lab:

A positive t.st ryie’a,is a test that is positive for controlled substances under the
Federal 0 O.T. Urine Specimen Testing Levels (Current Fevels ATTACHMENT B).
If the urinalysis of ne iri’iiary specimen tests positive for the presence of
controlled substances, the eitiptdyee has seventy-two (72) hours to request that
the spht ipecinierl be arial2ed by a different certified lab at the employee!s cost.

The irinre sa’iiple ‘ill be tested far the following: maruana. cocaine, opiates.
amphetamines, arid phericycli<line:

d. Ii the test is positive for one or more of the drugs, a confirmahon test will be
performed using gas ctironiatograplw!nliass spe.ctrornetry analysis:

All drug results will be reviewed arid interpreted by a pbysican before they are
reported to the employee and then to the Ci:

With all positive drug tests, the physician a k .3. Medial Review Officer) will first
contact the employee to deterniine if there is an alternative niedical explanation for
the posit”e test result IF documentation is provided and [lie MRO determines that
there was a rerjitirnate medical use For the prohibited dnjq the Lest result may be
reported to the City as ‘negative.”

3. ConFidentiality:

The contidentiality ol records shall be r!maintained vi the sanie manner as set Forth in the City Of
Samrta Barbara Droc And Alcohol resting Pclicy Pursuant To Departlime!it Of Transportation Regulations.

H. CONSEQUENCES OF FMUN&fiEPUSINS AN ALCOHOL ANDOR DRUG TEST

FA Ll*3 A 0,E’E!nUOfl!E,T DPLS EST ‘a? r, E GRCJ’JDS O SEECE C’s FC4-I
E.k12 .O’i’LiE’IT,

L’J ;Ap. ‘GA ODST.CC DEN COhCL A’,D CR [)LS ES FE E’.’FC’EE,

i e roro,sc rs’ qe’ Doe. r a a, cc cai SD J5 a.: — Direr::

2 av e 25cr: 9ed .zv L. tr arcr. Fa c a 0 tale a c.ro, ec sbsrcea a c,yd
as: Ta es’. ‘ :1-’a i an , a aid -cara 2V ,a:o-.

3. V2 DC acnec IC cc a ai race aeemw as aia :eia: ye :o 5s2 le :r C- Coc

eç,. e he e-ree to ,wzrg, ea:re-: to c-re Is -ei &czc c &,c Jse 0 Ce
es:eo r D Ca e,ea ‘a e— aet es:s zos : ;e ro aS ro: Dee ‘D.C 2

DC 5 ‘1 a 00,01 Dr c-J c: ce ‘ac a ast ctce soewner: Ta C :y oDes

av ft, s e.,n,a:r: LS a, eale —ov,s’€ me er x :‘ea:rerr 5
co”eec Dy he e-lDoyees sta’ce pCCy he em)ree —a ise : -sira-ce poEov :0

• —e Da It ::e Davea ex,e’ises

e e—r,oee -ay st au,— a:c acaxs pe’sor eava cvraime o cave ,‘:Djt

D’ ;: Ajror.; Tee io Pr,icy’ Se,e Lr:



pay while undergoing treatmentlrehabijitation

5. The employee rTiOy use sick leave only when participating in a medically
superv’sedapprc-ed ?es’derIt’al rehabilitation program or during the first ninety (90) days of
a medicay super:ised.;approved outpatient rehabilitation program.

6. r-Aay not be returned to fi’s/fier position until the employee submits to a return-to-duty
controlled substances arlctior alcohol test (depending on which test the employee fatled)
which indicates a,l alcohol concentration level of less than 008 or a negative result on a
controbed substance, test:

7- May be required a submit to u’lanrloL,mlced follow-up testing after helshe has been returned
to hisiher sa[ety-se,isiFive position.

J. EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EAP)

rile City has established an Eniplovee Ass’,taiice Pro9ramu to rielp employees who need assistance with
alcohol and controlled substance abuse Eniproyees are elicoLiraged to contact the Citys Benefits Office for
ilie number of tile current EAP provider.

kt,ecc€ D- So 4r &-.; Te r200v- Ge,es Jr



Appendix D- AFIACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 90-141

A ESC9D\ C TIE COtkC - cf 1-E STY 0
aA;EARA 4m’ie A DELS AND 4_OC[O_ rNEE WCi€KP.ACE
c4IS’.

;.EAS e rc D-. ee Vr .pace Ac:&1E-S3 retiec -e ;gc.- o4 a
free vzk,ace Do cy ad

Vj-IEAS :-e o,ese9ce of o aco e o ri Ic flece 04
substances on employees durinq working hours jeopardizes He safety Of employees the pubt’c.
ard e”c3roj of Clv ceat,&s aTh

hEREAS te -:5:0 easn a ç a.l a co ‘ee DtDIae

+SI, VEECRE. SE - RESCLED E T tDJ’*CI_ QZ T CC’ OE SA

re weO C, Woro ree:pze Pr De iscted

Adopted August Zi. 99

Aoce’c D- S9 Aj At; Tes , 00 CV Gewa J
Aca:’en’4 Ss e J-:Fr@e 4c4w3ce POr,



0-1 7-00

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

DRUG AND ALCOHOL FREE WORKPLACE POLICY

I- PIJRPOSE

The City of Santa barbara. in its efforts to provide a drug and alcohol free environment, has
adopted this Drug arid Alcohol Free WorpIace Policy. It is the purpose of this policy to
timinate alcohol arid &uq abuse by City Employees and its effects in the workptace. The
presence of drugs and arcohol on the to end the influence of these substances on
employees during workiri Fiours leopardizes he safety of em ployees the public, and the
etftiency o City operations It is the intent of he City, in adopting this policy, to meet the
requirements ol the On’jg Free vorkpace Act of 100$ 41 U .S.C. Section 701-707).

II. POLICY

In rocognibon 0t the duties entrusted to the employees of he City ci Santa Barbara and with
knowledge that drugs and alcohol hinder a pe,’sonis ability to perform job related duties sefely
an eirectively. the City of Santa Barbara adopts the folloving policy:

The use possession manufacture dispensation or distribution or’ drugs and alcohol is
prohibited’

a. in the workplace:

b, while cml City time;

c, in Cit’ vehicles or facilities ecept as (Ichned in Cty5 fcilities iiae policies.

d. priqr to coaling to work, so that the employees pedcroiance is impaired.

2. ‘e Ci ‘. mw-— ‘red 0 anst— ‘a’le accc’’isCa’cr 0 rse nzoyees
:Q or .:i fl Din set’:, ass ‘es Ire,- as ‘-- Caf Dec. a- et ‘e’%’a an.

,a- crab Sec S.D na Ens.c’jee Ass sLarsa5ocaT EA. :r ass s:
see eDc( az—-e4c’zt; D’ocersfas & as,a

e:y 0 :—e- 5*-so. srx’t’’is En-D ctfS 5E& col- de-: a CES htace i’cIr

EAP zzr’seIy

A°P. 04D’J

Tbs cky as,e:aa :‘e. neao exa&mo.oaes a-1:oa
‘7’ pas :j.’ s 5’, !‘ Ci1 T ID Dy a* es so a co a S S sJDsaces.

red Cal ‘is e-a I 0 eoa, v.’ C’ ,a ‘S a’ eir 0, Se S st :0 e’er:i,e
ar-i saje V eC4’i ‘ --‘ 4r

2. Acç.yc9 Xisy.’ e yo.’cej:oa tIye,tyees

3. A c-,s-ee awaress a” W he es:ab s-edo “G eo,ees 5 : Sags
at re9a5 7 ct; se ii’ e-.-.aaCearSoa,a sole ocrse 9, -etas Ia:r sic
C— c;ee 555 stave o:sga’is

> Ac A’crrv Tee pc ;. Ceie’a



& Violations of the poricy may result in disciplinary action being taken, up to and including
termination, in addition to possible criminal penalties or refusal to hire an applicant.

IV.EMPLOVEES RESPONSIBILITIES

An employee:

1. Must not report to work. or be subject to scheduled duty while his/her ability to perform
job duties is impaired due to on or off duty alcohol or drug use

2. Must not use, possess manufacture, dispense or distribute drugs or alcohol

a- in the workplace:

on City tine:

c in City vehicles or facilities except as defined in City’s facilities use policies;

d. prior to coming to work, so that the en’ployees performance is impaired.

I Must notify his/her supervisor, before beginning work, when drugs (prescription or non
prescription) may interfere with the safe and effective performance of duties or operation of
City equipment, In the event there is a question regarding an employee’s ability to safely and
effectively perform assigned duties while using prescribed drug. authorization from a qLlaiified
physician may be required

4 Must notify Ills/her department head of any criminal drug or alcohol statute conviction, for
a violation occurring in the workplace, no later than five (5) days after such convictiomr

5. A safety employee must notify his/bar department head of all alcohol or criminal drug
statute convictions, no later than five (5) days after such conviction.

ft Who thinks helshe may have an alcohol or drug use problem is urged to voluntarily seek
free confidential assistance from the Cits Employee Assistance Program (EAP) counselor
it is the responsibility of each employee to seek assistance before alcohol or drug problems
lead to job related performance problems.

V,MANAGERS AND SUPERVISORS RESPONSIBILITIES AND GUIDELINES

1, Managers and supervisors are responsible for enforcement of this policy and will inform
the Department Head and the Human Resources Manager of any violations.

2, Employees who nay have a suspected alcohol or drug use problem should be
encouraged to voluntarily seek confidential assistance from the CitVs Employee Assistance
Program (EAP),

3. When it is suspected that an employee is under the influence of drugs or alcohol at the
workp’ace managers and supervisors shaH prevent the employee from engaging in further
work remove the employee from the work place. consult with another manager or supervisor
to confirm their suspicions, and then! take appropriate action- The employee shall be
informed that a union representative or shop steward could be notified, at the eni pioyees
request. Managers and supervisors may notify the appropriate law enforcement agency.

4 When it is suspeoted that an employee may have illegal drugs or s under the inuence if
illegal drugs, managers and supervisors shall notify the appropriate law enforcement agency,

Appendix D- Drug And Alcohol Testing Policy- General Unit



5. For employees working on programs receiving federal grant money. the City shall:

a. notify the Federa[ contracting agency within ten (10) days afte, receiving
notice of an en,ployees criminal drug statute conviction occurring in the
workplace. (41 U.S.C. Section 701-717)

b. impose a sanction. or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse
assistance or rehabilitation program for any am ployee who is convicted of a
criminal drug statute viotation occurring in the workplace. (41 U.S.C. Section
701-707)

Appendix D- Drug And Alcohol Testing Policy- General Unit



Appendix 0- AUACHMENT B

Federal DOT. Urine Specimen Testing Levers
From 49 CFR Part 40 Subpart F

All cutoff concentrations are expressed in nanograms per milliliter nglrnL). The table follows:

Te of Drug or Metabolite -

(1) Maruuana metabolities

U) Delta-9-tetrahydracannebinol-9-
caroxylic acid (rHO)

(2) Cocaine rnetabolities - -

fBenzoylecgonine)

Initial Test
50

16

300 ISO

(3) Phencycridine (PCP)

(4) Amphetamines

(i) Amphetamine

(ii) Metham phetamine

25

I 000

25

500

500
(Specimen must also contain

(5) Opiate metabolities

U) Codeine

2000

amphetamine at a concentration of
greater than or equal to 200
ng/mL.)

2000

(ii) Morphine

(iii) Secetyl morphine

Appendix 0- Drug
Attachment B- Drug Specimen Levels

2000

10
Test for 6-AM in the specimen.
Conduct this test only when
specimen contains morphine
at a concentration greater than
or eiual to 2000 nq/m L.

Confirmation Test

And Alcohol Testing Policy- General Unit



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ADMINISTRATIVE
POLICIES:

9/80 WORK SCHEDULE POLICY

Issued by. Barbara Barker Human Resources Manager

Appendix E
Policy No. ThA

Adopted:

5/8/2007
Updated: 5/8/2007

To set orth the
establishment and
as 9/80s.

Tb’s policy
EexWork
conflict he
purposes.

POLICY:

City of Sn[a Barbara’s policy and procedures governing the
administration of an alternate work schedule commonly referred to

is intended
Pohcy’ and
tween those

the City
Howeve
policy

The 9/80 alternate work schedule may be the standard assigned schedule for a position
or work unit, or may be granted. at the employees request, as an alternative work
schedule under the City’s FlexWork Program or Cbildcare Personnel Policies (also
called ‘Family Friendly Policies) The guidelines set (o,tb ri this policy will apply to any
employee working a g/0 schedule

DEFINITIONS:

1. ‘80 Alternate Thic Stteeu &
Tb8 92 a na w-’l< sOpdje thaI co’s S C eight (R wcr< days Cs nrc (\ [j’s
wC OH wot day Of eight :b) [CL’S ‘cr ::al o- eiGhty (SQi .Ka.rs cJr r D.C :2
ccrseot.:ia sorc weeks Fcr rom-.—alagemer: e—CDyees, tie e:g,t g icu- wcr say
rust s Di lie same cay of tie wee as lie &‘1DoySe s eçJar Flex )ay Off FOCi.
Jrder I-c /öC sc-ecj e. ole Ca elda e.g. Sali’say-Fiday neek shal cers sz of 44
work hoj’s low 9-icur cays aid one 8-iou day ar l’e a rana:iig ta sidar vee

i consist o 36 work hojrs ifrtr 9-hojr says aid Ore say off:.

2. Fex Gay Of’

The Fox Day 0” ZDO) siall an eigM :S bo..r day and may occr oq any day o tie
week. For ,Dn-rranagerenl emplcyees. The FDO mL.s: be tie same Day o the wee
as to emCyees S-hojr wo* day [13: OCcLDS .r be Drecec nq and sucseqtert wcr
weeks ‘as. tie e-ioyee S regjary sciecjled F ex Day O is each a::erna:e ‘cay
trier tie erp:cyee snail e sciesjled to wo eight icu’s :be recec rg aid
sLbsecuet Fidays,.

A,cec; S 4S0 ;C’ SCFED.LE ‘0. CV

PURPOSE:

to complement the provisions of
Child Care Personnel Pohcies’
provisions and this policy, this

of Santa Barbara’s
in the event of a

shall control for all



3. 9/80 ELSA Workweek

Under the Fair Labor Standards Act, the workweek is defined as a fixed
recurring period of seven consecutive 24-hour periods (165 bours). When
is assigned to a 9/SO schedule, the 9180 work week begins on the empi
day, at exactly four (4) hours after the scheduled start time and ends 168
the same time on the same day during the following week. This results
time hours per ELSA workweek, and 80 straight time hours per pay period.

pay period begins at 12:00 am. (midnight) on Saturday, and ends
before the same time on Friday two weeks later. This is different than the
period for an employee on a 9/80 schedule! whose ELSA workweek may
periods.

5. Eair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)

The Fair Labor Standards Act is a Federal law that sets minimum wage, overtime pay,
equal pay, recordkeeping, and child labor standards for employees that it covers.

6. Non-Exempt Employee

A non-exempt employee is an employee who, because of the type of duties performed.
the usual level of decision making authority, and the method of compensation, is subject
to the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. Nonexempt employees are generally
required to account for all hours worked and must be compensated at not less than
time-and-one half at the regular rate for all hours worked over 40 in one FLSA
workweek.

APPROVAL:

Scheduling of a 9/80 Work Schedule including the selection of the work days, woric
times! and the Ff0, shall be done by management based on business needs, subject
to the requirements of the applicable Mcii. and/or sideletler governing the 9180 Work
Schedule.

The City and the Union agree that under certain circumstances, alternative work
schedules (9/80, 4/10, and/or modified starting or ending times) may be beneficial to
both employees and the City. Employees may request , upon their own initiative,
consideration of an alternate schedule and/or EDO based on childcare, alternative
commute! school, or other personal issues through the FiexWork Policy or Childcare
Personnel Policies.

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ADMINISTRATIVE Policy No. TSA
POLICIES:

9/80 WORK SCHEDULE POLICY

Ejed by: Barbara Barker. Human Resources Manager Adopted: Sf8/2007

..

. Updated

4. City Pay Period

and regularly
an emproyee

oyee’s 8 hour
hours later, at
in 40 straight

The Citys
immediately
FLSA work
span 2 pay

Appendix E- 9/80 work Schedule Policy



CHANGES TO SCHEDULE LIMITED:

1. Changing he Flex Day Off

Once the EDO is designated. working on the EDO may incur overtime in one or more
ELSA workweeks therefore working on ole FCC or making changes to the FOG
requires management approvar.

Temporary changes to the ELSA workweek and/or the FOG to avoid overtime are not
permitted.

2 Working on the 8 Hour Day

Once the 9/80 schedule begins. working an alternate schedule on the 8 hour work day
may incur overtime liability in one or more FLSA workweeks. Therefore, altering an
employees schedule on the a haur day requires management approval. çe.g., if an
employee scheduled to work from 8-5 comes in 1-4 instead, one work week will incur I
hour of overlime. and the employee will be short an hour in the ner work week and
need to use leave balances.)

HOLIDAYS, PERSONAL TIME OFF AND JURY DUTY:

1.

DoyeOs D’ 980 &ork szieu a wic a’e C. gFN ‘o [‘o Day pay w. I be er:i:Iec lo
te same Hcliday pay as en’pDyees Dl a 03C $0 hOL[l WDk SC9€DJ e. PF oayoav
s-iall e—aI— a: a nl iS1 lou’s iiVbei a ho say fal:s or a IO9La- nra bo.r wor4dav.
te emp4cyee I uso cne 1) ‘lcu of perscra aocied leave tbe :vacatn, oerscra
leave. Qr o-9 ime) :c make up he ant bojr

Vhei ti-a ho Day S cbsera on t”a emlcyees FDft I”e emplcyee will accrJe or
acdr.isnal B-hour rI oay day o’l I’ eqjved u’de the appiloaDle M.O.J.. sLdl ay off
shal e :aker w Ii” :i-y 3D: catersar says or shal comcensoteo at spa oh: cay
aler lie 30th Day

2. Persora. cave a’c eeavenenI Leave

Employees Qr 960 work ssheue wie are &lgiDIe for perscna aid:cr zareavernen:
eave e I 3€ a-I les o he same °e-so’a Leave aidlor Sereevemen- pay as
empcyees or a Y3O eQ ICLJI work sthedu a. Leave anc Bereavement pay
are wailed to ‘t.,l-ti-- e’- Dyces n amojits eDu.va.eit :0 8 qcu days leg.. Me

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ADMINISTRATIVE
POLICIES:

9(80 WORK SCHEDULE POLICY

Issued by BarhIri6arker HLIrnan Resources Manager

Policy No. IDA

Asrc SOWcr- S;’ezje F&tv



employee wiN be eligible [or total of up to 32 hours of personal leave arid up tQ 40 total
hours of bereavement Feave) Personal Leave and Bereavement pay are charged at
nine (9) hours for time taken On scheduled nIne hour day and (8) hours for time taken
on a schedueed eight hour day

3. Vacation. Sick. Compensatory Time. PO, etc.

Time off From work using accrued vacation, sick, PTa. or other paid leave banks will be
charged at rIne (9) hours for time taken on a scheduled nine hour day. Time off from
worI on the eight(S) hour work day will be charged at eight(S) hours.

4. Jury Duty

An employee shall not be entitled to jury duty pay, at 0 overtime pay or compensatory
time off [or jury duty on the FCC. However, an eniployce on all absence exceeding one
week [or jury duty, mijitary duty, etc. clay request to temporriy switch back to a regular
10/80 schedule. The transition guidelines below will apply to approval at such request
to transition to the 40-hour schedule (Section F2, below) or back train the 40-hour
schedule (Section Fl. below)

OVERTIME:

I. Overtime Earned

v”lar rn oveire-elgib 1€ emcyea 5 rn a 9’8 wcr< sJiezjie, ceel re ‘Dr hOJFS
exoeedir 40 i a wcr’wee.. hem Lider Inc ELSA aid as zro,Cez Lider ar,
aDp.iceb a M,Q.J , tit be z.ased or tie FLSA wcriweek r -ote wo’ss, e’flDVSe
wto are a igisle ‘Cr cve,I re stial ee ye cve’lme pay o ccmpeisa:crq ti cf ‘Or
hours cr’c n excess of IS p. 44 Fojrs n :he’ resectie sthedu ad (e.g. SLrcay
r:da. calrcar wkweek

Emp zyes ray also be el .b C ‘Dr oval re o cDm:ensa:cry ‘me Sc, oThr hojrs
excess of 1e regular 9180 work sct’edule as D’ov des under the app DaD e V.C U.

2. Civel re PakI

The E:8D FLSA worcweeks ‘MI ‘0: gerealry DoiesDDld iti The CWs oay petds
Thee’cre ‘,tiere a,usIr-eiIs to overt ‘e compe.isa:icn carrict ‘a Da cj ated Li-ni -Se

comp err o’ tie erp oyees wotweek a 9.. wter tray otcjr -. The ast ialf 0’ tre

iou cay,. a o,e cay erods celay r he emcloyee recei rig tie asc :icral
compe,sa:ior may DccL.r

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ADMINISTRATIVE
POLICIES:

9/80 WORK SCHEDULE POLICY

Policy No, TBA

Issued by: Barbara Sarker, Human Resources Manager Adopted: 5/8/2007
Updated

.4rt2 xe-s so Wtc S?ec,. 0c c



9/80 WORK SCHEDULE POLICY

Issued by: Barbara Barker, Human Resources Manager Adopted: 5/8/2007

____________

Updated

TRANSITIONING TO OR FROM A 9/80 WORK SCHEDULE

When an employee transitions from a 10/80,
schedule to a 9/80 work schedule, there will be
workweek. This results in a situation in which 4
the new workweek. The following procedures are designed to avoid an overtime
obligation during this change. Any deviation from these procedures must be approved
in advance by management.

1. Transitioning to a 9/80 Work Schedule

For a non-management employee, the transition to a 9/80 work schedule will be set to
begin during a 36-hour calendar workweek! when an FDO occurs. Four hours in the
new FLSA workweek will overlap with the prior 40 hour calendar work week, but
because the following calendar week wiN contain 36 hours, this wHI result in 40 hours of
straight time in the first new ELSA work week.

2. Transitioning to a normal 40 hour Work Schedule
For a non-management employee, the transition back to a normal 40-hour work week
(e.g. !;10/80! or 4/1 0’) from a 9180 work schedule will be set to begin the week following
a 36-hour calendar work week. This will result in 40 hours of straight time in both the
prior ELSA 9/80 work week and the new regular FLSA calendar work week.

While this change will not lead to overtiriie, this will result in the employee working only
72 hours in the pay period in which the change occurs. Employees must use 4 hours
from their available leave banks to make up this time not worked. [To avoid this result.
management would need to approve the employee to work an additional 4 hours during
that pay period, recognizing that those hours will be paid at the overtime rate.I

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ADMINISTRATIVE Policy No. ThA
POLICIES:

4/10! or other 40-hour per week work
a change to the beginning of the PLSA
hours fall in both the old workweek and

Appendix C- 9/80 Work Schedule PoFicy



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE Cr., OF SANTA BARBARA (THE
01W”) AND THE SANTA BARBARA CITY EMPLOYEES’
ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 620 SERVICE EMPLOYEES
INTERNATIONAL UNION! AF OF 1, dO (THE UNION) REGARDING
TERM AND COMPENSATION OF RESIDENt PARKS CARETAKERS

Whereas. City owns several residential units cr1 City oark property that serve as caretaker
residences

Whereas. City wishes to lease such residential units to q’jalilid City employees çlhe
CaretakerCi:

Whereas. Cirj and Union wish 10 document the ernis and conditions 01 the empIoer-em plovee
relationship incidental to these residential Iease,s:

Now, Ihe’efore C arc jc’—e -Ia - .—Iz —s az-ee-.- Sc -rcer- Ire er 5 3 iU Sc C ore
e,*er: &C.ljoar-. a-=es ‘no a-c -eree—:ec cQ

Lease AoreefTIent A-n Ca-e:a_e no 5 CC.. Cc - a tOot .10, res Ce- t a
r )a ‘ZO€’tf sal exeo.ne a ease a7ee,”e—: 4 7. lbe C e ease aceerar: r

cove-, ye ac c-:e’a,: eat”s :. e:tee :e C:, :r C .:ela.& lye”. 0r;ec 0’

t’a ,clex.c ‘e z’—-r,a c’4c unzefsenlDi I s’Ca ‘(y”a;a9e C’ce’
--1X,’. 0’ arv ,_ccess’- . age ct- e’o .2 zes rcr: it k:9.’ ,. S Arree” cr’ o’ ar,
Ye’ista’c,r’ 0’ L-dreat —ç ze-sel :‘-e C :ir ao [5 “S se: r:e’e’e Pi::i: C er’0t e’el: &
a C) re 5’), S 0 2’ re ee eeq’e-l )e,veer :‘iec Iv arc r5 Ce:a, c C:ya ‘Ni Lo cc
‘web aCne tal Cr, s rol oiqe.ec ID —ee: aC ccer i : l’ir c’ 0 e’ a’y G:5 S C’
Inc ease agreetrient inducing, oui not limited to. termination of be lease Funnerrnore. inc Careraker
shall not have grievance rights regarding the terms, conditions and cdenants ot the lease agreement.

2’ Letter Aeement. T S Agreee—: st’a o.’C’-I e eo; ovee
re a: os Cerh eel :,e C :y a,c Ca-e:a—e- TIe rrs 04 t As.ee—.—: s—a sJpc e’ ‘c: ‘c en-s
a.”:a joptc .lero’a”awr ot j-cee:anc ‘c zelceel C I a-c S-ic— 1oy.caS e to Ie Ca’e:akes
e”I4orer:. “-e e,ns ,e _ease reewe—: da rc: sOve— re eA-c,e’• rseee ‘elatorsip.
ter: c:ie esce”ce “C : car-a. Ca’eajces “2V Ce ‘cc,. ‘Cc W lo.t: 0 0eO( ‘ Soc 350_S

Sc’ .‘es :
‘0 .a(e’ Sem- c-es’ ‘—c_c rc: 1 cc :0

a. C D-. — •xe,-:-z ar I cs I Cr— :--g-.es, C ..sl :d scm tea ‘ pa ‘k
-553cc—s. To—tm-;. SDeC a even: rc :r ac ‘s’d ‘c
“O a:c r)’±ee-’-z ant ‘e’: -acicr:s S I -t acc4erf. va”ca Sm

S —ç —t-r:e Sat—p 0’ ot e ,eçac’..’ .,:“r.zecao:y’,’,
S ‘ec ‘a rw’ ;,c— -oq’ ea-qeoe arc reos U’ ‘; e “Is a” cc’’ a’i’s
rcr. :,e.r.yy —c-’.e- ser) C e:eta,e: to cr,c:t ca.: s;:e wa,i- C) lie

property and niatnlain a log ot all time spent on ceiclaker Seivices.

U. Fraricesohi Park — opening and closinq park enhances, custodial services in
park restrooms, park inonito,inp, and ,espondinq ID security iiiolat ions by
observing and reporting inoidenls of fire, accidents vandalism, illegal durn ping.
unauthorized camping or other illcoal ci unauthotized actiilily: plotectinig park
property from damage and receiving commenls arid complaints from neighbors
and park users. Caretaker to conduct a daily sile valk of the property and
maintain a log of all time spent on caretaker se,vices

c. Douglas Family Preserve — park monitoring, and responding to security violations
by observing and reporting incidents of fi,e accidents vandalism, illegal
dumping, unauthorized cam ping or other iteqal or unauthorized activity:
protecting park properly from damage and receiving comrnents and complaints
frcm neighbors and park users. Caretaker to conduct a daily site wa’k of the
property and maintain a log of all time spent on caretaker services.

Appendix F- Resident Parks Caretakers



3) Services Only Required During Work Hours, No Standby Time. All required
Caretaker Services shall he assigned as part of the Caretaker’s normal work hours. Outside the
Caretaker’s normal work hours. tie Caretaker shall not be required to be on the park properly or to be
available to perform Caretaker Sen’”ces at any time, rime spent on park property outside the Caretaker’s
normal work hours shall not be ccinis,dered hours worked and shall not be subject to standby pay.

4) Services Outside Normal Work Hours Psrmitte. Noithstanding the assignment
of work hours in section 3 above, ‘I tie Caretaker is cr1 the park property outside the Caretaker’s normal
work hours and the Caretaker becorlies aware of a situation that requires immediate attention in order to
proteGt public safely or public or private property, the Caretaker may, but is not required to, attend to the
situation- Any such work shall be c.a,ilpenisated in accordance with the wage specified in section 5 below.
The Caretaker is not entitled to call. back tulle or shift differential pay for the services described in this
section- City reserves the right to prospectu’iely lunliut tile number of hours spent on such caretaker duties
outside of normal vork hours

SI Pay tor Services Outside Normal Work Hours, If the Caretaker performs any
Caretal’er Services outside the Caretaker’s nioniial work hoLirs, the Caretaker shall be compensated at
minimum wage lc’Jrrentty S6.75’, or caretaker seruces. Ovenunle will be calculated as required by law
based on the employees ‘weigtite.J average’ rate wticIl Is deter,riuned b dividing total earnings for the
workweek including earnings durinq overtime hours, at the straight time rate, by the total hours worked
during tie workweek including the overtime hours For ekani1jle’ 40 hours at 10.00 an hour for regular
employment plus 2 hours at $0. ?S ‘.90 hour as a Caretaker yields an overtIme rate of $9.85 per hour
($413 SQ. divided by 42 ho’jr,

61 Compensation for Servlca, Outside Nomial Work Hours Applied First AgaInst
Rent. All compensation or Caretak’,r Services Outside Normal Work Hours described in Sections 4 and
S shall first be applied as a credit 000inst the rental value ci the Caretaker residence (currently $381.20).
IF th rent credit for any calendar month us exhausted. the Caretaker will be compensated for the
addituona’ Caretaker Ser,ices as a cjsfri payment. It the Caretaker does not perform Caretaker Services
equaling the rental value of the Coretaker residence, the remainder of rent will be forgiver’ by the City.

7) Caretaker Services Log. The Caretaker shall keep a detailed log of all Caretaker
Sen,uces performed Caretaker shall present a copy of thus log to the Caretakers supervisor monthly

8 mrs. Year M,iwlment Unio. a’4ees tat the, CaeIaker ast”em ‘:ard
S” fle1 Z ec ca ree-,ese’’ : e LLr.jio c’ e ‘vee-•ea’ se’ ta

Pa’ e:re.u:. : ‘ec; - 3 a CagsSe, a1c4tr ca leo Fars flt eC&a1:

:ee v,-; arwe in setiEr- f-c esana. cne:ae :YL,e Cv SC re
—cJ—e—: er: fl-a.- e—:er- Lz 1 ‘.v iee-,-eaj ass se’: a—c _&aEe A;etmec. [This section will
not app y to Steve SDerC.r]

AC;eS). F S&p 054e1a(efs



HOLIDAY CLOSURE PLAN
General Unit

The City may implement a holiday closure For some or all operations with employees using paid leave, unpaid
time, or working, consistent with he plan included below.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE:

Demand for City serdIces traditionally dn,ps dramatically during the week between the Christmas Holiday and the
New Years flay Holiday. As a r?rn1!.ictIvity costsaving measure the City of Santa Barbara may close non
essential offices to the public during tnt period hetwee.n the two holidays.

The Holiday Closure i tentaively r..Jririd rrorn itorday December 24. 2012 through Tuesday. January I 2013.
This period will include 2 normal legal holidas (Christmas Day and New Yearns Day).

The City reserves the right to cancel the Holiday Closure. and/ar to call some or all available employees back to
work in the event or a crisis or emergeriey.

EFFECT ON EMPLOYEES

Employees in operations that close for the holiday closure period wiil have several options for their normal
workdays. they may choose to

take accrued paid leave. Employees may use accrued leave ran, their vacation, personal leave, or
compensatory time balances

2i Take voluntary leave without pay. Em ployaws who preFer leave ‘aithout pay for all or part of the time
may have the portion of time they were on unpaid leave spread over the renlai,linc pay periods paid in
the flcal year beginning th first pay period in Nhich the unpaid leave is taken As with all unpaid
leaves or absence some he,iefits such as paid time of and retirement contributions) will not accrue
during the unpaid leave Howevcr. the Holiday Closure Mll not aftect monthly health life or disability
insurance premium contribLitioris

Ernpl!Jvees who opt to spread leave without pay over he renidining pay periods in the tiscal year. will be
re1uired to reimburse the City upon termination of eniployrtient ii the rull jaltie of the t.irne off has not been
a:,).. Ce

3 Woot. Ejcoees we rca.a eo:o:a,ete :*& 0q F-sveue etvets sisose :3 z v.e
Or ct crz 1e -cs. C

VQ0r sç-er:s . -r ‘e -101 CSy C!esre [& may LZ Ce 5 , avee
CC es yx.s3:ralo. Ens cyCes .rs .is :o .aks#o Ic _S, y C: u5: DC;
j-e. r Mwur t .I- ta- 1ue ‘es 2

Some ci lo,ees may e re.ec :0 ws.. C. :e CE .45. MaraçeTev -.% &e reasclaD

e’c.Is a I seers -,ea As ..rs- i.a:a& we”. seaets so -D rfroeea r(-si:o
be 041 Vt 1:: so cre te ... sea aor.Jec pac ea,e es3 a ,s41sie: nse (A ‘el

,; Jr teets are aaab to w’cv 055e9 a sei .355.

Asoec,x C-4oicavtcsure 29



Exhibit B

2012-2013 SALARY PLAN APPLICABLE TO
UNREPRESENTED NON-SUPERVISORY CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES

This plan will apply to positions classified as non-supervisory Confidentjal
employees effective July 1,2012.

2. The City Administrator is authorized to provide Confidential employees with
salaries and benefits under the same terms and conditions as General Unit
employees! except as detailed herein.

3. Vacation Cash Out

a. Effective July 1,2012! there shall be no longer be an annual option to
receive cash payment in lieu of vacation time (vacation cash-in);

b. On a one-time basis, on or before October 30, 2012, employees will be
given the option to receive cash in lieu of up to forty (40) hours of accrued
vacation time. Following the designated cash out, an amount equivalent to
$42,450 less the actual City cost of the cash out will be will be distributed
per capita among all confidential employees as a one-time payment. This
payment shall be made on or before December 24, 2012. This payment
will not be considered or reported as special compensation for purposes of
retirement contributions

4. Medical Insurance: Effective January 1, 2013, the maximum City medical
contribution will be increased by $65 per employee per months, to SI 055.01 per
employee per month.



Agenda Item No   5 
 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Agreement For Surface Water And Groundwater Monitoring 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a joint funding agreement 
with the United States Geological Survey for water resources investigations related to 
surface water and groundwater measurements for the period of November 1, 2012 
through October 31, 2013, with a City cost share not to exceed $111,150. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City and the United States Geological Survey (USGS) have worked cooperatively 
on water resources monitoring and investigations for over 25 years, including an annual 
program of measuring surface water flows and monitoring groundwater levels and water 
quality.  As in the past, the proposed (federal) Fiscal Year 2013 program has two 
elements: 
 
• Surface Water Gauging Stations: The USGS will continue to operate, maintain, and 

publish stream flow records for four gauging and data collection stations on the 
Santa Ynez River, and one on Mission Creek.  These stations provide real-time data 
and daily averages.  The information is used to implement the Upper Santa Ynez 
River Operations Agreement, as well as for general documentation and monitoring 
of operations at Gibraltar Reservoir, and conditions in Mission Creek. 

 
• Groundwater Monitoring: City staff will continue to take monthly water level 

measurements at 71 monitoring well locations. The USGS will maintain the 
database of water level data and continue a program of collecting and maintaining 
data on groundwater quality.  The water level and water quality information is used 
in computer modeling of the City’s groundwater supplies and the potential impact 
from seawater intrusion into the downtown groundwater basin.  

 
The data that is collected and maintained are an important part of managing the City’s 
water supply. 



Council Agenda Report 
Agreement For Surface Water And Groundwater Monitoring  
September 25, 2012 
Page 2 

 

 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The overall program cost is $159,200, to be shared by the City ($111,150) and USGS 
($48,050).  Funds for this program are appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2013 Water Fund 
Operating Budget. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Water Resources Manager/TL/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  6 
 

File Code No.  640.08 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval Of Parcel Map And Execution Of Agreements For 2501 – 

2511 Medcliff Road 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute and record Parcel 
Map Number 20,798 and Standard Agreements relating to the approved subdivision at 
2501-2511 Medcliff Road. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A Tentative Map for the subdivision located at 2501-2511 Medcliff Road (Attachment 1), 
was conditionally approved on August 19, 2010, by adoption of the Planning 
Commission (PC) Conditions of Approval, Resolution Number 010-10, (Attachment 2).  
The project involves the subdivision of two parcels into four legal lots.  Staff has 
reviewed the Parcel Map (Map) and has found it to be in substantial compliance with the 
previously approved Tentative Map, the Conditions of Approval, the State Subdivision 
Map Act, and the City’s Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
In accordance with the PC approval, the Owner(s) (Attachment 3), have signed and 
submitted the Map and the required agreements to the City, tracked under Public Works 
Permit Number PBW2011-00258.  Council approval is required if Council agrees with 
the staff determination that the Map conforms to all the requirements of the Subdivision 
Map Act and the Municipal Code applicable at the time of the approval of the Tentative 
Map (Municipal Code, Chapter 27.09.060, City Council Action). 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Administrator to execute the required 
Agreement Relating to Subdivision Map Conditions Imposed on Real Property.  
 
The Agreement Assigning Water Extraction Rights does not require Council approval, 
and will be signed by the Public Works Director in accordance with City Council 
Resolution Number 02-131. 
 
 
THE PARCEL MAP IS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW IN THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE. 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Parcel Map And Execution Of Agreements For 2501 – 2511 Medcliff Road 
September 25, 2012 
Page 2 

 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Vicinity Map 

2. Conditions required to be recorded concurrent with Parcel Map 
Number 20,798 by Planning Commission Conditions of 
Approval, Resolution Number 010-10 

3. List of Owners/Trustees 
 

 
PREPARED BY: Mark Wilde, Supervising Civil Engineer/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Vicinity Map
2501-2511 Medcliff Road

ATTACHMENT 1

I—

-L
— . ——I I—..-

-

.:1

—ii !—— 1-
H-. ... I I

*$.d —

II — —

jF

I
NO? to ScaLe

.1



 

1  

ATTACHMENT 2 
CONDITIONS THAT ARE REQUIRED TO BE RECORDED CONCURRENT WITH 
PARCEL MAP NUMBER 20,798 BY PLANNING COMMISSION CONDITIONS OF 
APPROVAL, RESOLUTION NO. 010-10 
 

2501-2511 Medcliff Road 
 

Said approval is subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Approved Development.  The development of the Real Property approved 
by the Planning Commission on August 19, 2010, is limited to the subdivision 
of two parcels to create four legal lots and the improvements shown on the 
Tentative Subdivision Map signed by the chairman of the Planning 
commission on said date and on file at the City of Santa Barbara and subject 
to any revisions made by the Planning Commission approval.  

2. Guest Parking.  At least one uncovered guest parking space shall be 
provided on Parcel D in addition to any parking spaces required by the Zoning 
Ordinance.  Its size and location shall be determined by the Transportation 
Manager and approved by the Community Development Department.   

3. Future Development.  No structures shall be constructed within 20 feet of 
the edge of the private shared access driveway on any of the parcels.  The 
Development Envelope on Parcel D shall be reduced so that no structures 
shall be constructed within 20’ of the private driveway easement or within 20 
feet of the easterly property line.   

4. Uninterrupted Water Flow.  The Owner shall provide for the continuation of 
any historic uninterrupted flow of water onto the Real Property including, but 
not limited to, swales, natural watercourses, conduits, and any access road, 
as appropriate. 

5. Recreational Vehicle Storage Limitation.  No recreational vehicles, boats, 
or trailers shall be stored on the Real Property unless enclosed or concealed 
from view as approved by the (SFDB).   

6. Landscape Plan Compliance.  The Owner shall comply with the Landscape 
Plan approved by the Single Family Design Board (SFDB).  Such plan shall 
not be modified unless prior written approval is obtained from the SFDB.  The 
landscaping on the Real Property shall be provided and maintained in 
accordance with said landscape plan, including any tree protection measures.  
If said landscaping is removed for any reason without approval by the SFDB, 
the owner is responsible for its immediate replacement. 

7. Oak Tree Protection.  The existing oak tree(s) shown on the Tentative Map 
and the Preliminary Grading Plan other than the two designated for removal, 
shall be preserved, protected, and maintained in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in the arborist’s report prepared by Bill Spiewak, 
dated March 3, 2010.   

8. Storm Water Pollution Control and Drainage Systems Maintenance.  
Owner shall maintain the drainage system and storm water pollution control 
devices in accordance with the approved Storm Water Management Plan.  
Should any of the project’s surface or subsurface drainage structures or storm 
water pollution control methods fail to capture, infiltrate, and/or treat, or result 
in increased erosion, the Owner shall be responsible for any necessary 



ATTACHMENT 2 

2 

repairs to the system and restoration of the eroded area.  Should repairs or 
restoration become necessary, prior to the commencement of such repair or 
restoration work, the Owner shall submit a repair and restoration plan to the 
Community Development Director to determine if an amendment or a new 
Building Permit/Coastal Development Permit is required to authorize such 
work.  The Owner is responsible for the adequacy of any project-related 
drainage facilities and for the continued maintenance thereof in a manner that 
will preclude any hazard to life, health, or damage to the Real Property or any 
adjoining property. 

9. Required Private Covenants.  The Owners shall record in the official 
records of Santa Barbara County either private covenants, a reciprocal 
easement agreement, or a similar agreement which, among other things, 
shall provide for all of the following: 
a. Private Covenants Conditions & Restrictions (CC&R’s).  A private 

driveway maintenance and utility agreement shall be recorded in the 
Office of the County Clerk Recorder as a separate instrument in the form 
of Private CC&R’s for all affected properties, and shall include language 
for maintenance of the private driveway, private water main, private fire 
hydrant, private storm drain system, and all other shared private facilities.  
The Official Record instrument number shall be referenced on the Parcel 
Map. 

b. Garages Available for Parking.  A covenant that includes a requirement 
that all garages be kept open and available for the parking of vehicles 
owned by the residents of the property in the manner for which the 
garages were designed and permitted. 

c. Trash and Recycling.  Trash holding areas shall include recycling 
containers with at least equal capacity as the trash containers, and 
trash/recycling areas shall be easily accessed by the consumer and the 
trash hauler.  Green waste shall either have containers adequate for the 
landscaping or be hauled off site by the landscaping maintenance 
company.  If no green waste containers are provided for common interest 
developments, include an item in the CC&Rs stating that the green waste 
will be hauled off site. 

d. Covenant Enforcement.  A covenant that permits each owner to 
contractually enforce the terms of the private covenants, reciprocal 
easement agreement, or similar agreement required by this condition.  

Coastal Bluff Liability Limitation.  The Owner understands and is advised that the site 
may be subject to extraordinary hazards from waves during storms and erosion, retreat, 
settlement, or subsidence and assumes liability for such hazards.  The Owner 
unconditionally waives any present, future, and unforeseen claims of liability on the part 
of the City arising from the aforementioned or other natural hazards and relating to this 
permit approval, as a condition of this approval.  Further, the Owner agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless the City and its employees for any alleged or proven acts or 
omissions and related cost of defense, related to the City's approval of this permit and 
arising from the aforementioned or other natural hazards whether such claims should be 
stated by the Owner's successor-in-interest or third parties.  



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

 
 

LIST OF OWNERS 
Name of LLC if Applicable 

 
2501 – 2511 Medcliff Road 

 
 
 

Doug Rossi, Successor Trustee 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
File Code No.  560.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appropriation Of Federal Aviation Administration Airport Improvement 

Program Grant Funds For Santa Barbara Airport 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council accept the increased Federal Aviation Administration grant offer and increase 
appropriations and estimated revenues by $3,360,273 in the Airport’s Grants Fund for two 
projects, the Airline Terminal Improvement Project (Phase V) and the Taxiway C, H, J 
Rehabilitation Project (Phase I), both of which will be primarily funded from Federal 
Aviation Administration Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grant No. 03-06-0235-045-
2012 totaling $3,046,424, with the City’s 9.3% match portion of $313,849 to be funded 
from Airport reserves above policy. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On July 3, 2012, Council accepted and authorized the Airport Director to execute the 
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Airport Improvement Program grant offer in an 
amount not to exceed $2,800,000.  Funds were not appropriated at that time.  When the 
grants were received on September 10, 2012, the grant offer had increased to $3,360,273. 
 
This grant provides $750,000 for the final phase of construction on the Airline Terminal 
Improvement Project and the balance $2,610,273 for the first phase of construction for the 
rehabilitation of three taxiways, C, H, and J.  
 
The reason for the change is due to more recent federal legislation that has increased the 
local match for small hub airports from 5% to 9.3% for the 2012 entitlement grant. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funds for the City’s 9.3% match are available in the Airport’s Operating Reserves above 
policy. 
 
PREPARED BY: Hazel Johns, Assistant Airport Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Karen Ramsdell, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  570.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facilities Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Launch Ramp Design - Santa Barbara Harbor  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Waterfront Director to execute a Professional Services 
Contract with Moffatt & Nichol, Inc., approved as to form by the City Attorney, in the 
amount of $51,500 for design services for the Santa Barbara Harbor Launch Ramp 
Project; and approve expenditures of up to $5,150 for extra design services that may 
result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In 2009, Waterfront staff hired an engineering firm to prepare an evaluation of both the 
easterly and westerly sections of the public launch ramp in support of two grant 
applications.  The center section of the public launch ramp was replaced in 2001 with 
grant funds from the California Department of Boating and Waterways (DBW).  The 
evaluation concluded that the easterly and westerly sections that were not replaced in 
2001 had deteriorated severely since their construction in the 1960s and were no longer 
usable for launching vessels.   
 
DBW administers two grant programs that provide funds for public boat launching 
facilities, the Boating Trails Grant Program and the Local Assistance Grant Program.  
Council adopted a resolution on February 9, 2010, authorizing staff to apply for funds 
from the two DBW grant programs.  DBW awarded a $450,000 Boating Trails Grant to 
the Waterfront for replacement of the easterly section of the launch ramp used primarily 
for non-powered watercraft such as kayaks, sailing dinghies, and small outrigger 
canoes.  Construction of the easterly section of the launch ramp was completed in May 
2012.   



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Launch Ramp Design - Santa Barbara Harbor  
September 25, 2012 
Page 2 

 

 

 
DBW also awarded $350,000 from their Local Assistance Grant Program for 
replacement of the westerly section of the launch ramp.  The project was included in the 
Waterfront’s Fiscal Year 2011-2016 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) approved by 
Council in July 2010.  This project was identified as unfunded in the CIP pending award 
of the grants applied for from DBW. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of reconstructing approximately 5,300 sq. ft. of existing concrete at 
the westerly section of the launch ramp.  The area will be constructed with a v-grooved 
concrete surface creating two new launching lanes and a wash down area for boats.  
Construction will increase the number of lanes available for launching boats from four 
lanes to six lanes.     
 
DESIGN PHASE CONSULTANT ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Waterfront Director to execute a contract 
with Moffatt & Nichol, Inc. in the amount of $56,500 for design of the reconstructed 
westerly section of the launch ramp.  Engineering services also include preparation of 
plans and specifications adequate for a complete construction contract bid package as 
well as bid support and construction management services. The design portion of the 
contract is $46,650 as detailed below in the Estimated Project Cost summary.  
 
Staff prepared a Request for Proposals (RFP) for design services for the easterly 
section of the launch ramp in 2010 that was sent to several marine engineering firms.  
Two proposals were received and staff selected Moffatt & Nichol, Inc. as the most 
qualified and experienced firm to provide the required engineering services for the 
proposed project.  Moffatt & Nichol, Inc. successfully designed the launch ramp 
improvements for the easterly section and provided construction support.  Considering 
the successful design and construction of the easterly section of the launch ramp, staff 
solicited a proposal from Moffatt & Nichol, Inc. for design services for the westerly 
section of the launch ramp.  Staff negotiated some minor modifications to the original 
proposal slightly reducing costs to meet the project budget. 
 
FUNDING 
 
The California Department of Boating and Waterways (DBW) recently awarded 
$350,000 to the Waterfront from their Local Assistance Grant Program for 
reconstruction of the westerly section of the launch ramp.  The funds are solely for 
improvements to launching facilities available for use by the public.  Design services 
and project construction costs are initially paid for out of the Waterfront’s Harbor 
Preservation Fund and reimbursed by DBW’s Public Assistance Grant Program upon 
completion of the project. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Launch Ramp Design - Santa Barbara Harbor  
September 25, 2012 
Page 3 

 

 

 
The following summarizes estimated total Project costs: 
 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
Design (by Contract) $46,650 

Other Design Costs - City staff (if contract), Environmental 
(Assessments, etc.) 

$25,000 

 Subtotal $71,650 

Estimated Construction Contract w/Change Order Allowance  $255,000 

Estimated Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract or 
City) 

$18,850 

Estimated Other Construction Costs (testing, etc.) $4,500 

 Subtotal $278,350 

TOTAL PROJECT COST             $350,000 
 
There are sufficient funds in the Harbor Preservation Fund to cover these costs.  The 
total project cost estimate is $350,000.   
 
 
PREPARED BY:  Karl Treiberg, Waterfront Facilities Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 

File Code No.  260.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: August 2012 Investment Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council accept the August 2012 Investment Report. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached investment report includes Investment Activity, Interest Revenue, a 
Summary of Cash and Investments, and Investment Portfolio detail as of August 31, 2012.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT: August 2012 Investment Report 
 
PREPARED BY: Jill Taura, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 
 
 
   
   
 



 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INVESTMENT INCOME

PURCHASES OR DEPOSITS POOLED INVESTMENTS

 8/15 Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 2,000,000$         Interest Earned on Investments 199,659$    

8/16 LAIF Deposit - City 1,000,000 Amortization (12,931)

8/21 LAIF Deposit - City 2,000,000 Interest on SBB&T Accounts 423

8/28 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000 Total 187,150$    

8/28 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 2,000,000

8/31 Santa Barbara Bank & Trust CD (SBBTCD) 2,000,000

8/31 Santa Barbara Bank & Trust CD (SBBTCD) 4,000,000

Total 15,000,000$       

SALES, MATURITIES, CALLS OR WITHDRAWALS REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY INVESTMENTS

 8/8 LAIF Withdrawal - City (1,000,000)$       Interest Earned on Investments (LAIF) 2,145$        
8/10 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) - Call (2,000,000)

8/17 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) - Maturity (2,000,000)

8/27 LAIF Withdrawal - City (4,000,000)

8/31 LAIF Withdrawal - City (6,000,000)

Total (15,000,000)$     

ACTIVITY TOTAL -$                       INCOME TOTAL 189,295$    

A
ttachm

ent 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Activity and Interest Report

August 31, 2012

1



ENDING BALANCE AS OF JULY 31, 2012

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

State of California LAIF 50,700,000$         0.360% 31.25% 1 (1)

Certificates of Deposit 2,000,000 0.800% 1.23% 474

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 93,687,237 1.634% 57.75% 1,075

Corporate/Medium Term Notes 10,056,491 1.949% 6.20% 1,132
156,443,728         1.231% 96.43% 723

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,789,184 7.000% 3.57% 6,177

Totals and Averages 162,232,913$       1.436% 100.00% 918

SBB&T Money Market Account 2,869,074
Total Cash and Investments 165,101,987$       

 
  

NET CASH AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY FOR AUGUST 2012 1,8 94,129$               
 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Summary of Cash and Investments

August 31, 2012

 

 
ENDING BALANCE AS OF AUGUST 31, 2012

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

State of California LAIF 42,700,000$         0.377% 26.32% 1 (1)

Certificates of Deposit 8,000,000 1.267% 4.93% 1,297
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 95,675,660 1.572% 58.98% 1,114
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 10,055,137 1.949% 6.20% 1,101

156,430,797         1.254% 96.43% 819

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,789,184 7.000% 3.57% 6,146
Totals and Averages 162,219,981$       1.460% 100.00% 1,009

SBB&T Money Market Account 4,776,134
Total Cash and Investments 166,996,116$       

  

Note:  

(1) The average life of the LAIF portfolio as of August 31, 2012 is 257 days.

2



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VAL UE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND - - - - 0.377 0.377 36,000,000.00 36,000,000.00 36,000,000.00 0.00  

LOCAL AGENCY INV FUND/RDAS - - - - 0.377 0.377 6,700,000.00 6,700,000.00 6,700,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, LAIF      42,700,000.00 42,700,000.00 42,700,000.00 0.00

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

MONTECITO BANK & TRUST 11/18/11 11/18/13 - - 0.800 0.800 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

SANTA BARBARA BANK & TRUST 08/31/12 08/31/15 - - 1.230 1.247 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

SANTA BARBARA BANK & TRUST 08/31/12 08/31/17 - - 1.490 1.511 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, Certificates of deposit     8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 0.00

FEDERAL AGENCY ISSUES - COUPON  
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/10/11 02/10/14 Aaa AA+ 1.375 1.375 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,032,740.00 32,740.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 03/01/12 03/01/17 Aaa AA+ 1.260 1.260 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,009,200.00 9,200.00 Callable 03/01/13, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 08/15/12 08/15/17 Aaa AA+ 0.980 0.980 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,008,640.00 8,640.00 Callable 08/15/13, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 03/05/09 03/04/13 Aaa AA+ 2.600 2.600 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,024,520.00 24,520.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 05/08/09 04/08/13 Aaa AA+ 2.200 2.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,024,060.00 24,060.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/16/11 02/16/16 Aaa AA+ 2.570 2.570 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,143,160.00 143,160.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/15/10 10/15/13 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,040,160.00 40,160.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 08/05/10 09/12/14 Aaa AA+ 1.375 1.375 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,044,560.00 44,560.00  

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

August 31, 2012

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/17/09 12/13/13 Aaa AA+ 3.125 2.440 2,000,000.00 2,016,592.72 2,074,260.00 57,667.28  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/15/10 10/30/12 Aaa AA+ 1.700 1.700 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,004,920.00 4,920.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/05/10 11/29/13 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,044,320.00 44,320.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/29/10 10/29/12 Aaa AA+ 1.125 1.125 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,003,080.00 3,080.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 05/28/10 05/28/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.653 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,007,880.00 7,880.00 SU 3.35%, Callable 11/28/12, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/26/11 08/28/13 Aaa AA+ 1.000 0.381 1,000,000.00 1,006,113.37 1,008,050.00 1,936.63  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/17/09 09/13/13 Aaa AA+ 4.375 2.272 2,000,000.00 2,041,324.12 2,085,720.00 44,395.88  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 02/22/10 12/13/13 Aaa AA+ 3.125 2.130 2,000,000.00 2,024,390.63 2,074,260.00 49,869.37  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 02/09/11 01/29/15 Aaa AA+ 1.750 1.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,068,260.00 68,260.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/15/11 05/27/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,089,120.00 89,120.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/26/11 10/30/13 Aaa AA+ 2.000 0.400 1,500,000.00 1,527,790.70 1,531,185.00 3,394.30  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 03/28/12 03/28/17 Aaa AA+ 1.210 1.210 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,007,260.00 7,260.00 Callable 03/28/13, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 09/03/09 09/21/12 Aaa AA+ 2.125 1.699 2,000,000.00 2,000,459.02 2,001,900.00 1,440.98  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 01/06/11 02/25/14 Aaa AA+ 1.375 1.375 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,033,140.00 33,140.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 03/28/12 03/28/17 Aaa AA+ 1.350 1.350 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,035,120.00 35,120.00 Callable 03/28/14, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 09/28/11 09/28/16 Aaa AA+ 1.400 1.400 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,580.00 1,580.00 Callable 09/28/12, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 02/21/12 02/21/17 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,027,020.00 27,020.00 Callable 02/21/14, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 04/23/12 04/17/15 Aaa AA+ 0.500 0.534 2,000,000.00 1,998,220.74 2,007,560.00 9,339.26  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/12/12 06/12/17 Aaa AA+ 1.250 1.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,012,000.00 12,000.00 Callable 06/12/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 07/24/12 07/24/17 Aaa AA+ 1.125 1.125 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,009,320.00 9,320.00 Callable 07/24/13, then qtrly

3



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VAL UE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

August 31, 2012

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 05/24/12 05/24/17 Aaa AA+ 1.200 1.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,008,080.00 8,080.00 Callable 05/24/13, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 08/28/12 08/28/17 Aaa AA+ 1.030 1.030 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,005,180.00 5,180.00 Callable 02/28/13, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 02/11/11 04/02/14 Aaa AA+ 4.500 1.615 2,000,000.00 2,088,855.88 2,130,800.00 41,944.12  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/07/12 06/07/17 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,011,560.00 11,560.00 Callable 06/07/13, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 09/28/11 09/28/16 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.401 1,000,000.00 999,962.50 1,000,540.00 577.50 SU 1%-3%, Call 09/28/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/09/11 11/09/16 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.807 2,000,000.00 1,999,905.56 2,005,260.00 5,354.44 SU 1.5%-3.5%, Call 11/09/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/28/11 12/28/16 Aaa AA+ 1.125 1.641 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,005,360.00 5,360.00 SU 2% Callable 12/28/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 10/28/11 10/28/16 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.521 2,000,000.00 1,998,841.67 2,028,260.00 29,418.33 Callable 10/28/13, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 01/25/12 01/25/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.256 2,000,000.00 1,999,600.00 2,007,640.00 8,040.00 SU 1.5%, Callable 01/25/13, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/17/10 11/17/14 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,044,120.00 44,120.00  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/27/11 06/27/16 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,022,600.00 22,600.00 Callable 06/27/13, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 08/28/12 08/28/17 Aaa AA+ 1.150 1.150 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,012,060.00 12,060.00 Callable 08/28/13, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 04/12/12 04/12/17 Aaa AA+ 1.400 1.400 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,014,280.00 14,280.00 Callable 04/12/13, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/28/11 12/28/16 Aaa AA+ 1.625 1.625 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,008,840.00 8,840.00 Callable 12/28/12, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 03/28/12 03/28/17 Aaa AA+ 1.125 1.332 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,012,020.00 12,020.00 SU 1.125%-2.25%, Call 03/28/13, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 09/21/10 09/21/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,098,320.00 98,320.00  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/10/10 10/26/15 Aaa AA+ 1.625 2.067 2,000,000.00 1,973,602.85 2,082,540.00 108,937.15  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 04/18/11 04/18/16 Aaa AA+ 2.500 2.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,026,320.00 26,320.00 Callable 04/18/13, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 01/30/12 01/30/17 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,009,480.00 9,480.00 Callable 01/30/13, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 04/24/12 04/24/17 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,003,740.00 3,740.00 Callable 10/24/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/01/12 05/29/15 Aaa AA+ 0.650 0.650 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,003,520.00 3,520.00 Callable 05/29/13, once

     Subtotal, Federal Agencies 95,500,000.00 95,675,659.76 96,993,515.00 1,317,855.24
 

CORPORATE/MEDIUM TERM NOTES

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN 12/15/10 12/15/15 Aa2 AA+ 2.450 2.530 2,000,000.00 1,995,066.67 2,106,920.00 111,853.33  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 11/10/10 11/09/15 A1 AA+ 2.250 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,068,820.00 68,820.00  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 01/07/11 01/07/14 A1 AA+ 2.100 2.100 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,039,640.00 39,640.00  

PROCTOR & GAMBLE 09/20/11 11/15/15 Aa3 AA- 1.800 1.085 2,000,000.00 2,044,693.38 2,072,980.00 28,286.62  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 09/26/11 09/15/16 Aa3 AA- 2.000 1.800 2,000,000.00 2,015,377.13 2,083,860.00 68,482.87  

     Subtotal, Corporate Securities 10,000,000.00 10,055,137.18 10,372,220.00 317,082.82

SB AIRPORT PROMISSORY NOTE (LT)

SANTA BARBARA AIRPORT 07/14/09 06/30/29 - - 7.000 7.000 5,789,184.34 5,789,184.34 5,789,184.34 0.00  

     Subtotal, SBA Note 5,789,184.34 5,789,184.34 5,789,184.34 0.00

TOTALS 161,989,184.34 162,219,981.28 163,854,919.34 1,634,938.06

Market values have been obtained from the City's safekeeping agent, Santa Barbara Bank and Trust (SBB&T).  SBB&T uses Interactive Data Pricing Service, Bloomberg and DTC.

4



Agenda Item No.  11 
File Code No.  520.02 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Office of Emergency Services, Fire Department 
 
SUBJECT: TsunamiReady Community™ Designation  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council accept recognition by the National Weather Service designating the City of 
Santa Barbara as a TsunamiReady Community™.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Becoming a TsunamiReady Community™ is the result of a collaborative effort between 
local government, federal government, and the community. The City of Santa Barbara is 
the first city in the County of Santa Barbara to be recognized with this designation. No 
community is tsunami proof, but being Tsunami Ready can help minimize loss to our 
community. 
 
In order to be recognized as TsunamiReady Community™, the City had to meet the 
following criteria: 
 

• An established 24-hour warning point and Emergency Operations Center  
• More than one way to receive tsunami warnings and to alert the public  
• Promote public readiness through community education and the distribution of 

information  
• Develop a formal tsunami plan, which includes holding emergency exercises.  

 
The designation is a three-year term. As a result of the designation, the City may notify 
the Federal Insurance Services Organization for consideration to obtain 25 Community 
Rating System (CRS) points, which may lower the City’s National Flood Insurance 
Program insurance premiums.  
 
There are no costs associated with the designation. 



Council Agenda Report 
TsunamiReady Community™ Designation  
September 25, 2012 
Page 2 

 

 
PREPARED BY: Yolanda McGlinchey, Emergency Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Andrew J. DiMizio, Fire Chief 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  12 
File Code No.  530.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request From Mayor Schneider And Councilmember Francisco 

Regarding Safe Passage 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council consider the request from Mayor Schneider and Councilmember Francisco 
regarding safety issues for pedestrians, bicyclists and vehicle drivers in the corridor from 
Laguna Street, along with East Los Olivos Street through the intersections with 
Alameda Padre Serra and Mountain Drive, across Mission Creek Bridge, onto Mission 
Canyon Road, through the intersection with Puesta del Sol Road to the intersection with 
Las Encinas Road. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Mayor Schneider and Councilmember Francisco 
requesting that Council receive a presentation from the Concerned Citizens for Safe 
Passage Working Group regarding Safe Passage.    
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Memorandum from Mayor Schneider and Councilmember 

Francisco 
 

PREPARED BY: Jennifer Jennings, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



-1; —

4
,, -1a4 -

DATE:

City of Santa Barbara
City Administrator!s Office

Memorandum

August29, 2012

TO: Jim Armstrong, City Administr$r

FROM: Mayor Helene SchneideF-/ -- -

Councilmember Dale Fraficisco

SUBJECT: Request from Mayor Schneider and
Councilmember Dale Francisco Regarding Safe Passage

Pursuant to Council Resolution 05-073 regarding the Conduct of City Council Meetings,
we request that an item be placed on the Santa Barbara City Council Agenda regarding
a presentation about “Safe Passage

Summary of information to be presented:
The Concerned Citizens for Safe Passage Working Group will give a
presentation to the City Council regarding their findings and recommendations
concerning safety issues for pedestrians, bicyclists and vehicle drivers in the
corridor from Laguna Street, a’ong East Los Olivos Street through the
intersections with Alameda Padre Serra and Mountain Drive! across Mission
Creek Bridge, onto Mission Canyon Road, through the intersection with Puesta
del Sol Road to the intersection with Las Encinas Road.

• Statement of Specific Action:
This is an informational item, although Council may direct staff to return to a
future meeting on potential next steps to implement relevant parts of the Safe
Passage proposal that are within the Cits jurisdiction.

• Statement of the Reasons Why it is Appropriate and Within the Jurisdiction of the
Council to Consider this Subiect Matter and to Take the Requested Action:
The area being reviewed by the Concerned Citizens for Safe Passage Working
Group is one of Santa Barbara’s most historic neighborhoods and is heavily
travelled by residents and visitors- The set of complex intersections include
significant historical resources, traffic safety concerns and coordination between
the City and the County of Santa Barbara’s Public Works and Parks
departments. Review and discussion of the Working Group’s findings and
recommendations could lead to improvements in this emergency evacuation
corridor in a manner that also protects significant historic structures and provides
new, improved and safer circulation opportunities for vehuces, pedestrians and
bicyclists.

cc: Mayor and Council
City Attorney
Public Works Director

ATTACHMENT



Agenda Item No.  13 
 

File Code No.  660.06 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration, Housing and Human Services, Community 

Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing For The City Of Santa Barbara’s “2012 Analysis Of 

Impediments To Fair Housing Choice” 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Hold a public hearing to consider the “2012 Analysis of Impediments to Fair 

Housing Choice (AI)” and  provide direction to staff regarding any changes to the 
AI; and 

B. Authorize staff to submit the final AI to the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) in accordance with the requirements of the federal 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and the Home Investments 
Partnership (HOME) programs. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Federal Fair Housing Act, Section 808(e)(5) of Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1968, as amended, requires the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) to administer HUD programs in a manner to affirmatively 
further fair housing. Based on this mandate, and by Title 24 Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 570.904(c), all jurisdictions that receive federal funds, such as 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, must certify that they will 
affirmatively further fair housing.   
 
In particular, jurisdictions must conduct an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 
Choice (AI) every five years. The purpose of this report is to provide an understanding 
of the various issues regarding fair housing choice in the City of Santa Barbara. It 
includes a study of the City’s characteristics such as population growth, home mortgage 
disclosure data, income variances, and racial/ethnic data.  It also describes the City’s 
existing fair housing conditions and how state, local, private, and federal resources can 
be used to address any identified needs. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing For The City Of Santa Barbara’s “2012 Analysis Of Impediments To Fair 
Housing Choice” 
September 25, 2012 
Page 2 

 

 

In collaboration with the Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara (HACSB), a 
Request for Proposals was published in March 2012 which resulted in the selection of 
The Ramsay Group to perform the following:   
 

• Examine pertinent data including demographic, income, employment and 
housing data as well as studies that have been completed that relate to fair 
housing;  

• Review prior and current activities that promote fair housing, including an 
assessment of agencies currently providing fair housing programs in the area;  

• Examine private-market issues that relate to the sale or rental of housing, the 
provision of brokerage services, mortgage lending, insurance sales and 
underwriting, property appraisal and property management;  

• Evaluate public policies and practices which affect the provision of fair housing 
including but not limited to public services, state and local laws, ordinances and 
regulations, planning and zoning laws and decisions, land use regulations, 
community development funding policies and practices in areas of low and high 
opportunity, procedures and practices of the local public housing authority and 
property tax policies including, but not limited to tax exemptions;  

• Identify impediments to fair housing for the City and HACSB listed in order of 
priority with proposed methods of corrective actions to address identified 
impediments. 

To provide an opportunity for citizen participation and feedback, a survey was 
conducted.  This survey was made available (in English and Spanish) both online on the 
City News Page, the HACSB website, and the Community Development’s Fair Housing 
website. Hard-copy versions of the survey were available at the Main Public Library and 
at the City Clerk’s office.  The survey was also highlighted in the web-based weekly 
newsletter, “City News in Brief”.  
 
In addition to obtaining feedback from the survey, a Community Meeting was held on 
June 27, 2012. The announcement for the Community Meeting was widely publicized 
on the Santa Barbara News-Press, the Daily Sound and the Independent. The notice 
was also sent to social-service providers currently funded by the City, as well as to the 
Community Development and Human Services Committee.  
 
The draft AI was available for public review from July 20, 2012 through August 20, 2012 
on the City’s website, the Community Development Department and at the Central 
Library. A notice that the draft AI was available for review was published in the Santa 
Barbara News-Press. 



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing For The City Of Santa Barbara’s “2012 Analysis Of Impediments To Fair 
Housing Choice” 
September 25, 2012 
Page 3 

 

 

PROPOSED ACTIONS: 

The AI includes proposed actions the City might take that will address impediments to 
fair housing choice.  These include the following: 

1. Expand Affordable Housing Opportunities through continued development and 
rehabilitation of affordable housing opportunities with local partners as well as 
outside developers. 

2. Amend zoning ordinances to implement Plan Santa Barbara General Plan 
Update including policies in the Land Use and Housing Elements to encourage 
more affordable housing units.  

3. Continue to work with local non-profits to provide priority federal, state (if 
available) and local funding to assist in the development of new housing 
opportunities in non-minority concentrated areas of Santa Barbara, as well as for 
seniors and low-income large families.  

4. Continue to work with local lenders, escrow and title companies, and real estate 
agents to promote tools that reduce the costs of homeownership.    

5. Continue to work with other fair housing advocates to conduct additional fair 
housing workshops in Santa Barbara to educate the public about fair housing 
rights and housing opportunities.  

6. Continue to monitor complaints regarding unfair/predatory lending and assess 
lending patterns using the data collected under the Home Mortgage Disclosure 
Act (HMDA), the Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) and other data sources 
and track the type of complaints received. 

7. Outreach to owners of small rental properties and affordable housing providers 
regarding fair housing laws, and monitor fair housing complaints received.  

8. Provide information on reasonable accommodation to housing units.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
Total preparation and publishing costs in the amount of $16,000 was shared equally 
between the HACSB and Community Development Programs. The City’s portion of the 
cost was paid from CDBG administrative funds.   

**The “Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice” report is available to the 
public on request, in the Council Reading File, the City Clerk, Main Public Library, 
HACSB, the Community Development Department, and online at the City’s web site 
(www.santabarbaraca.gov/Resident/Health/Community_Services/fair_housing.htm )  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Sue Gray, Community Development Business Manager dr/es 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Resident/Health/Community_Services/fair_housing.htm


Agenda Item No.  14 
File Code No.  640.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: September 25, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request From Councilmembers Hotchkiss And Rowse Regarding 

Recent Architectural Board Of Review Conduct 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council consider a request from Councilmembers Hotchkiss and Rowse to review 
recent Architectural Board of Review actions concerning Chick-fil-A restaurant and 
decide appropriate action. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Councilmembers Hotchkiss and Rowse requesting that 
Council review the conduct of certain members of the Architectural Board of Review and 
consider appropriate actions, if any.        
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Memorandum from Councilmembers Hotchkiss and Rowse 

 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer Jennings, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



City of Santa Barbara
City Administrators Office

Memorandum

DATE: August20, 2012

TO: Jim Armstrong, City Administra, -

/

_____

/
FROM: Councirniember Frank-Hotdhkb

Councilmember Randy Rowse

SUBJECT: Consideration of Recent ArchitcraJ Board of Review Conduct

Pursuant to Council Resolution 05-073 regarding the Conduct of City Council Meetings,
we request that an item be placed on the Santa Barbara City Ccuncil Agenda regarding
recent Architectural Board of Review (ABR) actions concerning Chick-fil-A restaurant.

At recent meetings, the members of the ABR first gave unanimous approval for a
restaurant project at 3707 State Street, then refused to move the project forward
when minor! staff-supported changes were requested. At [east two board
members have said publicly that their refusal to approve the changes were based
not on the merits of the project, but on the politics of the applicant.

The City Council will review these actions and decide appropriate action!
including but not limited to:

- No action;

2. Removal of any or all ABR members;

3. In the event of the removal of any or all ABR members, consider the
temporary or accelerated permanent appointment of replacement ABR
members to allow the board to continue serving the city;

4. Consider forming a five-person blue-ribbon Advisory Committee to create
a Code of Conduct and improved Guidelines for the Architectural Board of
Review.

Article VIII, Section 802 ofthe City Charter states in part:

the members of each of the board or conlmissrons hereinafter named in this Article
shall be appointed by the City Council from the qualified electors of the City, shall
remain qualified electors during their term of office, and shaLl not hold any full time paid

ATTACHMENT



office or employment in the City government. They shall be subject to removal by
motion of the City Council adopted by the affirmative votes of a majority of the total
membership thereof.”

Concerning the duties of the ABR, Section 814 of this adicle states in part:

“The Board shall have the power and duty to:
(a) Review and approve, conditionally approve or disapprove aN applications for a

budding permit for the erection or exterior alteration of any type, nature or kind of
building, structure or sign that may be specified by ordinance as requiring such
action within any area, district or zone of the City, except for those applications
subject to review by the Historic Landmarks Commission.

We are requesting that this be scheduled for a special Council meeting the evening of
Tuesday, September11, 2012.

cc: Mayor and Couned
City Atlorney
Community Development Director

ATTACHMENT


	1.DOC
	2.DOCX
	3.DOCX
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOCX
	9.PDF
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.PDF
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.PDF
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.PDF
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	24.PDF
	Mayor
	Randy Rowse
	Bendy White
	SEPTEMBER 25, 2012
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



